QUANTA CAPITAL HOLDINGS LTD

Form 10-Q May 10, 2006

Table of Contents

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended March 31, 2006

TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from

Commission file number 000-50885

QUANTA CAPITAL HOLDINGS LTD.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Bermuda n/a

to

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

1 Victoria Street, Second Floor Hamilton HM11

Bermuda 441-294-6350

(Address of principal executive offices and zip (Registrant's telephone number, including area code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Yes No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated filer. See definition of "accelerated and large accelerated filer" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one).

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 12b-2). Yes No

As of May 1, 2006 there were 69,946,861 common shares, \$0.01 par value per share, outstanding.

QUANTA CAPITAL HOLDINGS LTD.

INDEX TO FORM 10-Q

		Page No.
PART I.	FINANCIAL INFORMATION	
Item 1	Financial Statements	
	Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets at March 31, 2006	
	(unaudited) and December 31, 2005	<u>3</u>
	<u>Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations</u>	
	and Comprehensive Loss for the three months ended March 31,	
	2006 and 2005	<u>4</u>
	<u>Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of Changes in</u>	
	Shareholders' Equity for the three months ended March 31,	
	2006 and 2005	<u>5</u>
	<u>Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows</u>	
	for the three months ended March 31, 2006 and 2005	<u>6</u>
	Notes to the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial	
	<u>Statements</u>	<u>7</u>
Item 2	Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition	
	and Results of Operations	<u>21</u>
Item 3	Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk	<u>57</u>
Item 4	Controls and Procedures	<u>60</u>
PART II.	OTHER INFORMATION	
Item 1	<u>Legal Proceedings</u>	<u>61</u>
Item 1A	Risk Factors	<u>61</u>
Item 6	<u>Exhibits</u>	<u>62</u>
2		

Table of Contents

PART 1. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

QUANTA CAPITAL HOLDINGS LTD.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars except for share and per share amounts)

Assets Investments at fair value (amortized cost: March 31, 2006,			March 31, 2006 (unaudited)	D	ecember 31, 2005
Investments at fair value (amortized cost: March 31, 2006, \$822,806; December 31, 2005, \$736, 425)	Assets	,	(unuuuntuu)		
S822,806; December 31, 2005, \$736,425) Available for sale investments \$ 785,153 \$ 699,121 Available for sale investments 37,929 38,316 Total investments at fair value 823,082 737,437 Cash and cash equivalents 118,990 178,135 Restricted cash and cash equivalents 85,945 82,843 Accrued investment income 6,024 5,404 Premiums receivable 147,023 146,837 Other accounts receivable 198,341 190,353 Other accounts receivable for investments sold — 3,047 Deferred acquisition costs, net 28,718 33,117 Deferred reinsurance premiums 108,331 112,096 Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of \$5,751 4,276 5,034 (December 31, 2005; \$4,874) 4,276 5,034 Other assets 24,692 24,877 Other assets 3,579,973 \$1,552,091 Other assets 3,579,973 \$1,552,091 Other assets 3,594 2,428 Other assets 4,476 <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>					
Available for sale investments Trading investments related to deposit liabilities 37,929 38,316 Trading investments at fair value 823,082 737,437 Cash and cash equivalents 118,990 178,135 Restricted cash and cash equivalents 85,945 82,843 Accrued investment income 6,024 5,404 Premiums receivable 147,023 146,837 Losses and loss adjustment expenses recoverable 198,341 190,353 Other accounts receivable 10,262 11,434 Net receivable for investments sold	·				
Trading investments related to deposit liabilities 37,929 38,316 Total investments at fair value 823,082 737,437 Cash and cash equivalents 85,945 82,843 Restricted cash and cash equivalents 85,945 82,843 Accrued investment income 6,024 5,404 Premiums receivable 147,023 146,837 Losses and loss adjustment expenses recoverable 198,341 190,353 Other accounts receivable 10,262 11,434 Net receivable for investments sold 28,718 3,117 Deferred acquisition costs, net 28,718 33,117 Deferred acquisition costs, net 28,718 3,427 Other acquisition costs, net	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	\$	785,153	\$	699.121
Total investments at fair value 823,082 737,437 Cash and cash equivalents 118,990 178,135 Restricted cash and cash equivalents 85,945 82,843 Accrued investment income 6,024 5,404 Premiums receivable 147,023 146,837 Losses and loss adjustment expenses recoverable 198,341 190,353 Other accounts receivable 10,262 11,434 Net receivable for investments sold — 3,047 Deferred acquisition costs, net 28,718 33,117 Deferred reinsurance premiums 108,331 112,096 Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of \$5,751 4,276 5,034 Goodwill and other intangible assets 24,692 24,877 Other assets 24,692 24,877 Total assets 31,579,973 \$1,552,091 Liabilities \$1,579,973 \$1,552,091 Reserve for losses and loss expenses \$52,252 \$33,983 Uncarned premiums 316,347 336,550 Environmental liabilities assumed 4,447		·	•	·	•
Cash and cash equivalents 118,990 178,135 Restricted cash and cash equivalents 85,945 82,843 Accrued investment income 6,024 5,404 Premiums receivable 147,023 146,837 Losses and loss adjustment expenses recoverable 198,341 190,353 Other accounts receivable 10,262 11,434 Net receivable for investments sold 28,718 33,117 Deferred acquisition costs, net 28,718 33,117 Deferred reinsurance premiums 108,331 112,096 Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of \$5,751 (December 31, 2005; \$4,874) 4,276 5,034 Goodwill and other intangible assets 24,692 24,877 Other assets 24,289 21,477 Total assets 315,79,973 1,552,091 Reserve for losses and loss expenses \$592,252 \$33,983 Uncarned premiums 316,347 336,550 Environmental liabilities assumed 4,447 5,911 Reinsurance balances payable 61,647 57,499 Accounts	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		•		*
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 85,945 82,843 Accrued investment income 6,024 5,404 Premiums receivable 147,023 146,837 Losses and loss adjustment expenses recoverable 198,341 190,353 Other accounts receivable 10,262 11,434 Net receivable for investments sold — 3,047 Deferred acquisition costs, net 28,718 33,117 Deferred reinsurance premiums 108,331 112,096 Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of \$5,751 4,276 5,034 Goodwill and other intangible assets 24,692 24,877 Other assets 24,289 21,477 Total assets 5,579,973 1,552,091 Liabilities 8 1,579,973 1,552,091 Reserve for losses and loss expenses \$ 592,252 \$ 533,983 Unearned premiums 316,347 336,550 Environmental liabilities assumed 4,447 5,911 Reinsurance balances payable 16,647 5,749 Accounts payable and accrued expenses			•		
Accrued investment income 6,024 5,404 Premiums receivable 147,023 146,837 Losses and loss adjustment expenses recoverable 198,341 190,353 Other accounts receivable 10,262 11,434 Net receivable for investments sold — 3,047 Deferred acquisition costs, net 28,718 33,117 Deferred reinsurance premiums 108,331 112,096 Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of \$5,751 4,276 5,034 Goodwill and other intangible assets 24,692 24,877 Other assets 1,579,73 1,552,091 Total assets 1,579,73 1,552,091 Liabilities 1 316,347 336,550 Reserve for losses and loss expenses \$592,252 \$33,983 Unearned premiums 316,347 336,550 Environmental liabilities assumed 4,447 5,911 Recipable and accrued expenses 28,229 39,051 Net payable for investments sold 12,707 1 Deposit liabilities 5,0797 <	-		•		
Premiums receivable 147,023 146,837 Losses and loss adjustment expenses recoverable 198,341 190,353 Other accounts receivable 10,262 11,434 Net receivable for investments sold — 3,047 Deferred acquisition costs, net 28,718 33,117 Deferred reinsurance premiums 108,331 112,096 Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of \$5,751 4,276 5,034 Goodwill and other intangible assets 24,692 24,877 Other assets 24,289 21,477 Total assets 5,157,973 1,552,091 Liabilities 8 1,579,973 1,552,091 Reserve for losses and loss expenses \$592,252 \$33,983 Unearned premiums 316,347 336,550 Environmental liabilities assumed 4,447 5,911 Reinsurance balances payable 61,647 57,499 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 28,229 39,051 Net payable for investments sold 12,707 — Deposit liabilities 50,797 <td></td> <td></td> <td>*</td> <td></td> <td></td>			*		
Losses and loss adjustment expenses recoverable 198,341 190,353 Other accounts receivable 10,262 11,434 Net receivable for investments sold — 3,047 Deferred acquisition costs, net 28,718 33,117 Deferred reinsurance premiums 108,331 112,096 Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of \$5,751 4,276 5,034 Goodwill and other intangible assets 24,692 24,877 Other assets 24,289 21,477 Total assets 1,579,973 1,552,091 Liabilities 8 1,579,973 1,552,091 Liabilities 8 1,579,973 1,552,091 Liabilities 8 1,579,973 1,552,091 Liabilities 8 5,92,252 533,983 Uncarned premiums 316,347 336,550 Environmental liabilities assumed 4,447 5,911 Reinsurance balances payable 61,647 57,499 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 28,229 39,051 Net payable for investments	Premiums receivable		•		
Other accounts receivable 10,262 11,434 Net receivable for investments sold 3,047 Deferred acquisition costs, net 28,718 33,117 Deferred reinsurance premiums 108,331 112,096 Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of \$5,751 Topecember 31, 2005: \$4,874 4,276 5,034 Goodwill and other intangible assets 24,692 24,877 Other assets 24,289 21,477 Total assets \$1,579,973 \$1,552,091 Liabilities \$1,579,973 \$1,552,091 Reserve for losses and loss expenses \$592,252 \$533,983 Uncarned premiums 316,347 336,550 Environmental liabilities assumed 4,447 5,911 Reinsurance balances payable 61,647 57,499 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 28,229 39,051 Net payable for investments sold 12,707 — Deposit liabilities 50,797 51,509 Deferred income and other liabilities 9,627 9,729 Junior subordinated debentures 61	Losses and loss adjustment expenses recoverable		•		
Net receivable for investments sold — 3,047 Deferred acquisition costs, net 28,718 33,117 Deferred reinsurance premiums 108,331 112,096 Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of \$5,751 4,276 5,034 Goodwill and other intangible assets 24,692 24,877 Other assets 24,289 21,477 Total assets 1,579,973 \$ 1,552,091 Liabilities \$ 1,579,973 \$ 1,552,091 Reserve for losses and loss expenses \$ 592,252 \$ 533,983 Unearned premiums 316,347 336,550 Environmental liabilities assumed 4,447 5,911 Reinsurance balances payable 61,647 57,499 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 28,229 39,051 Net payable for investments sold 12,707 — Deposit liabilities 50,797 51,509 Deferred income and other liabilities 9,627 9,729 Junior subordinated debentures 61,857 61,857 Total liabilities \$ 74,998 71,838	*		•		•
Deferred acquisition costs, net 28,718 33,117 Deferred reinsurance premiums 108,331 112,096 Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of \$5,751 \$ 1,276 \$ 5,034 Goodwill and other intangible assets 24,692 24,877 Other assets 24,289 21,477 Total assets 1,579,973 \$ 1,552,091 Liabilities \$ 1,579,973 \$ 1,552,091 Reserve for losses and loss expenses \$ 592,252 \$ 533,983 Unearned premiums 316,347 336,550 Environmental liabilities assumed 4,447 5,911 Reinsurance balances payable 61,647 57,499 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 28,229 39,051 Net payable for investments sold 12,707 — Deposit liabilities 50,797 51,509 Deferred income and other liabilities 9,627 9,729 Junior subordinated debentures 61,857 61,857 Total liabilities \$ 1,137,910 \$ 1,096,089 Mandatorily redeemable preferred shares \$ 74,998	Net receivable for investments sold				
Deferred reinsurance premiums	Deferred acquisition costs, net		28,718		
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of \$5,751 4,276 5,034 Goodwill and other intangible assets 24,692 24,877 Other assets 24,289 21,477 Total assets 1,579,973 1,552,091 Liabilities 1,579,973 1,552,091 Reserve for losses and loss expenses 592,252 533,983 Unearned premiums 316,347 336,550 Environmental liabilities assumed 4,447 5,911 Reinsurance balances payable 61,647 57,499 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 28,229 39,051 Net payable for investments sold 12,707 — Deposit liabilities 50,797 51,509 Deferred income and other liabilities 9,627 9,729 Junior subordinated debentures 61,857 61,857 Total liabilities \$1,137,910 \$1,096,089 Mandatorily redeemable preferred shares \$0.01 par value; 25,000,000 shares authorized; 3,130,525 issued and outstanding at March 31, 2006 and 3,000,000 issued and outstanding at Ceember 31, 2005 74,998 71,838 Commitments and c	•		•		
(December 31, 2005: \$4,874) 4,276 5,034 Goodwill and other intangible assets 24,692 24,877 Other assets 24,289 21,477 Total assets 1,579,973 \$ 1,552,091 Liabilities 8 1,579,973 \$ 1,552,091 Reserve for losses and loss expenses \$ 592,252 \$ 533,983 Unearned premiums 316,347 336,550 Environmental liabilities assumed 4,447 5,911 Reinsurance balances payable 61,647 57,499 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 28,229 39,051 Net payable for investments sold 12,707 — Deposit liabilities 50,797 51,509 Deferred income and other liabilities 9,627 9,729 Junior subordinated debentures 61,857 61,857 Total liabilities \$ 1,137,910 \$ 1,096,089 Mandatorily redeemable preferred shares (\$0.01 par value; 25,000,000 shares authorized; 3,130,525 issued and outstanding at March 31, 2006 and 3,000,000 issued and outstanding at March 31, 2006 and 2,000,000 issued and outstanding at March 31, 2006 and 2,000,000 issued and outstanding at March 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005) 699 699	<u>-</u>		,		,
Goodwill and other intangible assets 24,692 24,877 Other assets 24,289 21,477 Total assets \$1,579,973 \$1,552,091 Liabilities \$1,579,973 \$1,552,091 Reserve for losses and loss expenses \$592,252 \$533,983 Unearned premiums 316,347 336,550 Environmental liabilities assumed 4,447 5,911 Reinsurance balances payable 61,647 57,499 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 28,229 39,051 Net payable for investments sold 12,707 — Deposit liabilities 50,797 51,509 Deferred income and other liabilities 9,627 9,729 Junior subordinated debentures 61,857 61,857 Total liabilities \$1,137,910 \$1,096,089 Mandatorily redeemable preferred shares (\$0.01 par value; 25,000,000 shares authorized; 3,130,525 issued 31,3910 \$1,096,089 Mandatorily redeemable preferred shares (\$0.01 par value; 20,000,000 shares authorized; 69,946,861 issued 374,998 71,838 Commitments and contingencies (Note			4,276		5,034
Other assets 24,289 21,477 Total assets \$1,579,973 \$1,552,091 Liabilities \$1,579,973 \$1,552,091 Reserve for losses and loss expenses \$592,252 \$533,983 Unearned premiums 316,347 336,550 Environmental liabilities assumed 4,447 5,911 Reinsurance balances payable 61,647 57,499 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 28,229 39,051 Net payable for investments sold 12,707 — Deposit liabilities 50,797 51,509 Deferred income and other liabilities 9,627 9,729 Junior subordinated debentures 61,857 61,857 Total liabilities \$1,137,910 \$1,096,089 Mandatorily redeemable preferred shares (\$0.01 par value; 25,000,000 shares authorized; 3,130,525 issued and outstanding at March 31, 2006 and 3,000,000 issued and outstanding at December 31, 2005) \$74,998 \$71,838 Commitments and contingencies (Note 7) Shareholders' equity \$69 699 Common shares (\$0.01 par value; 200,000,000 shares authorized; 69,946,861 issued and outstanding at Mar			•		•
Total assets \$ 1,579,973 \$ 1,552,091 Liabilities Reserve for losses and loss expenses \$ 592,252 \$ 533,983 Unearned premiums 316,347 336,550 Environmental liabilities assumed 4,447 5,911 Reinsurance balances payable 61,647 57,499 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 28,229 39,051 Net payable for investments sold 12,707 — Deposit liabilities 50,797 51,509 Deferred income and other liabilities 9,627 9,729 Junior subordinated debentures 61,857 61,857 Total liabilities \$ 1,137,910 \$ 1,096,089 Mandatorily redeemable preferred shares (\$0.01 par value; 25,000,000 shares authorized; 3,130,525 issued \$ 74,998 \$ 71,838 Commitments and contingencies (Note 7) Shareholders' equity \$ 74,998 \$ 71,838 Common shares (\$0.01 par value; 200,000,000 shares authorized; 69,946,861 issued 699 699 Additional paid-in capital 582,298 581,929			•		
Liabilities Reserve for losses and loss expenses \$ 592,252 \$ 533,983 Unearned premiums 316,347 336,550 Environmental liabilities assumed 4,447 5,911 Reinsurance balances payable 61,647 57,499 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 28,229 39,051 Net payable for investments sold 12,707 — Deposit liabilities 50,797 51,509 Deferred income and other liabilities 9,627 9,729 Junior subordinated debentures 61,857 61,857 Total liabilities \$ 1,137,910 \$ 1,096,089 Mandatorily redeemable preferred shares (\$0.01 par value; 25,000,000 shares authorized; 3,130,525 issued and outstanding at March 31, 2006 and 3,000,000 issued and outstanding at December 31, 2005) \$ 74,998 \$ 71,838 Commitments and contingencies (Note 7) Shareholders' equity Common shares (\$0.01 par value; 200,000,000 shares authorized; 69,946,861 issued and outstanding at March 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005) 699 699 Additional paid-in capital 582,298 581,929	Total assets	\$	•	\$	•
Unearned premiums 316,347 336,550 Environmental liabilities assumed 4,447 5,911 Reinsurance balances payable 61,647 57,499 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 28,229 39,051 Net payable for investments sold 12,707 — Deposit liabilities 50,797 51,509 Deferred income and other liabilities 9,627 9,729 Junior subordinated debentures 61,857 61,857 Total liabilities \$1,137,910 \$1,096,089 Mandatorily redeemable preferred shares (\$0.01 par value; 25,000,000 shares authorized; 3,130,525 issued and outstanding at March 31, 2006 and 3,000,000 issued and outstanding at December 31, 2005) \$74,998 \$71,838 Commitments and contingencies (Note 7) Shareholders' equity \$74,998 \$71,838 Common shares (\$0.01 par value; 200,000,000 shares authorized; 69,946,861 issued and outstanding at March 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005) 699 699 Additional paid-in capital 582,298 581,929	Liabilities		, ,		
Unearned premiums 316,347 336,550 Environmental liabilities assumed 4,447 5,911 Reinsurance balances payable 61,647 57,499 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 28,229 39,051 Net payable for investments sold 12,707 — Deposit liabilities 50,797 51,509 Deferred income and other liabilities 9,627 9,729 Junior subordinated debentures 61,857 61,857 Total liabilities 9,627 9,729 Junior subordinated debentures 61,857 61,857 Total liabilities 9,627 9,729 Junior subordinated debentures 61,857 61,857 Total liabilities 9,627 9,729 Junior subordinated debentures 81,137,910 \$1,096,089 Mandatorily redeemable preferred shares (\$0.01 par value; 25,000,000 shares authorized; 3,130,525 issued 31,209 \$74,998 71,838 Commitments and contingencies (Note 7) Shareholders' equity 74,998 71,838 71,838 Common shares (\$0.01 par value; 200,000,000 shares authorized; 69,946,861 issued 699 699	Reserve for losses and loss expenses	\$	592,252	\$	533,983
Environmental liabilities assumed 4,447 5,911 Reinsurance balances payable 61,647 57,499 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 28,229 39,051 Net payable for investments sold 12,707 — Deposit liabilities 50,797 51,509 Deferred income and other liabilities 9,627 9,729 Junior subordinated debentures 61,857 61,857 Total liabilities \$ 1,137,910 \$ 1,096,089 Mandatorily redeemable preferred shares (\$0.01 par value; 25,000,000 shares authorized; 3,130,525 issued and outstanding at March 31, 2006 and 3,000,000 issued and outstanding at December 31, 2005) \$ 74,998 \$ 71,838 Commitments and contingencies (Note 7) Shareholders' equity 5 74,998 \$ 71,838 Common shares (\$0.01 par value; 200,000,000 shares authorized; 69,946,861 issued and outstanding at March 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005) 699 699 Additional paid-in capital 582,298 581,929					
Reinsurance balances payable 61,647 57,499 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 28,229 39,051 Net payable for investments sold 12,707 — Deposit liabilities 50,797 51,509 Deferred income and other liabilities 9,627 9,729 Junior subordinated debentures 61,857 61,857 Total liabilities \$1,137,910 \$1,096,089 Mandatorily redeemable preferred shares (\$0.01 par value; 25,000,000 shares authorized; 3,130,525 issued and outstanding at March 31, 2006 and 3,000,000 issued and outstanding at December 31, 2005) \$74,998 \$71,838 Commitments and contingencies (Note 7) Shareholders' equity \$74,998 \$71,838 Common shares (\$0.01 par value; 200,000,000 shares authorized; 69,946,861 issued and outstanding at March 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005) 699 699 Additional paid-in capital 582,298 581,929					
Accounts payable and accrued expenses Net payable for investments sold 12,707 Deposit liabilities 50,797 51,509 Deferred income and other liabilities 9,627 Junior subordinated debentures 61,857 Total liabilities \$1,137,910 \$1,096,089 Mandatorily redeemable preferred shares (\$0.01 par value; 25,000,000 shares authorized; 3,130,525 issued and outstanding at March 31, 2006 and 3,000,000 issued and outstanding at December 31, 2005) Commitments and contingencies (Note 7) Shareholders' equity Common shares (\$0.01 par value; 200,000,000 shares authorized; 69,946,861 issued and outstanding at March 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005) 699 Additional paid-in capital	Reinsurance balances payable		61,647		
Net payable for investments sold Deposit liabilities Deferred income and other liabilities Deferred income and other liabilities 9,627 Junior subordinated debentures 61,857 Total liabilities \$1,137,910 \$1,096,089 Mandatorily redeemable preferred shares (\$0.01 par value; 25,000,000 shares authorized; 3,130,525 issued and outstanding at March 31, 2006 and 3,000,000 issued and outstanding at December 31, 2005) Commitments and contingencies (Note 7) Shareholders' equity Common shares (\$0.01 par value; 200,000,000 shares authorized; 69,946,861 issued and outstanding at March 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005) Additional paid-in capital	_ ·		28,229		39,051
Deferred income and other liabilities 9,627 9,729 Junior subordinated debentures 61,857 Total liabilities \$1,137,910 \$1,096,089 Mandatorily redeemable preferred shares (\$0.01 par value; 25,000,000 shares authorized; 3,130,525 issued and outstanding at March 31, 2006 and 3,000,000 issued and outstanding at December 31, 2005) \$74,998 \$71,838 Commitments and contingencies (Note 7) Shareholders' equity Common shares (\$0.01 par value; 200,000,000 shares authorized; 69,946,861 issued and outstanding at March 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005) 699 Additional paid-in capital 582,298 581,929	Net payable for investments sold		12,707		_
Junior subordinated debentures Total liabilities \$1,137,910 \$1,096,089 Mandatorily redeemable preferred shares (\$0.01 par value; 25,000,000 shares authorized; 3,130,525 issued and outstanding at March 31, 2006 and 3,000,000 issued and outstanding at December 31, 2005) Commitments and contingencies (Note 7) Shareholders' equity Common shares (\$0.01 par value; 200,000,000 shares authorized; 69,946,861 issued and outstanding at March 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005) Additional paid-in capital	Deposit liabilities		50,797		51,509
Total liabilities \$ 1,137,910 \$ 1,096,089 Mandatorily redeemable preferred shares (\$0.01 par value; 25,000,000 shares authorized; 3,130,525 issued and outstanding at March 31, 2006 and 3,000,000 issued and outstanding at December 31, 2005) \$ 74,998 \$ 71,838 Commitments and contingencies (Note 7) Shareholders' equity Common shares (\$0.01 par value; 200,000,000 shares authorized; 69,946,861 issued and outstanding at March 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005) 699 Additional paid-in capital \$ 582,298 \$ 581,929	Deferred income and other liabilities		9,627		9,729
Mandatorily redeemable preferred shares (\$0.01 par value; 25,000,000 shares authorized; 3,130,525 issued and outstanding at March 31, 2006 and 3,000,000 issued and outstanding at December 31, 2005) Commitments and contingencies (Note 7) Shareholders' equity Common shares (\$0.01 par value; 200,000,000 shares authorized; 69,946,861 issued and outstanding at March 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005) Additional paid-in capital March 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005) 699 699 699 699	Junior subordinated debentures		61,857		61,857
(\$0.01 par value; 25,000,000 shares authorized; 3,130,525 issued and outstanding at March 31, 2006 and 3,000,000 issued and outstanding at December 31, 2005) \$ 74,998 \$ 71,838 Commitments and contingencies (Note 7) Shareholders' equity Common shares (\$0.01 par value; 200,000,000 shares authorized; 69,946,861 issued and outstanding at March 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005) 699 Additional paid-in capital 582,298 581,929	Total liabilities	\$	1,137,910	\$	1,096,089
and outstanding at March 31, 2006 and 3,000,000 issued and outstanding at December 31, 2005) \$ 74,998 \$ 71,838 Commitments and contingencies (Note 7) Shareholders' equity Common shares (\$0.01 par value; 200,000,000 shares authorized; 69,946,861 issued and outstanding at March 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005) 699 699 Additional paid-in capital 582,298 581,929	Mandatorily redeemable preferred shares				
outstanding at December 31, 2005) \$ 74,998 \$ 71,838 Commitments and contingencies (Note 7) Shareholders' equity Common shares (\$0.01 par value; 200,000,000 shares authorized; 69,946,861 issued and outstanding at March 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005) 699 Additional paid-in capital 582,298 581,929	(\$0.01 par value; 25,000,000 shares authorized; 3,130,525 issued				
Commitments and contingencies (Note 7) Shareholders' equity Common shares (\$0.01 par value; 200,000,000 shares authorized; 69,946,861 issued and outstanding at March 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005) 699 Additional paid-in capital 582,298 581,929	and outstanding at March 31, 2006 and 3,000,000 issued and				
Shareholders' equity Common shares (\$0.01 par value; 200,000,000 shares authorized; 69,946,861 issued and outstanding at March 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005) 699 699 Additional paid-in capital 582,298 581,929	outstanding at December 31, 2005)	\$	74,998	\$	71,838
Common shares (\$0.01 par value; 200,000,000 shares authorized; 69,946,861 issued and outstanding at March 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005) 699 Additional paid-in capital 582,298 581,929	Commitments and contingencies (Note 7)				
(\$0.01 par value; 200,000,000 shares authorized; 69,946,861 issued and outstanding at March 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005) 699 Additional paid-in capital 582,298 581,929	Shareholders' equity				
and outstanding at March 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005) 699 Additional paid-in capital 582,298 581,929	Common shares				
Additional paid-in capital 582,298 581,929	(\$0.01 par value; 200,000,000 shares authorized; 69,946,861 issued				
• •	and outstanding at March 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005)		699		699
	Additional paid-in capital		582,298		581,929
Accumulated deficit (216,145) (199,010)	Accumulated deficit		(216,145)		(199,010)
Accumulated other comprehensive income 213 546	Accumulated other comprehensive income		213		546
Total shareholders' equity \$ 367,065 \$ 384,164	Total shareholders' equity	\$	367,065	\$	384,164
Total liabilities, redeemable preferred shares and shareholders'	•				
equity \$ 1,579,973 \$ 1,552,091	equity	\$	1,579,973	\$	1,552,091

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements

3

Table of Contents

QUANTA CAPITAL HOLDINGS LTD. UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

(Expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars except for share and per share amounts)

	mo	r the three nths ended farch 31, 2006	mo	For the three months ended March 31, 2005	
Revenues					
Gross premiums written	\$	114,869	\$	172,726	
Net premiums written	\$	62,714	\$	142,877	
Change in net unearned premiums		16,854		(51,391)	
Net premiums earned		79,568		91,486	
Technical services revenues		7,741		7,263	
Net investment income		10,776		5,225	
Net realized losses on investments		(8,320)		(483)	
Net foreign exchange losses		(319)		(112)	
Other income		1,037		1,573	
Total revenues		90,483		104,952	
Expenses					
Net losses and loss expenses		54,382		57,496	
Acquisition expenses		13,933		20,477	
Direct technical services costs		5,000		4,861	
General and administrative expenses		30,023		20,871	
Interest expense		1,262		826	
Depreciation of fixed assets and amortization of intangible assets		1,070		842	
Total expenses		105,670		105,373	
Loss before income taxes		(15,187)		(421)	
Income tax expense		32		223	
Net loss		(15,219)		(644)	
Dividends on preferred shares		1,916			
Net loss available to ordinary shareholders		(17,135)		(644)	
Other comprehensive loss					
Net loss		(15,219)		(644)	
Net unrealized investment losses arising during the period, net of				, ,	
income taxes		(8,555)		(7,763)	
Foreign currency translation adjustments		(98)		(5)	
		8,320		483	
		•			

Reclassification of net realized losses on investments included in net loss, net of income taxes Other comprehensive loss (7,285)(333)Comprehensive loss \$ \$ (15,552)(7,929)Weighted average common share and common share equivalents – basic 69,946,861 56,798,218 diluted 69,946,861 56,798,218 \$ Basic loss per share (0.24)\$ (0.01)Diluted loss per share \$ \$ (0.24)(0.01)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements

4

Table of Contents

QUANTA CAPITAL HOLDINGS LTD.

UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (Expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars except for share and per share amounts)

	me	or the three onths ended March 31, 2006	mc N	For the three months ended March 31, 2005	
Share capital – preferred shares of par value \$0.01 each	\$		\$		
Share capital – common shares of par value \$0.01 each					
Balance at beginning of period		699		568	
Issued during period					
Balance at end of period		699		568	
Additional paid-in capital					
Balance at beginning of period		581,929		523,771	
Non-cash stock compensation expense		369			
Balance at end of period		582,298		523,771	
Accumulated deficit					
Balance at beginning of period		(199,010)		(93,058)	
Net loss available to common shareholders for period		(17,135)		(644)	
Balance at end of period		(216,145)		(93,702)	
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)					
Balance at beginning of period		546		(372)	
Net change in unrealized losses on investments, net of income taxes		(235)		(7,280)	
Foreign currency translation adjustments		(98)		(5)	
Balance at end of period		213		(7,657)	
Total shareholders' equity	\$	367,065	\$	422,980	

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements

Table of Contents

QUANTA CAPITAL HOLDINGS LTD. UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars)

	mo	or the three onths ended March 31, 2006	mo	For the three months ended March 31, 2005	
Cash flows from operating activities Net loss	\$	(15,219)	\$	(644)	
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities	Ф	(13,219)	Ф	(044)	
Depreciation of property and equipment		885		657	
Amortization of intangible assets		185		185	
Amortization of net discounts on investments		(938)		375	
Net realized losses on investments		8,320		483	
Net change in fair value of derivative instruments		101		(470)	
Non-cash stock compensation expense		369		_	
Changes in assets and liabilities:					
Restricted cash and cash equivalents		(3,102)		(10,959)	
Accrued investment income		(620)		206	
Premiums receivable		(186)		(38,793)	
Losses and loss adjustment expenses recoverable		(7,988)		(11,355)	
Deferred acquisition costs		4,399		(4,789)	
Deferred reinsurance premiums		3,765		(10,029)	
Other accounts receivable		1,172		2,151	
Other assets		(2,812)		(9,820)	
Reserve for losses and loss expenses		58,269		55,609	
Unearned premiums		(20,203)		61,420	
Environmental liabilities assumed		(1,464)		(112)	
Reinsurance balances payable		4,148		1,611	
Accounts payable and accrued expenses		(10,822)		(2,374)	
Deposit liabilities		(712)		(689)	
Deferred income and other liabilities		(102)		(846)	
Net cash provided by operating activities		17,445		31,817	
Cash flows used in investing activities					
Proceeds from sale of fixed maturities and short-term investments		387,083		288,978	
Purchases of fixed maturities and short-term investments		(464,790)		(319,003)	
Purchases of property and equipment		(127)		(1,173)	
Net cash used in investing activities		(77,834)		(31,198)	
Cash flows provided by financing activities					
Proceeds from issuance of preferred shares, net of offering costs		3,160		_	

Dividends on preferred shares	(1,916)	_
Proceeds from junior subordinated debentures, net of issuance		
costs		19,591
Net cash provided by financing activities	1,244	19,591
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents	(59,145)	20,210
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period	178,135	32,775
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period	\$ 118,990	\$ 52,985

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements

6

Table of Contents

QUANTA CAPITAL HOLDINGS LTD.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars except for share amounts, or as otherwise stated)

1. Description of business and basis of presentation

Quanta Capital Holdings Ltd. ("Quanta Holdings"), incorporated on May 23, 2003, is a holding company organized under the laws of Bermuda. Quanta Holdings and its subsidiaries, collectively referred to as the "Company" were formed to provide specialty insurance, reinsurance, risk assessment and risk technical services and products on a global basis. Quanta Holdings conducts its insurance and reinsurance operations principally through wholly-owned subsidiaries incorporated in Bermuda, the United States of America (the "U.S.") and Europe.

On December 20, 2005, Quanta Holdings, pursuant to an Underwriting Agreement dated December 14, 2005 with Friedman, Billings, Ramsey & Co. ("FBR") and BB&T Capital Markets (the "Underwriters"), sold 3,000,000 10.25% Series A Preferred Shares. On January 11, 2006, the Underwriters purchased an additional 130,525 10.25% Series A Preferred Shares following the exercise of the over-allotment option that was granted to them on December 14, 2005.

On December 20, 2005, Quanta Holdings sold 13,136,841 common shares for cash pursuant to an Underwriting Agreement dated December 14, 2005 with the Underwriters, which includes the exercise in full of the Underwriters' over-allotment option of 1,713,501 common shares.

On March 2, 2006, A.M. Best announced that it had downgraded the financial strength rating assigned to Quanta Reinsurance Ltd. ("Quanta Bermuda") and its subsidiaries and Quanta Europe Ltd. ("Quanta Europe"), to "B++" (very good), under review with negative implications. The A.M. Best "A" (excellent) rated Lloyd's market, including our Lloyd's syndicate, was not subject to the rating downgrade. The downgrade and qualification of the Company's rating with negative implications has significantly adversely affected the Company's business, its opportunities to write new and renewal business and its ability to retain key employees. A.M. Best may further downgrade the Company's financial strength ratings.

A downgrade in the Company's rating below "B++" (very good) will cause a default under its credit facility. The Company's obligations under the credit facility are currently fully secured by investments and cash. If a default occurs under the credit facility, the Company's lenders may require the Company to cash collateralize a portion or all of the outstanding letters of credit issued under the facility, which may be accomplished through the substitution or liquidation of collateral. Among other things, the lenders would also have the right to cancel outstanding letters of credit issued under the facility and we would be limited in releasing collateral without the lenders' consent. Further, a

downgrade in the Company's rating below "B++" (very good) will trigger termination provisions or require the posting of additional security in certain of the Company's other insurance and reinsurance contracts. As a result, the Company may be required to post additional security either through the issuance of letters of credit or the placement of securities in trust under the terms of those insurance or reinsurance contracts.

The Company is not writing new business in its professional liability, fidelity, environmental and marine and aviation insurance product lines or in its reinsurance and structured product lines and it is no longer seeking new business in its surety line and will cease seeking any new business in its marine and aviation reinsurance, casualty reinsurance and trade credit and political risk insurance lines during the second quarter of 2006. Certain of the Company's insurance and many of its reinsurance contracts contain termination rights triggered by the A.M. Best rating downgrade. Additionally, many of the Company's other insurance contracts and certain of its reinsurance contracts provide for cancellation at the option of the policyholder regardless of the Company's financial strength rating, including those contracts that are part of the Company's residential builders' and contractors' program, or the HBW program. As of April 30, 2006, the Company had received notice of cancellation on approximately 5.7% of its in-force policies, calculated using gross premiums written as a percentage of total gross written premiums during 2005. Based on discussions with the program manager of the HBW program, the Company understands that the program manager will divert a substantial portion of the HBW

7

Table of Contents

QUANTA CAPITAL HOLDINGS LTD.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars except for share amounts, or as otherwise stated)

program business to other carriers during 2006. As a result, the Company currently estimates that the gross premiums written under the HBW program during 2006 will be less than 35% of the gross premiums written during 2005. Further, the Company has also been notified by several significant clients in its insurance and reinsurance product lines that they do not intend to renew their contracts with the Company. The Company has also been removed from the approved listing of several of its important brokers, including Aon Corporation and Marsh Inc. The downgrade of the Company's financial rating or the continued qualification of the Company's current rating continues to cause concern about its viability among brokers and other marketing sources, resulting in a movement of business away from the Company to other carriers. The Company also believes that the publicity around the recent downgrade of its financial rating is adversely affecting its Lloyd's operations although Syndicate 4000 is part of Lloyd's A.M. Best "A" rated platform.

Following the Company's recent ratings downgrade by A.M. Best, Lloyd's has agreed with the Company that in order to benefit the continued underwriting of Syndicate 4000 in the Lloyd's of London market during the 2007 underwriting year, Syndicate 4000 would be better served by a diversification of its capital base with one or more third-party capital sources, if the Company would be able to secure such capital. In particular, the Company believes Syndicate 4000 may receive an increased submission flow if its capital base is diversified through one or more third-party capital sources. Capital for the 2007 underwriting year, including any capital from a third-party source, must be in place by November 30, 2006. If the Company obtains capital provided by any third-party source, it would either add it to its existing funds or it may be able to remove some of the funds it has deposited to support its underwriting capacity of its Lloyd's syndicate. However, the Company can make no assurances that it will be successful in obtaining any third-party source of capital to support its Lloyd's syndicate.

As a result of the matters described in Note 23 to the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2005, included in the Company's Form 10-K, and in Note 9 to these Unaudited Consolidated Financials Statements for the three months ended March 31, 2006, due to the general uncertainty surrounding the Company resulting from A.M. Best's downgrade of the Company's financial strength ratings and decision to explore strategic alternatives, the Company has concluded that it may no longer be able to hold its securities for a sufficient period of time to allow recovery. Accordingly, during the three months ended March 31, 2006, the Company has recorded \$6.1 million in other than temporary impairment losses. The realization of these losses represents the maximum amount of potential losses in the Company's investment securities if it sold all of these securities as of March 31, 2006 and is primarily attributable to changes in interest rates and not changes in credit quality. As a result of this decision, the affected investments were reduced to their estimated fair value, which becomes their new cost basis. The recognition of the losses has no effect on the Company's shareholders' equity, the market value of the Company's investments, the Company's cash flows or the Company's liquidity. It is possible that the impairment factors evaluated by the Company and fair values will change in subsequent periods, resulting in additional material impairment charges.

In addition, during the three months ended March 31, 2006, the Company has incurred additional severance costs of approximately \$5.2 million as a result of the Company analyzing its business lines, position in the market and internal operations following the recent downgrade of the Company's financial strength ratings by A.M. Best.

Interim financial information

These unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America ("GAAP") for interim financial information and with the instructions for Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, certain information and footnote

8

Table of Contents

QUANTA CAPITAL HOLDINGS LTD.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars except for share amounts, or as otherwise stated)

disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in accordance with GAAP have been condensed, or omitted, pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC"). In the opinion of management, the condensed consolidated financial statements include all adjustments necessary (consisting of only normal and recurring accruals) for a fair statement of the financial position and results of operations as at the end of and for the interim periods presented. The results of operations for any interim period are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for any other interim period or for a full year. All significant inter-company balances and transactions have been eliminated on consolidation.

These unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the Company's audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2005, included in the Form 10-K filed by the Company with the SEC on March 31, 2006.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities reported at the date of the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of

revenues and expenses during the reporting period. While management believes the amounts included in the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements reflect management's best estimates and assumptions, the actual results could ultimately be materially different from the amounts currently provided for in the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements. The Company's principal estimates and assumptions relate to the development and determination of the following:

- reserves for losses and loss adjustment expenses;
- certain estimated premiums written, unearned premiums and receivables;
- reinsurance balances recoverable;
- the valuation of goodwill and intangible assets;
- environmental liabilities assumed;
- investment valuations:
- annual incentive plan provisions; and
- deferred income taxes and liabilities.
- 2. Significant accounting policies

A detailed discussion and analysis of the Company's significant accounting policies is provided in the notes to the Company's audited consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2005 included in its Form 10-K.

Accounting for stock-based compensation

The Company has a long-term stock-based employee incentive plan (the "Incentive Plan"), which is described more fully in Note 8. Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company accounted for the Incentive Plan under the recognition and measurement provisions of APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees ("APB 25") and related Interpretations, as permitted by FASB Statement No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation ("SFAS 123"). No stock-based employee compensation cost was recognized in the Statement of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2005 or 2004, as all options granted under the Incentive Plan had an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant. Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the fair value recognition provisions of FASB Statement No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment ("SFAS 123(R)"), using the modified-prospective-transition method. Under that transition method,

9

Table of Contents

QUANTA CAPITAL HOLDINGS LTD. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars except for share amounts, or as otherwise stated)

compensation cost recognized in the first quarter of 2006 includes: (a) compensation cost for all share-based payments granted prior to, but not yet vested as of January 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the original provisions of SFAS 123, and (b) compensation cost for all share-based payments granted subsequent to January 1, 2006, based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 123(R). Results for prior periods have not been restated.

As a result of adopting SFAS 123(R) on January 1, 2006, the Company's loss before income taxes and net loss for the three months ended March 31, 2006, are \$0.4 million greater than if it had continued to account for share-based compensation under APB 25. Basic and diluted earnings per share for the period ended March 31, 2006 would have been \$(0.24), which is the same result as if the Company had not adopted SFAS 123(R).

The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share if the Company had applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123 to options granted under the Company's stock option plans in the period prior to January 1, 2006. For purposes of this pro forma disclosure, the value of the options is estimated using a Black-Scholes-Merton option-pricing formula and amortized to expense over the options' vesting periods.

	mo	or the three onths ended och 31, 2006	moi	r the three nths ended ch 31, 2005
Stock compensation expense				
As reported	\$	(369)	\$	_
Additional stock-based employee compensation expense				
determined under fair value based method				(737)
Pro forma	\$	(369)	\$	(737)
Net loss				
As reported	\$	(17,135)	\$	(644)
Additional stock-based employee compensation expense				
determined under fair value based method				(737)
Pro forma	\$	(17,135)	\$	(1,381)
Basic loss per share				
As reported	\$	(0.24)	\$	(0.01)
Pro forma	\$	(0.24)	\$	(0.02)
Diluted loss per share				
As reported	\$	(0.24)	\$	(0.01)
Pro forma	\$	(0.24)	\$	(0.02)

3. Recent accounting pronouncements

In November 2005, the Financial Accounting Standards Board's ("FASB") issued FSP FAS 115-1 and FAS 124-1, "The meaning of other than temporary impairment and its Application to Certain Investments" ("FSP FAS 115-1"), which addresses the determination as to when an investment is considered impaired, whether that impairment is other than temporary, and the measurement of an impairment loss by reference to various existing accounting literature. FSP FAS 115-1 replaces the guidance set forth in paragraphs 10-18 of Emerging Issues Task Force ("EITF") 03-1 "The meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investments", with references to existing other-than-temporary impairment guidance. It also supersedes EITF D-44 "Recognition of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment upon the Planned Sale of a Security Whose Cost Exceeds Fair Value" and clarifies that an impairment should be recognized as a loss at a date no later than the date

10

Table of Contents

QUANTA CAPITAL HOLDINGS LTD.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars except for share amounts, or as otherwise stated)

the impairment is deemed other-than-temporary, even if the decision to sell has not been made. The new guidance will be applied prospectively and will be effective for other than temporary impairment analysis conducted from January 1, 2006. The adoption of FSP FAS 115-1 is not expected to have a material effect on the Company's consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

4. Segment information

The following tables summarize the Company's results before income taxes for each reportable segment for the three months ended March 31, 2006 and 2005 based on the reportable segments in effect during the quarter ended March 31, 2006.

During the year ended December 31, 2005, the Company changed the composition of its reportable segments such that the Lloyd's operating segment, which was previously a reportable segment, is aggregated with the Company's specialty insurance reportable segment. The three months ended March 31, 2005 comparatives have been restated to conform with the presentation for the three months ended March 31, 2006.

Three months ended March 31, 2006

				Adju	istments
Statement of operations	Specialty	Specialty U1	nderwriting	Technical	and
by segment	insurance	reinsurance	total	services elim	inations Consolidated
Direct insurance	\$ 75,845	\$ —\$	75,845	\$ —\$	 \$ 75,845
Reinsurance assumed	8,498	30,526	39,024		— 39,024
Total gross premiums					
written	84,343	30,526	114,869	_	— 114,869
Premiums ceded	(29,599)	(22,556)	(52,155)	_	- (52,155)
Net premiums written	\$ 54,744	\$ 7,970 \$	62,714	\$ —\$	 \$ 62,714
Net premiums earned	\$ 58,039	\$ 21,529 \$	79,568	\$ -\$	— \$ 79,568
Technical services					
revenues			_	8,145	(404) 7,741
Other income	130	874	1,004	120	— 1,124
Net losses and loss					
expenses	(38,731)	(15,761)	(54,492)		110 (54,382)
Direct technical services					
costs	_		_	(5,000)	(5,000)
Acquisition expenses	(8,366)	(5,567)	(13,933)		— (13,933)
General and		(/==	(2.2.1.)	
administrative expenses	(20,448)	(6,957)	(27,405)	(2,912)	294 (30,023)
Segment (loss) income	\$ (9,376)	\$ (5,882) \$	(15,258)	\$ 353 \$	— \$ (14,905)
Depreciation of fixed					
assets and amortization of					φ (1.050)
intangibles					\$ (1,070)
Interest expense					(1,262)
Net investment income					10,776
Net realized losses on					(0.220)
investments					(8,320)

Other losses	(87)
Net foreign exchange	
losses	(319)
Loss before income taxes	\$ (15,187)

11

Table of Contents

QUANTA CAPITAL HOLDINGS LTD. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars except for share amounts, or as otherwise stated)

Three months ended March 31, 2005

Statement of operations by segment Specialty insurance insurance Specialty reinsurance Underwriting Technical services Technical services and eliminations Consolidated services Direct insurance \$82,471 <td< th=""><th></th><th></th><th></th><th>Adjustme</th><th>ents</th></td<>				Adjustme	ents
Direct insurance \$ 82,471 \$ —\$ 82,471 \$ —\$ 90,255 Reinsurance assumed 848 89,407 90,255 — 90,255 Total gross premiums written 83,319 89,407 172,726 — 172,726 Premiums ceded (28,552) (1,297) (29,849) — (29,849) Net premiums written \$ 54,767 \$ 88,110 \$ 142,877 \$ —\$ \$ 142,877 Net premiums earned \$ 37,849 \$ 53,637 \$ 91,486 — \$ —\$ 91,486 Technical services — — — 8,112 (849) 7,263 Other income 254 790 1,044 10 — 1,054 Net losses and loss expenses (27,848) (29,648) (57,496) — — (57,496) Direct technical services costs — — — — — — (4,861) — — (57,496) Direct technical services — — — — — — (4,861) — — (20,477) General and administrative expenses (14,025) (5,156) (19,181) (2,539) 849 (20,871) Segment (loss) income \$ (10,443) \$ 5,819 \$ (4,624) \$ 722	Statement of operations	Specialty	Specialty Underwriting	Technical and	
Reinsurance assumed 848 89,407 90,255 — 90,255 Total gross premiums written 83,319 89,407 172,726 — — 172,726 Premiums ceded (28,552) (1,297) (29,849) — — (29,849) Net premiums written \$ 54,767 \$ 88,110 \$ 142,877 \$ — \$ 142,877 Net premiums earned \$ 37,849 \$ 53,637 \$ 91,486 — \$ 91,486 Technical services — — — 8,112 (849) 7,263 Other income 254 790 1,044 10 — 1,054 Net losses and loss expenses (27,848) (29,648) (57,496) — — (57,496) Direct technical services — — — (4,861) — (4,861) Acquisition expenses (6,673) (13,804) (20,477) — — (20,477) Segment (loss) income \$ (10,443) \$ 5,819 \$ (4,624) \$ 722 \$ — \$ (3,902) Depreciation of fixed assets and am	by segment	insurance	reinsurance total	services eliminati	ons Consolidated
Total gross premiums written 83,319 89,407 172,726 — — 172,726 Premiums ceded (28,552) (1,297) (29,849) — — (29,849) Net premiums written \$ 54,767 \$ 88,110 \$ 142,877 \$ — \$ — \$ 142,877 Net premiums earned \$ 37,849 \$ 53,637 \$ 91,486 \$ — \$ — \$ 91,486 Technical services revenues — 7 — 8,112 (849) 7,263 Other income 254 790 1,044 10 — 1,054 Net losses and loss expenses (27,848) (29,648) (57,496) — — (57,496) Direct technical services costs — 7 — (4,861) — (4,861) Acquisition expenses (6,673) (13,804) (20,477) — — (20,477) General and administrative expenses (14,025) (5,156) (19,181) (2,539) 849 (20,871) Segment (loss) income \$ (10,443) \$ 5,819 \$ (4,624) \$ 722	Direct insurance	\$ 82,471	\$ —\$ 82,471	\$ —\$	 \$ 82,471
written 83,319 89,407 172,726 — — 172,726 Premiums ceded (28,552) (1,297) (29,849) — — (29,849) Net premiums written \$ 54,767 \$ 88,110 \$ 142,877 \$ — \$ — \$ 142,877 Net premiums earned \$ 37,849 \$ 53,637 \$ 91,486 \$ — \$ — \$ 91,486 Technical services revenues — — — — 8,112 (849) 7,263 Other income 254 790 1,044 10 — 1,054 Net losses and loss expenses (27,848) (29,648) (57,496) — — (57,496) Direct technical services costs — — — — (4,861) — (4,861) Acquisition expenses (6,673) (13,804) (20,477) — — (20,477) General and administrative expenses (14,025) (5,156) (19,181) (2,539) 849 (20,871) Segment (loss) income Depreciation of fixed assets and amortization of intangibles \$ (842) Interest expense (826)	Reinsurance assumed	848	89,407 90,255	_	— 90,255
Premiums ceded (28,552) (1,297) (29,849) — — (29,849) Net premiums written \$ 54,767 \$ 88,110 \$ 142,877 \$ — \$ 142,877 Net premiums earned \$ 37,849 \$ 53,637 \$ 91,486 \$ — \$ 91,486 Technical services revenues — R,112 (849) 7,263 Other income 254 790 1,044 10 — 1,054 Net losses and loss expenses (27,848) (29,648) (57,496) — — (57,496) Direct technical services costs — (4,861) — (4,861) — (4,861) Acquisition expenses (6,673) (13,804) (20,477) — — (20,477) General and administrative expenses (14,025) (5,156) (19,181) (2,539) 849 (20,871) Segment (loss) income 5 (10,443) \$ 5,819 \$ (4,624) \$ 722 \$ — \$ (3,902) Depreciation of fixed assets and amortization of intangibles \$ (842) <t< td=""><td>Total gross premiums</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></t<>	Total gross premiums				
Net premiums written \$ 54,767 \$ 88,110 \$ 142,877 \$ —\$ 142,877 Net premiums earned \$ 37,849 \$ 53,637 \$ 91,486 \$ —\$ 91,486 Technical services revenues — — — — — 8,112 (849) 7,263 Other income 254 790 1,044 10 — 1,054 Net losses and loss expenses (27,848) (29,648) (57,496) — — (57,496) Direct technical services costs — — — — — — (4,861) — — (57,496) Acquisition expenses (6,673) (13,804) (20,477) — — (20,477) General and administrative expenses (14,025) (5,156) (19,181) (2,539) 849 (20,871) Segment (loss) income assets and amortization of intangibles \$ (10,443) \$ 5,819 \$ (4,624) \$ 722 \$ — \$ (3,902) Interest expense (826)	written	83,319	89,407 172,726	_	— 172,726
Net premiums earned Technical services revenues	Premiums ceded	(28,552)	(1,297) (29,849)	_	(29,849)
Technical services revenues	Net premiums written	\$ 54,767	\$ 88,110 \$ 142,877	\$ —\$	 \$ 142,877
revenues — — — — 8,112 (849) 7,263 Other income 254 790 1,044 10 — 1,054 Net losses and loss expenses (27,848) (29,648) (57,496) — — (57,496) Direct technical services costs — — — (4,861) — (4,861) Acquisition expenses (6,673) (13,804) (20,477) — — (20,477) General and administrative expenses (14,025) (5,156) (19,181) (2,539) 849 (20,871) Segment (loss) income \$ (10,443) \$ 5,819 \$ (4,624) \$ 722 \$ — \$ (3,902) Depreciation of fixed assets and amortization of intangibles \$ (842) Interest expense	Net premiums earned	\$ 37,849	\$ 53,637 \$ 91,486	\$ —\$	 \$ 91,486
Other income 254 790 1,044 10 — 1,054 Net losses and loss expenses (27,848) (29,648) (57,496) — (57,496) Direct technical services — — — (4,861) — (4,861) Costs — — — — (4,861) — (4,861) Acquisition expenses (6,673) (13,804) (20,477) — (20,477) General and administrative expenses (14,025) (5,156) (19,181) (2,539) 849 (20,871) Segment (loss) income \$ (10,443) \$ 5,819 \$ (4,624) \$ 722 \$ — \$ (3,902) Depreciation of fixed assets and amortization of intangibles \$ (842) Interest expense (826)	Technical services				
Net losses and loss expenses (27,848) (29,648) (57,496) — — (57,496) Direct technical services costs — — — (4,861) — (4,861) Acquisition expenses (6,673) (13,804) (20,477) — — (20,477) General and administrative expenses (14,025) (5,156) (19,181) (2,539) 849 (20,871) Segment (loss) income \$ (10,443) \$ 5,819 \$ (4,624) \$ 722 \$ — \$ (3,902) Depreciation of fixed assets and amortization of intangibles \$ (842) Interest expense (826)	revenues			- 8,112 (8	349) 7,263
expenses (27,848) (29,648) (57,496) — — (57,496) Direct technical services costs — — — (4,861) — (4,861) Acquisition expenses (6,673) (13,804) (20,477) — — (20,477) General and administrative expenses (14,025) (5,156) (19,181) (2,539) 849 (20,871) Segment (loss) income \$ (10,443) \$ 5,819 \$ (4,624) \$ 722 \$ —\$ (3,902) Depreciation of fixed assets and amortization of intangibles \$ (842) Interest expense (826)	Other income	254	790 1,044	10	— 1,054
Direct technical services costs — — — — — — — (4,861) — (4,861) Acquisition expenses (6,673) (13,804) (20,477) — — — (20,477) General and administrative expenses (14,025) (5,156) (19,181) (2,539) 849 (20,871) Segment (loss) income \$ (10,443) \$ 5,819 \$ (4,624) \$ 722 \$ — \$ (3,902) Depreciation of fixed assets and amortization of intangibles \$ (842) Interest expense \$ (826)	Net losses and loss				
costs — — — (4,861) — (4,861) Acquisition expenses (6,673) (13,804) (20,477) — — (20,477) General and — (14,025) (5,156) (19,181) (2,539) 849 (20,871) Segment (loss) income \$ (10,443) \$ 5,819 \$ (4,624) \$ 722 \$ (3,902) Depreciation of fixed assets and amortization of intangibles — \$ (842) Interest expense (826)	expenses	(27,848)	(29,648) (57,496)	_	— (57,496)
Acquisition expenses (6,673) (13,804) (20,477) — — (20,477) General and administrative expenses (14,025) (5,156) (19,181) (2,539) 849 (20,871) Segment (loss) income \$ (10,443) \$ 5,819 \$ (4,624) \$ 722 \$ —\$ (3,902) Depreciation of fixed assets and amortization of intangibles \$ (842) Interest expense \$ (826)	Direct technical services				
General and administrative expenses (14,025) (5,156) (19,181) (2,539) 849 (20,871) Segment (loss) income \$ (10,443) \$ 5,819 \$ (4,624) \$ 722 \$ —\$ (3,902) Depreciation of fixed assets and amortization of intangibles \$ (842) Interest expense	costs	_		- (4,861)	— (4,861)
administrative expenses (14,025) (5,156) (19,181) (2,539) 849 (20,871) Segment (loss) income \$ (10,443) \$ 5,819 \$ (4,624) \$ 722 \$ —\$ (3,902) Depreciation of fixed assets and amortization of intangibles \$ (842) Interest expense \$ (826)	Acquisition expenses	(6,673)	(13,804) (20,477)	_	- (20,477)
Segment (loss) income \$ (10,443) \$ 5,819 \$ (4,624) \$ 722 \$ —\$ (3,902) Depreciation of fixed assets and amortization of intangibles \$ (842) Interest expense \$ (826)	General and				
Depreciation of fixed assets and amortization of intangibles \$ (842) Interest expense (826)	administrative expenses	(14,025)	(5,156) (19,181)	(2,539)	349 (20,871)
assets and amortization of intangibles \$ (842) Interest expense (826)	Segment (loss) income	\$ (10,443)	\$ 5,819 \$ (4,624)	\$ 722 \$	 \$ (3,902)
intangibles \$ (842) Interest expense \$ (826)	Depreciation of fixed				
Interest expense (826)	assets and amortization of				
•	intangibles				\$ (842)
Net investment income 5 225	Interest expense				(826)
7,0000000000000000000000000000000000000	Net investment income				5,225
Net realized losses on	Net realized losses on				
investments (483)	investments				(483)
Other income 519	Other income				519
Net foreign exchange	Net foreign exchange				
losses (112)	losses				(112)
Loss before income taxes \$ (421)	Loss before income taxes				\$ (421)

Items of revenue and expense resulting from charges between segments are eliminated on consolidation of the segments. During the three months ended March 31, 2006 and 2005, the technical services segment charged the underwriting segments \$0.4 million and \$0.8 million of revenues for technical services and information management services rendered.

The Company's specialty insurance segment writes business both on a direct basis with insured clients or by assuming reinsurance of underlying policies that are issued on its behalf by third party insurers and reinsurers.

12

Table of Contents

QUANTA CAPITAL HOLDINGS LTD. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars except for share amounts, or as otherwise stated)

5. Loss per share

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted loss per share.

	For the three months ended				
	M	arch 31, 2006	M	arch 31, 2005	
Basic loss per share					
Net loss available to ordinary shareholders	\$	(17,135)	\$	(644)	
Weighted average common shares outstanding – basic		69,946,861		56,798,218	
Basic loss per share	\$	(0.24)	\$	(0.01)	
Diluted loss per share					
Net loss available to ordinary shareholders	\$	(17,135)	\$	(644)	
Weighted average common shares outstanding		69,946,861		56,798,218	
Weighted average common share equivalents					
Options		_		_	
Warrants		_		_	
Weighted average common shares outstanding – diluted		69,946,861		56,798,218	
Diluted loss per share	\$	(0.24)	\$	(0.01)	

Due to a net loss for all periods presented, the assumed net exercise of options and warrants under the treasury stock method has been excluded, as the effect would have been anti-dilutive. Accordingly, for the three months ended March 31, 2006, the calculation of weighted average common shares outstanding on a diluted basis excludes 3,055,470 options and 2,542,813 warrants. For the three months ended March 31, 2005, the calculation of weighted average common shares outstanding on a diluted basis excludes 3,933,342 options and 2,542,813 warrants.

6. Reinsurance

The Company utilizes reinsurance and retrocessional agreements principally to increase aggregate capacity and to limit net exposures to losses arising on business assumed. The Company's reinsurance agreements provide for the

recovery of a portion of losses and loss expenses from reinsurers.

Reinsurance assets due from our reinsurers include losses and loss adjustment expenses recoverable and deferred reinsurance premiums. The Company is subject to credit risk with respect to reinsurance ceded because the ceding of risk does not relieve the Company from its primary obligations to its policyholders. It is expected that the companies to which insurance has been ceded will honor their obligations. Failure of the Company's reinsurers to honor their obligations could result in credit losses.

The average credit rating of the Company's reinsurers as of March 31, 2006 is A (Excellent) by A.M. Best. As of March 31, 2006, the losses and loss adjustment expenses recoverable from reinsurers balance in the consolidated balance sheet included approximately 24% due from Everest Reinsurance Ltd., a reinsurer rated A+ (Superior) by A.M. Best, and approximately 15% due from various Lloyd's syndicates, which are rated A (Excellent) by A.M. Best. No other reinsurers accounted for more than 10% of the losses and loss adjustment expense recoverable balance as of March 31, 2006.

13

Table of Contents

QUANTA CAPITAL HOLDINGS LTD. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars except for share amounts, or as otherwise stated)

The following table lists our largest reinsurers measured by the amount of losses and loss adjustment expenses recoverable at March 31, 2006 and the reinsurers' financial strength rating from A.M. Best:

	Loss	es and Loss	
	Ac	ljustment	
	E	xpenses	A.M. Best
	Re	coverable	Rating
Reinsurer	(\$ iı	n millions)	
Everest Reinsurance Company	\$	48.2	A+
Lloyd's		30.9	A
Arch Reinsurance		19.3	A-
XL Capital Ltd.		11.3	A+
Allianz Marine & Aviation		10.7	A-
New Reinsurance Company		10.0	A+
Glacier Reinsurance AG		8.4	A-
The Toa Reinsurance Company, Ltd. (Tokyo)		8.1	A
Aspen Insurance		7.5	A
Transatlantic Reinsurance Company		7.2	A+
Odyssey America Reinsurance		7.1	A
Max Re		6.7	A-
Other Reinsurers Rated A- or Better		15.1	A-
All Other Reinsurers		7.8	Various
Total	\$	198.3	

The effect of reinsurance activity on premiums written, premiums earned and losses and loss expenses incurred for the three months ended March 31, 2006 and 2005 is shown below.

	Premiums		Premiums		Losses and Loss	
Three months ended March 31, 2006		Written		Earned		Expenses
Direct insurance	\$	75,845	\$	86,426	\$	52,605
Reinsurance assumed		39,024		49,205		27,333
Gross		114,869		135,631		79,938
Ceded reinsurance		(52,155)		(56,063)		(25,556)
Net	\$	62,714	\$	79,568	\$	54,382
	F	Premiums	P	remiums	Loss	ses and Loss
Three months ended March 31, 2005	Written		Earned		Expenses	
				Larnea	1	ZAPCHSCS
Direct insurance	\$	82,471	\$	35,633	\$	26,873
Direct insurance Reinsurance assumed	\$		\$			
	\$	82,471	\$	35,633		26,873
Reinsurance assumed	\$	82,471 90,255	\$	35,633 75,352		26,873 42,021

^{7.} Commitments and contingencies

a) Concentrations of credit risk

As of March 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, substantially all of the Company's cash and cash equivalents, and investments were held by three custodians. Management believes these custodians to be of high credit quality. The Company's investment portfolio is managed by external investment

14

Table of Contents

OUANTA CAPITAL HOLDINGS LTD.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars except for share amounts, or as otherwise stated)

advisors in accordance with the Company's investment guidelines. The Company's investment guidelines require that the average credit quality of the investment portfolio is typically Aa3/AA- and that no more than 5% of the investment portfolio's market value shall be invested in securities rated below Baa3/BBB-. The Company also limits its exposure to any single issuer to 5% or less of the total portfolio's market value at the time of purchase, with the exception of U.S. government and agency securities. As of March 31, 2006 and 2005, the largest single non-U.S. government and government agencies issuer accounted for less than 2.5% of the aggregate market value of the externally managed portfolios.

Other accounts receivable as of March 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005 consist principally of amounts relating to technical services engagements and include \$7.9 million and \$7.0 million in billed accounts receivable and \$2.4

million and \$2.5 million in unbilled amounts for work in progress. As of March 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, one customer accounted for approximately 20% of the technical services other accounts receivable balance. As of December 31, 2005, two customers accounted for approximately 24% and 16% of the technical services other accounts receivable balance. No other customers accounted for more than 10% of the technical services other accounts receivable balance as of March 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005. The Company extends credit to its customers in the normal course of business and monitors the balances of individual accounts to assess any collectibility issues. The Company and its predecessor have not experienced significant losses related to technical services receivables in the past.

The premiums receivable balances of \$147.0 million and \$146.8 million as of March 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005 include approximately \$25.5 million, or 17.4%, and approximately \$20.3 million, or 13.8%, from one third party agent that sources the residential builders' and contractors' program that provides new home contractors throughout the U.S. with general liability, builders' risk and excess liability insurance coverages as well as reinsurance for warranty coverage (under the HBW program). The Company has not experienced any losses related to premiums receivables from this third party agent to date and monitors the aged premiums receivable balances on a monthly basis.

Concentrations related to losses and loss adjustment expenses recoverable from reinsurers are discussed further in Note 6.

b) Concentrations of premium production

The Company generates its business primarily through brokers and to a much lesser extent direct relationships with insurance companies. During the three months ended March 31, 2006, two brokers accounted for approximately 50.5% and 39.1% of the specialty reinsurance segment's gross premiums written. No other brokers accounted for more than 10% of the specialty insurance or the specialty reinsurance segments' gross written premium for the three months ended March 31, 2006.

During the three months ended March 31, 2005, two brokers accounted for approximately 43.9% and 21.1% of the specialty reinsurance segment's gross premiums written. No other brokers accounted for more than 10% of the specialty insurance or the specialty reinsurance segments' gross written premium for the three months ended March 31, 2005.

The Company believes that all of its brokers are significant and established companies.

During the three months ended March 31, 2006 and 2005, the HBW program accounted for approximately \$43.7 million, or 51.8%, and \$41.1 million, or 61.3%, of the specialty insurance segment gross written premiums for the three months ended March 31, 2006 and 2005. Policies underwritten in this program are sourced by one third party agent that the Company believes is a large and established specialist in this class of business.

c) Restricted assets

The Company is required to maintain assets on deposit with various regulatory authorities to support its insurance and reinsurance operations. These requirements are generally promulgated by

15

QUANTA CAPITAL HOLDINGS LTD.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars except for share amounts, or as otherwise stated)

the regulations of the individual locations within which the Company operates. These funds on deposit are available to settle insurance and reinsurance liabilities.

The Company participates in the Lloyd's of London market through Syndicate 4000 at Lloyd's and has dedicated a significant amount of its capital to the Lloyd's business. The regulations of the Council of Lloyd's determine the amount of premium that may be written, also known as stamp capacity, based on the Company's Funds at Lloyd's. The Company will maintain Funds at Lloyd's for every underwriting year in which it has business through Syndicate 4000 at Lloyd's. These funds may not be withdrawn until each underwriting year is closed which currently takes three years and requires the purchase of reinsurance. Traditionally, three years have been necessary to report substantially all premiums associated with an underwriting year and to report most related claims, although claims may remain unsettled after the underwriting year is closed. A Lloyd's syndicate typically closes an underwriting year by reinsuring outstanding claims on that underwriting year with the participants of the next underwriting year. As of March 31, 2006 and December 31 2005, cash and investments with a market value of \$114.6 million are held by Lloyd's as trustee, which includes an additional \$6.3 million of investments deposited to support the Company's 2006 underwriting year. The cash and investments held by Lloyd's are included within the table below and may not be withdrawn until each underwriting year is closed, which generally takes three years. At March 31, 2006, in addition to its Funds at Lloyd's, the Company had cash and investments of \$11.6 million that were held under Premium Trust Funds for payments and discharge of certain trust outgoings, and a further \$28.7 million held on deposit pursuant to regulatory requirements. At December 31, 2005, in addition to its Funds at Lloyd's, the Company had cash and investments of \$15.1 million that was held under Premium Trust Funds for payments and discharge of certain trust outgoings, and a further \$13.5 million held on deposit pursuant to regulatory requirements.

The Company has also issued letters of credit ("LOC") under its credit agreement for which cash and cash equivalents and investments are pledged as security, in favor of certain ceding companies to collateralize its obligations under contracts of insurance and reinsurance and in favor of a landlord relating to a lease agreement for office space.

The Company also utilizes trust funds in certain large transactions where the trust funds are set up for the benefit of the ceding companies, and generally take the place of letter of credit requirements. In addition, the Company holds cash and cash equivalents and investments in trust to fund the Company's obligations associated with the assumption of environmental remediation liability.

The fair values of these restricted assets by category at March 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005 are as follows:

	March 31, 2006 Cash and cash equivalents Investments			December Cash and cash equivalents			2005	
Deposits with U.S. regulatory	eqe	ii vaicints	111	Vestillents	cq	ar varents		Vestillerits
authorities	\$	6,352	\$	23,388	\$	422	\$	29,328
Funds deposited with Lloyd's		34,554		120,318		35,472		107,759
LOC pledged assets		17,014		241,219		17,865		199,342
Trust funds		14,721		160,223		15,544		118,686
Amounts held in trust funds related to								
deposit liabilities		13,304		37,929		13,540		38,316
Total	\$	85,945	\$	583,077	\$	82,843	\$	493,431

d) Lease commitments

The Company leases office space and furniture and equipment under operating lease agreements. Certain office space leases include an escalation clause that calls for annual increases to the base

16

Table of Contents

QUANTA CAPITAL HOLDINGS LTD.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars except for share amounts, or as otherwise stated)

rental payments. Rent expenses are being recognized on a straight-line basis over the respective lease terms. Future annual minimum payments under non-cancelable operating leases as of March 31, 2006, are as follows:

Year ending March 31,	
2007	\$ 5,471
2008	4,694
2009	3,368
2010	3,385
2011	3,058
2012 and thereafter	21,143
Total	\$ 41,119

Total rent expense under operating leases for the three months ended March 31, 2006 and 2005, was approximately \$1.6 million and \$1.1 million.

8. Options and stock based compensation

In July 2003, the shareholders of the Company approved the long-term incentive plan (the "Incentive Plan"). The Incentive Plan provides for the grant to eligible employees, directors and consultants of stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted shares, restricted share units, performance awards, dividend equivalents and other share-based awards. The Incentive Plan is administered by the Company and the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors. The Compensation Committee determines the dates, amounts, exercise prices, vesting periods and other relevant terms of the awards. Option awards are generally granted with an exercise price equal to the market price of the Company's stock at the date of grant; those option awards generally vest based on four years of continuous service and have seven to ten-year contractual terms. Recipients of awards may exercise at any time after they vest and before they expire, except that no awards may be exercised after ten years from the date of grant.

Performance share units are also awarded to various employees pursuant to the Incentive Plan. The number of shares of common stock to be received under these awards at the end of the performance period will depend on the attainment of performance objectives based on the Company's GAAP average return on shareholders' equity over a three year period. The grantees will receive shares of common stock in an amount ranging from zero to 300% percent of the share award (as such amount is defined in the grant).

Since unvested performance share units are contingent upon satisfying performance objectives, those unvested shares are considered to be contingently issuable shares and are not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share until all conditions for issuance are met. Performance share units are included in basic shares outstanding when issued.

Awards with graded vesting features will be accounted for using the graded-vesting method in accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 28 "Accounting for Stock Appreciation Rights and Other Variable Stock Option or Award Plans."

As of March 31, 2006 and 2005, the maximum number of shares available for award and issuance under the Incentive Plan was 9,350,000 and 5,850,000.

In accordance with SFAS 123 and SFAS 123(R), the fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using a Black-Scholes-Merton option-pricing formula that uses the assumptions noted in the following table. Expected volatilities are based on implied volatilities from traded options on the Company's stock, historical volatility of the Company's stock, and other factors. The Company uses historical data to estimate employee termination. The expected term of options granted is

17

Table of Contents

QUANTA CAPITAL HOLDINGS LTD. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars except for share amounts, or as otherwise stated)

calculated using the Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107 simplified method. It is the mid-point between the vesting date and the expiration date and represents the period of time that options granted are expected to be outstanding. The risk-free rate for periods within the contractual life of the option is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. The dividend yield is based on historical data.

	Three months ended March				
	2006	2005			
Expected volatility	24.0%	24.0%			
Dividend yield	0.0%	0.0%			
Risk-free interest rate	4.50%	4.14%			
Expected term (in years)	7	7			

The following is a summary of the Company's stock options and related activity during the three months ended March 31, 2006 and 2005:

	Three months ended March 31,			Three months ended March 31,			
	2006			2005			
	Weighted-average				Weig	ghted-average	
	Number	exercise price		Number	ex	ercise price	
Outstanding – beginning of period	3,402,194	\$	9.55	3,052,400	\$	9.99	

Granted	20,000	4.80	935,942	8.92
Exercised	_	_	_	_
Forfeited	(366,724)	(8.92)	_	_
Outstanding – end of period	3,055,470 \$	9.60	3,988,342 \$	9.73

The weighted-average grant date fair value of options granted during the three months ended March 31, 2006 and 2005 was \$1.80 and \$2.22.

The fair value of performance share units and restricted shares awarded under the Incentive Plan is determined based on the closing trading price of the Company's shares on the grant date. The following is a summary of the Company's non vested performance share units and restricted shares and related activity during the three months ended March 31, 2006 and 2005:

	Three mont	nded March 31,	Three months ended March 31,			
	2006			2005		
	Weighted-average			Weighted-average		
	Number		share price	Number		share price
Non vested – beginning of period	148,335	\$	7.30		- \$	
Granted		-		106,702		8.92
Vested		-			-	
Forfeited	(8,368)		(8.92)		-	
Non vested – end of period	139,967	\$	7.20	106,702	\$	8.92

There were no performance share units or restricted shares granted during the three months ended March 31, 2006.

The compensation cost that was expensed in the Statement of Operations during the three months ended March 31, 2006 was \$0.4 million.

18

Table of Contents

QUANTA CAPITAL HOLDINGS LTD.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars except for share amounts, or as otherwise stated)

The following is a summary of the Company's outstanding options and exercisable options as of March 31, 2006.

	Opt	tions outstand	ding	Options exercisable		e	
			Average				
		Average	remaining		Average		
	Number of	exercise	contractual	Number of	exercise		
Range of exercise prices	options	price	life	options	price		
\$4.59 - \$4.80	36,666	\$ 4.70	6.80 years	_	- \$	-	

\$6.39	10,000	\$ 6.39	6.44 years	_	- \$ -	—
\$7.85	2,000	\$ 7.85	6.08 years	_	- \$ -	_
\$8.55 – \$9.00	921,654	\$ 8.88	6.49 years	230,414	\$ 8.88	
\$10.00 - \$10.50	2,037,150	\$ 10.00	7.44 years	1,340,365	\$ 10.00	
\$11.50 - \$12.00	26,000	\$ 11.58	7.84 years	13,000	\$ 11.58	
\$12.50	22,000	\$ 12.50	8.08 years	5,500	\$ 12.50	

As of March 31, 2006, there was \$2.7 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non vested share-based compensation arrangements related to stock options and performance share units granted under the Incentive Plan. This cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.02 years.

9. Subsequent events

The Company is continuing to work to preserve shareholder value and respond to the rating actions taken by A.M. Best. A special committee of the Company's Board of Directors has engaged Friedman, Billings, Ramsey & Co., Inc. and J.P. Morgan Securities Inc., as financial advisors. They are assisting the Company in evaluating strategic alternatives, including the potential sale of some or all of the Company's businesses, the run off of certain product lines of the business or a combination of alternatives. The Company's financial advisors will also help us evaluate the use of potential excess capital to repay debt or to return value to the Company's shareholders. During this process, the special committee and the Board have met a number of times to consider the potential strategic alternatives available to the Company, and the Company has been contacted by several parties and has had due diligence discussions with a number of those parties. There can be no assurance that any of these initiatives will not negatively impact the Company's results of operations or will be successful in improving the Company's position and preserving shareholder value.

After evaluating available alternatives, the Board of Directors may conclude that no other alternatives would be in the best interests of the Company's shareholders and that the best alternative is to place the Company's remaining insurance businesses in run off and eventually wind up the Company's insurance operations over some period of time, which is not currently determinable.

The Company is also analyzing its business lines, their positioning and internal operations. We believe that the Company currently has sufficient assets to pay its foreseen liabilities as they become due, and the Company continues to earn investment income on its investment portfolio to support its general and administrative expenses. We maintain a global platform in the United States, Bermuda and Europe. The Company also believes it has retained underwriting capabilities and experience in key product lines.

At this stage in the Company's overall evaluation of strategic alternatives, the Company has determined to continue certain of its businesses. Currently, the Company continues to offer certain program business lines as well as professional liability and fidelity insurance lines in the United States, Lloyd's business through the Company's Lloyd's syndicate in the A.M. Best "A" rated Lloyd's market in Europe and its environmental consulting services through ESC in the United States. The Company is not writing new business in its professional liability, fidelity, environmental and marine and aviation insurance product lines or in its reinsurance and structured product lines. The Company is no longer

19

QUANTA CAPITAL HOLDINGS LTD.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars except for share amounts, or as otherwise stated)

seeking new business in its surety insurance line and will cease seeking new business in its marine and aviation reinsurance, casualty reinsurance and trade credit and political risk insurance lines during the second quarter of 2006.

During the second and third quarters of 2006, the Company expects to recognize additional severance costs and reductions in general and administrative expenses as the Company aligns its infrastructure to the selected strategic option.

20

Table of Contents

Item 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

The following discussion and analysis of our results of operations, financial condition and liquidity and capital resources should be read in conjunction with our unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements and related notes for the three months ended March 31, 2006 and the risk factors under Part II — Item 1A — Risk Factors contained in this Form 10-Q and the audited consolidated financial statements and related notes for the year ended December 31, 2005, as well as "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations," including the discussions of critical accounting policies and estimates, quantitative and qualitative disclosures about market risk and risk factors, contained in the Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005, filed by the Company with the SEC on March 31, 2006 ("Form 10-K").

Safe Harbor Disclosure

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 provides a "safe harbor" for forward-looking statements. Any written or oral statements made by or on our behalf may include forward-looking statements. Statements using words such as "believes," "expects," "intends," "estimates," "projects," "predicts," "assumes," "anticipates," "plans," and "terms, are forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements are not statements of historical fact and reflect our views and assumptions as of the date of this report regarding future events and operating performance. Because we have a limited operating history, many statements relating to us and our business, including statements relating to our competitive strengths and business strategies, included in this report are forward-looking statements.

All forward-looking statements address matters that involve risks and uncertainties. There are important factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially from those indicated in these statements. We believe that these factors include but are not limited to the following:

• A.M. Best downgraded our financial strength rating to "B++" (very good) and placed our rating under review with negative implications in March 2006. We are experiencing a significant loss of business and business opportunities from the recent downgrade and qualification of our financial strength rating. Our current financial strength rating of "B++" (very good), under review with negative implications has had, and will continue to have, a significant adverse effect on our ability to conduct our business in our current product lines. In addition, certain of our insurance and many of our reinsurance contracts contain termination rights, which have been triggered by the A.M. Best rating downgrade. Some of the insurance and reinsurance

contracts also require us to post additional security as a result of the downgrade. Furthermore, many of our other insurance contracts and certain of our reinsurance contracts provide for cancellation at the option of the policyholder regardless of our financial strength rating. A downgrade in our rating below "B++" (very good) will cause a default in our credit facility and trigger termination provisions or require the posting of additional security in many of our other insurance and reinsurance contracts. The obligations under the credit facility are currently fully secured by investments and cash. If a default occurs under the credit agreement, our lenders may require us to cash collateralize a portion or all of the outstanding letters of credit issued under the facility, which may be accomplished through the substitution or liquidation of collateral. Among other things, the lenders would also have the right to cancel outstanding letters of credit issued under the facility and we would be limited in releasing collateral without the lenders' consent:

• we believe that A.M. Best continues to reevaluate its capital adequacy models and other factors it uses in its evaluation of our business. A.M. Best may further downgrade our ratings. Accordingly, there can be no assurance as to what additional rating actions A.M. Best may take in the future or whether A.M. Best will further downgrade our ratings or will remove any qualification of our ratings;

21

Table of Contents

- based on our discussions with the program manager of our residential builders' and contractors' program, or HBW program, the program manager has started, and we expect that it will continue, to divert a substantial portion of its business to other carriers during 2006;
- as a result of the downgrade of our financial strength ratings by A.M. Best, we have been closely analyzing our business lines, positioning in the market and internal operations and are taking steps to preserve shareholder value and improve our position, including the exploration of strategic alternatives. The implementation of any changes based on such analysis or of any strategic alternatives involves substantial uncertainties and risks that may result in restructuring charges and unforeseen expenses and costs. There can be no assurance that any of these initiatives will not negatively impact our results of operations or will be successful in improving our position and preserving shareholder value;
- certain lines of business that we have underwritten, including marine, technical risk and aviation reinsurance and environmental insurance, have large aggregate exposures to natural and man-made disasters such as hurricane, typhoon, windstorm, flood, earthquake, acts of war, acts of terrorism and political instability and our results may continue to be volatile as a result;
- our ability to pay dividends is restricted;
- our business is dependent upon insurance and reinsurance brokers who use ratings as an important factor in evaluating the financial strength and quality of insurers. As a result of our financial strength ratings downgrade, several of our important brokers have removed us from their approved listing;
- our current estimates of our exposure to ultimate claim costs associated with Hurricanes Katrina, Rita and Wilma are based on available information, claims notifications received to date, industry loss estimates, output from industry models, a review of affected contracts and discussions with brokers and clients. The actual amount of losses from Hurricanes Katrina, Rita and Wilma may vary significantly from our estimates based on such data, which could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or our results of operations;

•

our ability to take steps to preserve shareholder value and improve our position, including the exploration of strategic alternatives and our ability to continue to operate those business lines that have not been discontinued is dependent on our ability to retain our executives and key employees. Our inability to retain, attract and integrate members of our management team, key employees and other personnel could significantly and negatively affect our remaining business and the preservation of shareholder value;

- if actual claims exceed our loss reserves, our financial results could be significantly adversely affected:
- the failure of any of the loss limitation methods we employ could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or our results of operations;
- based on our current estimate of losses related to Hurricanes Katrina and Rita, we have exhausted our reinsurance and retrocessional protection with respect to Hurricane Katrina and our marine reinsurance with respect to Hurricane Rita. If our Hurricane Katrina losses prove to be greater than currently anticipated, we have no further reinsurance and retrocessional coverage available for that windstorm. In addition, if our marine reinsurance losses for Hurricane Rita prove greater than currently anticipated, we will have no further retrocessional coverage available for marine reinsurance losses for that windstorm. Furthermore, if there are further catastrophic events relating to our underwriting exposures, our retrocessional coverage for these events may be limited or we may have no coverage at all;

22

Table of Contents

- the failure to remedy any weakness found in our evaluations of controls required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, including the material weaknesses identified in our annual report on Form 10-K, may result in our financial statements being materially inaccurate, may restrict our access to the capital markets and may cause the share price of our common and preferred shares to be adversely affected;
- changes in the availability, cost or quality of reinsurance;
- risks relating to potential litigation;
- our limited operating history;
- our remaining insurance and reinsurance business is not diversified among classes of risk or sources of origination. The exit from our property reinsurance and technical risk property insurance line and the casualty reinsurance commutations and the reduction in our business resulting from rating action taken by A.M. Best, have further reduced our diversification in our product lines and will continue to cause increased concentrations across certain of our risk classes;
- changes in regulation or tax laws applicable to us, our brokers or our customers;
- risks relating to our reliance on program managers, third-party administrators and other supporting vendors;
- other risks of doing business with program managers, including the risk we might be bound to policyholder obligations beyond our underwriting intent, and risks relating to our program managers and agents decision not to continue or renew their programs with us;
- changes in accounting policies or practices; and
- changes in general economic conditions, including inflation, foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates and other factors.

If one or more of these or other risks or uncertainties materialize, or if our underlying assumptions prove to be incorrect, actual results may vary materially from our projections. Additionally, the list of factors above is not

exhaustive and should be read with the other cautionary statements that are included in our Form 10-K and in this report under "Item 1A. Risk Factors" and that are otherwise described from time to time in our U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission reports filed after this report. Any forward-looking statements you read in this report reflect our current views with respect to future events and are subject to these and other risks, uncertainties and assumptions relating to, among other things, our operations, results of operations, growth strategy and liquidity. All subsequent written and oral forward-looking statements attributable to us or individuals acting on our behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by this paragraph. You should specifically consider the factors identified in this report that could cause actual results to differ from those discussed in the forward-looking statements before making an investment decision. We undertake no obligation to publicly update or review any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

Market data and forecasts used in this report have been obtained from independent industry sources as well as from research reports prepared for other purposes. We have not independently verified the data obtained from these sources and we cannot assure you of the accuracy or completeness of the data. Forecasts and other forward-looking information obtained from these sources are subject to the same qualifications and uncertainties applicable to the other forward-looking statements in this report.

Overview

General

Quanta Holdings was incorporated on May 23, 2003 as a Bermuda holding company formed to provide specialty lines insurance, reinsurance, risk assessment and risk technical services on a global

23

Table of Contents

basis through its affiliated companies. We commenced substantive operations on September 3, 2003 when we obtained our initial capital and purchased ESC, our predecessor for accounting purposes.

Through our operating subsidiaries in Bermuda, the U.S. and Europe, we focus on writing coverage for specialized classes of risks through teams of experienced and technically qualified underwriters. Specialty lines of business are often unusual or difficult to place and do not fit the underwriting criteria of standard commercial product providers. We have used our Bermuda operations primarily to insure U.S. risks from Bermuda on a non-admitted basis and also, from time to time, to underwrite some European risks. During 2005, we also wrote specialty products in the United States on an admitted basis through our subsidiary, Quanta Indemnity, which is a U.S. licensed insurer with licenses in 44 states and is an accredited reinsurer in Washington, D.C. Further, during 2005 we wrote specialty insurance from the United States on an excess and surplus lines basis and U.S. reinsurance on a non-admitted basis through our subsidiary, Quanta Specialty Lines. Since the fourth quarter of 2004, we underwrote European Union sourced specialty business through Quanta Europe, our Irish subsidiary located in Dublin, Ireland, which is the headquarters of our European business. We are also underwriting through our wholly-owned Lloyd's syndicate, which we call Syndicate 4000. Since February 2005, we are serving our London-based clients for European insurance and reinsurance business through our Quanta Europe branch in London.

We acquired Environmental Strategies Corporation, known as ESC, on September 3, 2003. ESC is our predecessor company for accounting and financial reporting purposes. ESC provides diversified environmental risk management services to assist customers in environmental remediation, regulatory analyses, technical support for environmental

claims, merger and acquisition due diligence, environmental audits and risk assessments, and engineering and information management services. ESC also provides risk assessment and technical services support to our environmental underwriters. ESC's operations have been adversely affected because our environmental insurance product line and our other insurance and reinsurance product lines that use ESC's consulting services are no longer able to continue to write most coverages or have lost almost all of their business opportunities due to the recent A.M. Best downgrade of our financial strength ratings. In addition to these consulting services, we provide liability assumption programs through Quanta Technical Services and its subsidiaries under which these subsidiaries assume specified liabilities associated with environmental conditions, which may be insured or guaranteed by us or an insurance subsidiary. Under these programs, our technical services team provides consulting and performs the required remediation services through subcontractors. Our liability assumption programs during the three months ended March 31, 2006 included our Buffalo, New York and Axis, Alabama programs. The estimated remaining liabilities for these programs are approximately \$4.4 million, as of March 31, 2006. We are currently evaluating whether, or to what extent, we will continue to offer this liability assumption program following the ratings downgrade described below. Presently, we anticipate that it will be difficult to continue to provide these programs.

A.M. Best Rating Actions, Strategic Alternatives and Evaluation

As a result of the expected losses from Hurricanes Katrina, Rita and Wilma in 2005 ("2005 hurricanes"), on October 5, 2005, A.M. Best placed the "A—" (excellent) financial strength rating assigned to Quanta Reinsurance Ltd. ("Quanta Bermuda") and its subsidiaries and Quanta Europe Ltd. ("Quanta Europe"), under review with negative implications. In response, during the fourth quarter of 2005, we worked closely with A.M. Best on a plan designed to maintain our "A—" rating, which included the retrocession of substantially all the in-force business, as of October 1, 2005, in our technical risk property and property reinsurance lines of business (other than our program business) by a portfolio transfer to a third-party reinsurer (the "Property Transaction"), the commutation of two of our casualty reinsurance treaties back to the insurance company which had reinsured it with us and the completion of the offerings of our common shares and series A preferred shares in the fourth quarter of 2005.

On December 14, 2005, we issued 13,136,841 common shares at \$4.75 per share and 3,000,000 shares of our series A preferred shares at \$25.00 per share with a liquidation preference of \$25.00 per share. The gross proceeds to the Company were \$137.4 million before the payment of underwriting

24

Table of Contents

fees, of which \$62.4 million was from the sale of common shares and \$75.0 million was from the sale of preferred shares. In addition, on December 29, 2005, the underwriters exercised a portion of their over-allotment option to acquire additional series A preferred shares at the offering price of \$25.00. This resulted in the sale, on January 11, 2006 of 130,525 shares of our series A preferred shares for gross proceeds of \$3.3 million.

On December 21, 2005, A.M. Best affirmed the financial strength rating of "A-" (excellent) of Quanta Bermuda and its subsidiaries, and ascribed a negative outlook to the rating. A.M. Best defines a negative outlook as indicating that a company is experiencing unfavorable financial/market trends, relative to its current rating level and, if continued, the company has a good possibility of having its rating downgraded. In connection with A.M. Best's December 2005 affirmation of our ratings and continued review with negative outlook, A.M. Best cited significant challenges and uncertainties associated with the successful execution of management's revised business plans, management's ability to diversify and grow our business profitably, and the risk for upward development of Hurricanes Katrina, Rita and Wilma losses.

On March 2, 2006, A.M. Best announced that it had downgraded the financial strength rating assigned to Quanta Bermuda and its subsidiaries and Quanta Europe, to "B++" (very good), under review with negative implications. The A.M. Best "A" (excellent) rated Lloyd's market, including our Lloyd's syndicate, was not subject to the rating downgrade. We believe that adverse developments during the fourth quarter of 2005 relating to the 2005 hurricane losses and our other reserve increases were significant contributors to the decision by A.M. Best. In order to maintain our rating, we believe that we will be required to demonstrate acceptable results and change our business model appropriately. This, however, will be very difficult to accomplish under a "B++" rating. In addition, we believe we will need to successfully implement a more favorable cost structure and reduce the amount of risk that we assume on a single loss event or catastrophic event based on initiatives that we are implementing. We also believe that A.M. Best will continue to evaluate our available capital and the probable loss exposures associated with our business lines to ensure our capital is in compliance with A.M. Best's standards relative to our rating. We intend to continue to work with A.M. Best to understand the different requirements it has for our business in order to maintain or improve our financial strength rating and remove any qualification to our rating. However, the downgrade and qualification of our rating with negative implications has significantly adversely affected, and we expect it will continue to significantly adversely affect, our business, our opportunities to write new and renewal business and our ability to retain key employees. A.M. Best may further downgrade our financial strength ratings. We can make no assurances as to what rating actions A.M. Best may take now or in the future or whether A.M. Best will further downgrade our rating or remove any qualification to our rating. A ratings downgrade by A.M. Best below "B++" would constitute a default under our credit facility and under certain other agreements and trigger termination provisions or require the posting of additional security in many of our other insurance and reinsurance contracts, As of March 31, 2006, \$225.6 million of letters of credit were outstanding under this facility. No revolving credit borrowings or amounts drawn under the letters of credit were outstanding as of March 31, 2006. The obligations under the credit facility are currently fully secured by our investments and cash. If a default occurs under the credit agreement, our lenders may require us to cash collateralize a portion or all of the outstanding letters of credit issued under the facility, which may be accomplished through the substitution or liquidation of collateral. Among other things, the lenders would also have the right to cancel outstanding letters of credit issued under the facility and we would be limited in releasing collateral without the lenders' consent.

We expect the downgrade of our rating and qualification of our rating with negative implications to continue to have a significant adverse effect on our business. We have been removed from the approved listing of several of our important brokers, including Aon Corporation and Marsh Inc. The downgrade of our financial rating or the continued qualification of our current rating continues to cause concern about our viability among brokers and other marketing sources, resulting in a movement of business away from us to other carriers. We believe the recent downgrade of our financial rating is also adversely affecting our Lloyd's operations.

25

Table of Contents

Certain of our insurance and many of our reinsurance contracts contain termination rights triggered by the A.M. Best rating downgrade. Many of our other insurance contracts and certain of our reinsurance contracts provide for cancellation at the option of the policyholder regardless of our financial strength rating. A cancellation typically results in the termination of the policy and our ongoing obligations and the return of premiums to our client that frequently approximates our unearned premium reserve as of the date of the cancellation. Whether a client would exercise such rights would depend, among other things, on the reasons for the downgrade, the extent of the downgrade, the prevailing market conditions, whether we have posted security in respect of our obligations and the pricing and availability of replacement coverage. We cannot predict in advance how many of our clients will actually exercise such rights or the effect such cancellations will have on our financial condition or future prospects. However,

depending on the number of contracts involved, such an effect could be materially adverse. As of April 30, 2006, we had received notice of cancellation on approximately 5.7% of our in-force policies, calculated using original contract gross premiums written related to those cancelled policies as a percentage of total gross premiums written during 2005. Gross unearned premiums relating to these cancellations that we have returned or expect to return to our clients total approximately \$15.6 million, which represents approximately 4.9% of our gross unearned premium at March 31, 2006. We expect that we will receive additional cancellations. In addition, in instances where we no longer wish to be exposed to certain risks and to reduce the amount of capital that is required to engage in our business, we may approach clients with an offer to cancel and commute certain reinsurance contracts or insurance contracts on terms to be negotiated. If these commutations take place, the policy and our ongoing obligations would be terminated. In addition, we would return premiums to those clients that frequently approximate our unearned premium reserve as of the date of cancellation. In those instances where we have collateralized our obligations under those policies, the termination would also result in the release of the collateral we had provided.

Many of our other insurance contracts and certain of our reinsurance contracts provide for cancellation at the option of the policyholder regardless of our financial strength rating, including those placed by the program manager of our HBW program. HBW gross premiums written and net premiums written during the three months ended March 31, 2006 totaled approximately \$43.7 million and approximately \$24.7 million. Based on our discussions with the program manager, we also understand that it will divert a substantial portion of the HBW program business to other carriers during 2006. We understand that some new carriers have begun writing casualty business in some states and that those carriers are in the process of filing and obtaining approval of rate and policy forms with regulatory authorities in other states. Other carriers are still in the process of negotiating the terms and conditions of a transaction with the HBW program manager. Until the new carriers are able to obtain the approvals they are still seeking or have finalized their negotiations with the HBW program manager, we are continuing to write casualty business for the program manager. We expect that a substantial amount of the HBW program business may be diverted to other carriers by December 31, 2006. Consequently, we currently estimate that the gross and net premiums written under the HBW program during 2006 will be less than 35% of the gross and net premiums written during 2005. We expect that the premiums written under our HBW program during 2007 will be significantly less than 2006 as the HBW program manager is able to move that business to new carriers.

We are working diligently to implement key steps designed to preserve shareholder value and respond to the rating actions taken by A.M. Best. A special committee of our Board of Directors has engaged Friedman, Billings, Ramsey & Co., Inc. and J.P. Morgan Securities Inc., as financial advisors. They are assisting us in evaluating strategic alternatives, including the potential sale of some or all of our businesses, the run off of certain product lines or the business or a combination of alternatives. Our financial advisors will also help us evaluate the use of potential excess capital to repay debt or to return value to our shareholders. During this process, the special committee and the Board have met a number of times to consider the potential strategic alternatives available to us, and we have been contacted by several parties and have had due diligence discussions with a number of those parties.

26

Table of Contents

There can be no assurance that any of these initiatives will not negatively impact our results of operations or will be successful in improving our position and preserving shareholder value.

After evaluating available alternatives, the Board of Directors may conclude that no other alternatives would be in the best interests of our shareholders and that the best alternative is to place our remaining insurance businesses in run off and eventually wind up our insurance operations over some period of time, which is not currently determinable.

We are also analyzing our business lines, their positioning and internal operations. We believe that we currently have sufficient assets to pay our foreseen liabilities as they become due, and we continue to earn investment income on our investment portfolio to support our general and administrative expenses. We maintain a global platform in the United States, Bermuda and Europe.

At this stage in our overall evaluation of strategic alternatives, we have determined to retain certain of our businesses. Currently, we continue to offer certain program business lines as well as professional liability and fidelity insurance lines in the United States, our Lloyd's business through our Lloyd's syndicate in the A.M. Best "A" rated Lloyd's market in Europe and our environmental consulting services through ESC in the United States. We are not writing new business in our professional liability, fidelity, environmental and marine and aviation insurance product lines or in our reinsurance and structured product lines. We are also no longer seeking new business in our surety insurance line and we will cease seeking new business in our marine and aviation reinsurance, casualty reinsurance and trade credit and political risk insurance lines during the second quarter of 2006.

Prior to the recent A.M. Best action, we had begun taking steps to reduce our costs, including the reduction of personnel following the exit of our technical risk property and property reinsurance lines, and reducing certain infrastructure costs, such as the reduction of consulting costs, the reduction of our office space and consolidation of our personnel in Bermuda. We have accelerated steps to reduce infrastructure costs and personnel expenses and have incurred severance costs during the first quarter of 2006 of approximately \$5.2 million. During the second and third quarters, we expect to recognize additional severance costs and reductions in general and administrative expenses as we align our infrastructure to the selected strategic option.

We generated approximately \$62.7 million and \$142.9 million of net premiums written after premiums ceded on purchased reinsurance protection during the three months ended March 31, 2006 and 2005. The downgrade in our ratings has had, and we believe will continue to have, a significant adverse affect on our business and has been, and we believe will continue to be, the primary driver of the reduction in our premiums written. Furthermore, our premiums ceded include \$19.0 million of ceded premium written related to the Property Transaction referred to above. We generated \$79.6 million and \$91.5 million of net premiums earned during the three months ended March 31, 2006 and 2005. During the three months ended March 31, 2006, we also purchased additional retrocessional protection in our marine, technical risk and aviation reinsurance product line, which is intended to help limit our net loss exposures to future catastrophe windstorm events. This purchase resulted in approximately \$2.2 million of premium ceded during the three months ended March 31, 2006. However, based on our current estimate of losses related to Hurricane Katrina, we have exhausted our reinsurance and retrocessional protection with respect to that hurricane. If our Hurricane Katrina losses prove to be greater than currently anticipated, we will have no further reinsurance and retrocessional coverage available for that windstorm.

As a result of our downgrade, our net premiums written for our insurance lines of business have started to significantly decline in March 2006. We believe the adverse impact of our downgrade on our net premiums written for our insurance lines of business will become more evident during the second quarter and remainder of 2006. In our insurance segment, net premiums written were \$54.7 million and \$54.8 million during the three months ended March 31, 2006 and 2005. In our specialty reinsurance segment, net premiums written were \$8.0 million and \$88.0 million during the three months ended March 31, 2006 and 2005. The decrease is due mainly to our exit from the property reinsurance market, and, as a result of the downgrade in our ratings, the reduction in marine reinsurance writings as well as policy cancellations in that business line and the decrease in our casualty reinsurance line during the first quarter of 2006. Because of the decrease of our reinsurance

27

Table of Contents

segment business, our specialty insurance segment became a more significant contributor to our overall business and represented approximately 87.3% of our total net premiums written in the three months ended March 31, 2006, compared to 38.3% in the three months ended March 31, 2005. As a result of the reduced net written premiums, increased ceded premiums and policy cancellations, our net earned premiums and underwriting profits have decreased, and we expect this trend to continue.

We believe that our portfolio is currently not diversified either among classes of risks or source of origination. For example, during the three months ended March 31, 2006, our HBW program accounted for approximately 51.8% of our specialty insurance segment gross premiums written. In addition, the HBW program and the other insurance programs we write, accounted for 53.7% of our specialty insurance segment gross premiums written in the three months ended March 31, 2006. Our Lloyd's business accounted for 24.9% of our specialty insurance segment gross premiums written. In addition, our specialty reinsurance segment generated approximately 50.5% and 39.1% of its gross premiums written through two brokers. The exit from our property reinsurance and technical risk property insurance line and the casualty reinsurance commutations, have further reduced our diversification in our product lines and will cause the concentrations across certain of our risk classes to increase. Further, we expect that concentrations in certain risk classes will increase as we cease seeking new business in the business lines discussed above.

During the three months ended March 31, 2006, we recognized losses of \$4.5 million related to tornadoes, and we recognized adverse development in our reserves of \$0.2 million related to Hurricanes Katrina, Rita and Wilma. We did not incur any additional losses during the three months ended March 31, 2006 related to the damage caused by an oil pipeline in California which ruptured during a mudslide in the first quarter of 2005. However, we could continue to incur losses from these as well as other historical events, including from policies that have been cancelled. Additionally, our outstanding policies remain subject to risk of new losses from future catastrophes and other events.

We have determined that \$740.8 million of investment securities, with unrealized losses of approximately \$6.1 million were other-than-temporarily impaired as of March 31, 2006. The realization of these losses represents the maximum amount of potential losses in our investment securities if we were to sell all of these securities as of March 31, 2006 and are primarily attributable to changes in interest rates and not changes in credit quality. As a result of our decision, the affected investments were reduced to their estimated fair value, which becomes their new cost basis. The recognition of the losses has no effect on our shareholders' equity, the market value of our investments, our cash flows or our liquidity. The evaluation for other-than-temporary impairments requires the application of significant judgment, including our intent to hold the investment for a period of time sufficient to allow for possible recovery. We believe we have sufficient assets to pay our currently foreseen insurance liabilities as they become due, and we have no immediate intent to liquidate the investment securities affected by our decision. However, due to the general uncertainties surrounding our business resulting from A.M. Best's downgrade of our financial strength ratings and our decision to explore strategic alternatives, we concluded that there are no absolute assurances that we will have the ability to hold the affected investments for a sufficient period of time. It is possible that the impairment factors evaluated by management and fair values will change in subsequent periods, resulting in additional material impairment charges.

A number of insurance companies have been subpoenaed by regulators in connection with investigations relating to business and accounting practices in the insurance industry. To date, we have not been served any subpoenas. We have received, and have responded to, inquiries from the North Carolina Department of Insurance, the Colorado Department of Insurance and Lloyd's. From January 1, 2004 to September 30, 2004 we were party to placement service agreements, known as PSAs and market service agreements, known as MSAs, with Aon Corporation and Marsh Inc. and have paid a total of \$31,000 under these agreements as of March 31, 2006. We have accrued approximately \$1.0 million in addition to the amount we have already paid under these agreements. At this time, it is not possible for us to determine the impact of any outcome of these investigations on our future results of operations.

In addition, we do not know what the ramifications of the brokers' stated intent to formulate a different commission structure will be on our future results of operations, financial condition or liquidity as brokers seek our participation in this commission structure.

28

Table of Contents

Segment Information

Due to the downgrade of our financial strength ratings by A.M. Best in March 2006, we are currently closely analyzing our business lines, positioning in the market and internal operations and identifying steps we should take to preserve shareholder value and improve our position. After completing this analysis, we may implement significant changes in the manner in which we have historically conducted our business. A special committee of our Board of Directors, with the assistance of financial advisors, is also evaluating strategic alternatives, including the potential sale of some or all of our businesses, the run off of certain product lines or the business or a combination of alternatives. For the fiscal periods presented in this report, we organized our business on a matrix of five product lines and three geographies. Our two traditional product lines were specialty insurance and specialty reinsurance. We also had programs and structured products lines. The products offered to our clients were written either as traditional insurance or reinsurance policies or were provided as a program, a structured product or a combination of a traditional policy with a program or a structured product. Our fifth product line was our technical services line. However, for financial reporting purposes, some of our product lines are aggregated for purposes of the reportable segment disclosure included below:

- Specialty insurance. Our specialty insurance segment includes our traditional, structured and program specialty insurance products. Our traditional specialty insurance products included in our specialty insurance segment results include technical risk property, professional liability, environmental liability, fidelity and crime, surety, trade credit and political risk and marine and aviation. Our specialty insurance segment writes business both on a direct basis with insured clients or by reinsuring policies that are issued on our behalf by third-party insurers and reinsurers, and includes our Lloyd's syndicate, which was created in December 2004. During the year ended December 31, 2005, we changed the composition of our reportable segments by aggregating the Lloyd's operating segment with the specialty insurance reportable segment. Our Lloyd's syndicate writes traditional specialty insurance products including professional liability (professional indemnity and directors' and officers' coverage), fidelity and crime (financial institutions) and specie and fine art. Our specialty insurance programs include the HBW program. After the end of the third quarter of 2005, we discontinued the writing of new and most renewal business in our technical risk property line of business. Currently, we are not writing new business in our U.S. professional liability, fidelity, environmental and marine and aviation specialty insurance product lines and our structured products line. We are no longer seeking new business in our surety line and we will cease seeking new business in our trade credit and political risk insurance lines during the second quarter of 2006.
- Specialty reinsurance. Our specialty reinsurance segment includes our traditional, structured and program specialty reinsurance products. Our specialty reinsurance products included in our specialty reinsurance segment results include property, casualty and marine and aviation products. We currently do not write reinsurance on a program basis. After the end of the third quarter of 2005, we discontinued the writing of new and most renewal business in our property

reinsurance of business and commuted a large portion of our casualty reinsurance portfolio. We have determined to cease seeking new business in our marine and aviation and casualty reinsurance business lines during the second quarter of 2006.

• Technical services. Our technical services segment provides diversified environmental investigation, remediation and engineering services, assessment services, other technical and information management services primarily in the environmental area in the U.S. Our technical services segment also provides technical and information management services to our specialty insurance and reinsurance segments.

The determination of these reportable segments reflects how we manage and monitor the performance of our insurance and reinsurance operations. We expect that the composition of these segments will change as our Board of Directors pursues strategic options available to us. We refer to the specialty insurance and specialty reinsurance segments as our underwriting segments. We refer to

29

Table of Contents

our risk consulting and management operations as our technical services segment. We evaluate each segment based on its underwriting or technical services results, as applicable, including items of revenue and expense that are associated with, and directly related to, each segment. A summary of our financial information by product line is set forth in Part I—Item 2—''Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations' contained herein.

We allocate corporate general and administrative expenses to each segment based upon each product line's allocated capital for the current reporting period. We allocate capital to each of our product lines through the estimated value-at-risk method, which uses statistical analyses of historical market trends and volatility to estimate the probable amounts of capital at risk for each reporting period. We do not manage our assets by segment and, as a result, net investment income, and depreciation and amortization are not evaluated at the segment level.

The geographies in which we conduct our business are the United States, Bermuda and Europe. The location of the risks that are the subject of our products may be anywhere in the world.

Main Drivers of our Results

Revenues

We derive the majority of our revenues from three principal sources: premiums from policies written by our underwriting segments, investment income from our investment portfolios, and technical services revenues.

We record premiums written at the time that there is sufficient evidence of agreement to the significant terms of the contract but no earlier than the effective date of the policy. The amount of our insurance and reinsurance premiums written and earned depends on the number and type of policies we write, the amount of reinsurance protection we provide, as well as prevailing market prices. Furthermore, the amount of net premiums earned depends upon the type of contracts we write, the contractual periods of the contracts we write, the inception date of the contracts, the expired portions of the contract periods and the type of purchased reinsurance protection. Because of all these factors, the amount of premiums written and ceded may not result in a correlative level of profitability.

Our investment income depends on the average invested assets in our investment portfolios and the yield that we earn on those invested assets. Our investment yield is a function of market interest rates and the credit quality and maturity

period of our invested assets. Our investment portfolio consists principally of fixed income securities, short-term liquidity funds, cash, and cash equivalents. In addition, we realize capital gains or losses on sales of investments as a result of changing market conditions, including changes in market interest rates and changes in the credit quality of our invested assets. We also recognize capital losses on investments as a result of other than temporary impairment charges. Under U.S. GAAP, our available-for-sale investments are carried at fair market value with unrealized gains and losses on the investments included on our balance sheet in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) net of income taxes as a separate component of shareholders' equity. Our trading investments that relate to deposits associated with non-risk bearing contracts are recorded at estimated fair value with the change in fair value included in net realized gains and losses on investments in the consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss. The objective of our current investment strategy is to preserve investment principal, maintain liquidity and to manage duration risk between investment assets and insurance liabilities, while maximizing investment returns through a diversified portfolio. Our investment returns are benchmarked against certain specified indices. However, the volatility in claim payments and the interest rate environment can significantly affect the returns we generate on our investment portfolios.

We also have revenues generated by our technical services segment, which operates primarily in the environmental area, from technical and risk management services provided under various short-term service contracts and for services performed by subcontractors engaged on behalf of clients. We also generate revenues from the remediation of environmental obligations that we have assumed. The amount of technical services and remediation fees and subcontractor revenues is a function of political and economic conditions and the impact these conditions have on clients' discretionary spending on environmental projects.

30

Table of Contents

Expenses

Our expenses primarily consist of net loss and loss expenses, general and administrative expenses, acquisition expenses and direct technical services costs.

Net loss and loss expenses, which are net of loss and loss expenses recovered under our ceded reinsurance contracts, depend on the number and type of insurance and reinsurance contracts we write and reflect our best estimate of ultimate losses and loss expenses we expect to incur on each contract written using various actuarial analyses. Actual losses and loss expenses will depend on actual costs to settle insurance and reinsurance claims. Our ability to accurately estimate expected ultimate loss and loss expense at the time of pricing each insurance and reinsurance contract and the occurrence of unexpected high loss severity catastrophe events are critical factors in determining our profitability.

General and administrative expenses consist primarily of personnel related expenses, information technology, other operating overheads and professional fees. From time to time we engage administrative service providers and legal, accounting, tax and financial advisors. General and administrative expenses are a function of the development of our business and infrastructure, including the growth in personnel and the volume of insurance and reinsurance contracts written. These general and administrative expenses may be incurred directly by a segment or indirectly at the corporate level.

Acquisition expenses, which are net of expenses recovered under our ceded reinsurance contracts, consist principally of commissions, fees, brokerage and tax expenses that are directly related to obtaining and writing insurance and

reinsurance contracts. Typically, acquisition expenses are based on a certain percentage of the premiums written on contracts of insurance and reinsurance. These expenses are a function of the number and type of insurance and reinsurance contracts written.

We also incur expenses directly related to and arising from our technical services and environmental remediation activities. These direct costs primarily include expenses associated with direct technical labor, subcontractors we engage on behalf of our technical services clients, and other technical services or remediation contract related expenses. These costs are a function of, and are proportional to, the level of technical services and remediation revenues earned from the provision of technical services and completion of remediation activities.

Financial Ratios

The financial ratios we use include the net loss and loss expense ratio, the acquisition expense ratio and the general and administrative expense ratio. Our net loss and loss expense ratio is calculated as net losses and loss expenses incurred divided by net premiums earned. Because our underwriting portfolios continue to change significantly, we expect that our net loss ratios may continue to be volatile. Our acquisition expense ratio is calculated by dividing acquisition expenses by net premiums earned. Our net loss and loss expense ratio and acquisition expense ratio provide a measure of the current profitability of the earned portions of our written insurance and reinsurance contracts. Our general and administrative expense ratio is calculated by dividing underwriting related general and administrative expenses by net premiums earned and indicates the level of indirect costs that we incur in acquiring and writing insurance and reinsurance business. During 2005, we changed the denominator to be used in the calculation of our general and administrative expense ratio to net premiums earned, instead of net premiums written. Our combined ratio is the aggregate of our loss and loss expense, acquisition expense and general and administrative expense ratios. We believe that these financial ratios appropriately reflect the profitability of our underwriting segments. A combined ratio of less than 100% indicates an underwriting profit and over 100%, an underwriting loss. Because we have a limited operating history, our combined ratio may be subject to significant volatility and may not be indicative of future profitability.

31

Table of Contents

Results of Operations

The following is a discussion of Quanta Holdings' consolidated results of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2006 and 2005.

Three months ended March 31, 2006 and 2005

Results of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2006 and 2005 were as follows:

Three months ended
March 31, 2006
March 31, 2005
(\$ in thousands)

Revenues

Gross premiums written \$ 114,869 \$ 172,726

Net premiums written	\$ 62,714	\$ 142,877
Net premiums earned	\$ 79,568	\$ 91,486
Technical services revenues	7,741	7,263
Net investment income	10,776	5,225
Net realized losses on investments	(8,320)	(483)
Net foreign exchange losses	(319)	(112)
Other income	1,037	1,573
Total revenues	90,483	104,952
Expenses		
Net losses and loss expenses	(54,382)	(57,496)
Acquisition expenses	(13,933)	(20,477)
Direct technical services costs	(5,000)	(4,861)
General and administrative expenses	(30,023)	(20,871)
Interest expense	(1,262)	(826)
Depreciation and amortization of intangible assets	(1,070)	(842)
Total expenses	(105,670)	(105,373)
Loss before income taxes	(15,187)	(421)
Income taxes	(32)	(223)
Net loss	(15,219)	(644)
Dividends on preferred shares	(1,916)	
Net loss available to common shareholders	\$ (17,135)	\$ (644)

Revenues.

Substantially all of our revenues were generated by our underwriting subsidiaries in the U.S., Bermuda and Europe. Technical services revenues were derived from the operations of ESC, QLT Buffalo LLC and QLT of Alabama, LLC.

Premiums. Gross premiums written were \$114.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2006, a decrease of \$57.8 million, or 33.5%, compared to \$172.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2005. The decrease in our gross premiums written was largely due to our decision, during the fourth quarter of 2005, to discontinue writing new and most renewal business in our technical risk property and property reinsurance lines of business (other than our program business) which accounted for approximately \$46.9 million, or 27.2%, of our gross premium written during the three months ended March 31, 2005 and to the significant adverse effects on our business arising from A.M. Best's ratings downgrade.

Premiums ceded were \$52.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2006 an increase of \$22.4 million, or 74.7%, compared to \$29.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2005. The increase in premiums ceded primarily reflects the portfolio transfer to a third party reinsurer under

32

Table of Contents

the Property Transaction which resulted in an additional \$19.0 million of premiums ceded during the three months ended March 31, 2006.

Net premiums earned were \$79.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2006, a decrease of \$11.9 million, or 13.0%, compared to \$91.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2005. The decrease in our premiums earned

was largely due to the portfolio transfer of \$19.1 million of earned premium to the third party reinsurer under the Property Transaction and, to a lesser extent, the effects of the recent downgrade. This reduction in net earned premiums were offset by the earning of premium on contracts of insurance and reinsurance written in 2005. Our net premiums written are typically earned over the risk periods of the underlying insurance policies which are generally twelve months. Net premiums written that are not yet earned and are deferred as unearned premium reserves, net of deferred reinsurance premiums, totaled \$208.0 million at March 31, 2006 and will be earned and recognized in our results of operations in future periods. Due to A.M. Best's ratings downgrade and additional policy cancellations and the Property Transaction, we expect that our net premiums earned will continue to decrease significantly.

Technical services revenues. Technical services revenues were \$7.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2006 an increase of \$0.4 million, or 6.6%, compared to \$7.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2005. This increase in technical services revenues is primarily attributable to an increase in remediation revenues associated with our liability assumption program in Buffalo, New York, which we expect to continue. However, as a result of the rating action and the actions being taken in our environmental insurance line, we expect that our technical services revenues will decrease in future periods.

Net investment income and net realized (losses) gains. Net investment income and net realized (losses) gains totaled \$2.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2006, a decrease of \$2.2 million, or 48.2%, compared to \$4.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2005. The decrease is primarily due to an increase in net realized losses of \$7.8 million, of which \$6.1 million is attributable to other than temporary impairment losses recognized during the three months ended March 31, 2006, partially offset by an increase in net investment income of \$5.6 million attributable to an increase in our invested assets and increases in market interest rates.

Net investment income was \$10.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2006 and was derived primarily from interest earned on fixed maturity and short term investments, partially offset by investment management fees and amortization of discounts on fixed maturity investments. Our average annualized effective yield (calculated by dividing net investment income by the average amortized cost of invested assets, net of amounts payable or receivable for investments purchased or sold) was approximately 4.4% for the three months ended March 31, 2006 compared to 3.2% for the three months ended March 31, 2005, reflecting increases in market interest rates. Net realized losses of \$8.3 million were generated primarily from our other than temporary impairment charge of \$6.1 million and also from the sale of investments which were in an unrealized loss position as we sought to manage our total investment returns and the duration of our investment portfolios.

As of March 31, 2006, the average duration of our investment portfolio was approximately 2.8 years with an average credit rating of approximately "AA+".

Other income was \$1.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2006 as compared to \$1.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2005. Other income includes the amortization of deferred revenue relating to assumed environmental liability programs of \$0.1 million and amounts recognized on non-traditional insurance and reinsurance contracts of \$0.8 million.

Expenses.

Net losses and loss expenses. Net losses and loss expenses were \$54.4 million for the three months ended March 31, 2006, a decrease of \$3.1 million, or 5.4%, compared to \$57.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2005. Net losses and loss expenses are a function of our net premiums earned and our expected ultimate losses and loss expenses for reported and unreported claims on contracts of insurance and reinsurance underwritten. The decrease in net losses and loss expenses is

Table of Contents

due to the decrease in our net premiums earned and losses ceded to the third party reinsurer under the Property Transaction. Included in net loss and loss expenses are \$4.9 million of losses recorded during the three months ended March 31, 2005 related to damages from a ruptured oil pipeline in California which was covered by an insurance contract issued by our environmental liability product line. Included in net loss and loss expenses during the three months ended March 31, 2006 is \$4.5 million of losses incurred during the three months ended March 31, 2006 related to a claim under our PWIB program from tornado losses occurring in March 2006. The decreases in net losses and loss expenses is further offset by increases in our selected loss ratios in certain product lines, as described below.

Included in our expected ultimate losses during the three months ended March 31, 2006 is adverse development on the loss estimates on contracts of reinsurance and insurance insuring claims arising from Hurricanes Katrina, Rita and Wilma of \$0.2 million. Our estimate of our exposure to ultimate claim costs associated with these hurricanes is primarily based on currently available information, claims notifications received to date, industry loss estimates, output from industry models, a review of affected contracts and discussion with cedents and brokers. The actual amount of losses from the hurricanes may vary significantly from the estimate.

Our expected ultimate losses during the three months ended March 31, 2006 do not include any additional estimated gross and net loss estimates related to damage caused by an oil pipeline in California which ruptured during a mudslide in the first quarter of 2005. There remains the possibility of further negative development on this loss in the future, particularly if the timing of the completion of the remediation plan for the spill is further delayed. In addition to the hurricanes, the tornado and the oil pipeline losses, as of March 31, 2006, we have received a limited amount of large reported losses. However, we participate in lines of business where claims may not be reported for some period of time after those claims are incurred.

Our total net loss ratio (calculated by dividing net losses and loss expenses by net premiums earned) was 68.3% for the three months ended March 31, 2006, an increase of 5.5% compared to a total net loss ratio of 62.8% for the three months ended March 31, 2005. The increase in the total net loss ratio is primarily due to higher selected loss ratios for our HBW program, Lloyd's, professional and environmental product lines, compared to the three months ended March 31, 2005, that we determined to use during our December 31, 2005 year end closing process.

Acquisition expenses. Acquisition expenses were \$13.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2006, a decrease of \$6.6 million, or 32.0%, compared to \$20.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2005. The decrease in acquisition expenses is primarily due to the decrease in the number of insurance and reinsurance contracts we entered into and the associated net premiums earned.

Our acquisition expense ratio for the three months ended March 31, 2006 was 17.5%, a decrease of 4.9% compared to our acquisition expense ratio of 22.4% for the three months ended March 31, 2005. The decrease is due to four factors. First, during 2006, our earned premium was more heavily weighted towards specialty insurance, which carries lower acquisition costs than specialty reinsurance. Second, we are paying less fronting costs on our specialty insurance lines because we are licensed in more states and no longer need to utilize fronting companies to the same extent in order to write our business. Third, our ceding commission income that we are recovering on our specialty insurance segment's reinsurance treaties has increased as a result of the restructuring of those treaties during the second quarter of 2005. Finally, we paid less commission in our HBW program because the contracts contain sliding scale commission provisions that vary with changes in the selected loss ratio. Deferred acquisition costs include, as of March 31, 2006, \$28.7 million of acquisition expenses on written contracts of insurance and reinsurance that will be amortized in future periods as the premiums written to which they relate are earned.

Direct technical services costs. Direct technical services costs were \$5.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2006, an increase of \$0.1 million, or 2.9% compared to \$4.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2005, and were comprised of subcontractor and direct labor expenses.

34

Table of Contents

Direct technical services costs, as a percentage of technical services revenues were approximately 64.6% for the three months ended March 31, 2006 compared to 66.9% for the three months ended March 31, 2005.

General and administrative expenses. General and administrative expenses were \$30.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2006, an increase of \$9.1 million, or 43.9%, compared to \$20.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2005. General and administrative expenses were comprised of \$19.2 million of personnel related expenses (including \$5.2 million of severance costs) and \$10.8 million of other general and administrative expenses during the three months ended March 31, 2006 compared to \$13.3 million of personnel related expenses and \$7.6 million of other expenses during the three months ended March 31, 2005. The increase in general and administrative expenses is due primarily to our severance costs and increases in auditing fees and fees associated with ongoing efforts relating to Sarbanes-Oxley Section 404 compliance. General and administrative expenses related to our underwriting segment was \$27.4 million for the three months ended March 31, 2006, which included \$0.3 million of expenses charged by our technical services segment for technical and information management services, and excluded \$2.9 million of expenses related to our technical services segment.

Our general and administrative expense ratio was 37.7% for the three months ended March 31, 2006 compared to 22.8% for the three months ended March 31, 2005. The increase was due to our severance costs, the higher number of employees and also to the impact of lower net earned premiums. In 2005, we changed the denominator in the calculation of our general and administrative expense ratio to net premiums earned, instead of net premiums written.

Interest expense. Interest expense was \$1.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2006, an increase of \$0.5 million, or 52.8%, compared to \$0.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2005 and relates to the interest expense on our junior subordinated debentures. The increase in the interest expense is due to the increase in the average balance of our junior subordinated debentures for the three months ended March 31, 2006 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2005, following the issuance of \$20.6 million securities in February 2005.

Depreciation and amortization of intangible assets. Depreciation and amortization of intangible assets was \$1.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2006, an increase of \$0.3 million, or 27.1%, compared to \$0.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2005 and consisted of amortization of intangible assets related to the acquisition of ESC and depreciation of fixed assets. The increase in depreciation and amortization is due to the development of information technology systems and the purchase of additional fixed assets throughout 2005.

Dividend expense. Dividend expense was \$1.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2006, compared to zero for the three months ended March 31, 2005 and represents the dividend paid on our series A preferred shares, that were issued in December 2005 and January 2006.

We have not recorded any net deferred income tax benefits or assets relating to tax operating losses generated by our subsidiaries since our results of operations include a 100% valuation allowance against net deferred tax assets. For the three months ended March 31, 2006, the net valuation allowance increased by approximately \$2.2 million, to \$27.0 million.

Results by Segments

Underwriting

We principally provide insurance and reinsurance protection for risks that are often unusual or difficult to place, that do not fit the underwriting criteria of standard commercial product carriers and that require extensive technical underwriting and assessment resources in order to be profitably underwritten. In measuring the performance of our specialty insurance and specialty reinsurance segments, we consider each segment's net underwriting income and a number of financial ratios. Net underwriting income is the sum of net premiums earned less net losses and loss expenses, acquisition expenses and direct and allocated general and administrative expenses. The financial ratios we use

35

Table of Contents

include the net loss and loss expense ratio, the acquisition expense ratio and the general and administrative expense ratio. Our net loss and loss expense ratio is calculated as net losses and loss expenses incurred divided by net premiums earned. Our acquisition expense ratio is calculated by dividing acquisition expenses by net premiums earned. Our net loss and loss expense ratio and acquisition expense ratio provide a measure of the current profitability of the earned portions of our written insurance and reinsurance contracts. Our general and administrative expense ratio is calculated by dividing underwriting related general and administrative expenses by net premiums earned and indicates the level of indirect costs that we incur in acquiring and writing insurance and reinsurance business. During 2005, we changed the denominator to be used in the calculation of our general and administrative expense ratio to net premiums earned, instead of net premiums written. Our combined ratio is the aggregate of our loss and loss expense, acquisition expense and general and administrative expense ratios. We believe that these financial ratios appropriately reflect the profitability of our underwriting segments. A combined ratio of less than 100% indicates an underwriting profit and over 100%, an underwriting loss. Because we have a limited operating history, our combined ratio may be subject to significant volatility and may not be indicative of future profitability.

We allocate indirect corporate general and administrative expenses among each of our segments, including those related to underwriting operations, as described above under "Segment Information."

During the year ended December 31, 2005, we changed the composition of our reportable segments to aggregate the Lloyd's operating segment with our specialty insurance reportable segment. We aggregated these segments to reflect that we operate these insurance businesses as one and that the Lloyd's business is very similar to the insurance business we write in the United States. Our Lloyd's operations were previously reported as a separate segment.

The following is a discussion of our net underwriting results and profitability measures by segment for the three months ended March 31, 2006 and 2005.

Three months ended March 31, 2006 and 2005

The following table summarizes our net underwriting results and profitability measures for our segments for the three months ended March 31, 2006 and 2005.

Specialty insurance

	Three months ended		Three months ended			
	Ma	rch 31, 2006	Ma	March 31, 2005		Change
			(\$ in th	ousands)		
Gross premiums written	\$	84,343	\$	83,319	\$	1,024
Premiums ceded		(29,599)		(28,552)		(1,047)
Net premiums written	\$	54,744	\$	54,767	\$	(23)
Net premiums earned	\$	58,039	\$	37,849	\$	20,190
Other income		130		254		(124)
Net losses and loss expenses		(38,731)		(27,848)		(10,883)
Acquisition expenses		(8,366)		(6,673)		(1,693)
General and administrative expenses ⁽¹⁾		(20,448)		(14,025)		(6,423)
Net underwriting loss	\$	(9,376)	\$	(10,443)	\$	1,067
Ratios:						
Loss and loss expense ratio		66.7%		73.6%		6.9%
Acquisition expense ratio		14.4%		17.6%		3.2%
General and administrative						
expense ratio		35.2%		37.1%		1.9%
Combined ratio		116.3%		128.3%		12.0%

⁽¹⁾Includes \$0.3 million and \$0.8 million of expenses charged by our technical services segment for technical and information management services for the three months ended March 31, 2006 and 2005. 36

Table of Contents

Premiums. Gross and net premiums written were \$84.3 million and \$54.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2006 compared to \$83.3 million and \$54.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2005. Included in our specialty insurance segment's gross premiums written is the contribution of \$19.3 million, or 22.8% of the specialty insurance segment's gross premiums written, from our Lloyd's syndicate, which commenced in December 2004. Following A.M. Best's ratings downgrade, our gross and net premiums written will significantly decrease in future periods.

The table below shows gross and net premiums written by product line for the three months ended March 31, 2006 and 2005 whether written on a traditional insurance, programs or structured basis.

		Three months ended March 31, 2006					onths ended 31, 2005	
		(\$ in thousands)						
		Gross		Net		Gross	Net	
	premiums		premiums		premiums		premiums	
		written		written	,	written	written	
Technical risk property ⁽¹⁾	\$	49,114	\$	29,864	\$	43,887	\$ 27,918	
Professional liability ⁽²⁾		23,247		17,503		25,211	18,136	

Environmental liability ⁽⁴⁾	6,215	3,717	5,842		3,517
Surety ⁽⁵⁾	2,111	1,296	2,871		2,121
Specie and fine art ⁽³⁾	1,366	1,205	_	_	_
Fidelity and crime	1,274	632	3,892		1,681
Trade credit and political risk ⁽⁴⁾	1,060	580	1,616		1,394
Other	(44)	(53)	_	_	
Total	\$ 84,343	\$ 54,744	\$ 83,319	\$	54,767

⁽¹⁾The gross and net premiums written generated by our HBW program is written in our technical risk property product line, as described below.

During the three months ended March 31, 2006, we continued to write, in our technical risk property product line, the HBW program, which accounted for approximately \$24.7 million, or 82.7%, of the technical risk property line of business and 45.1% of total specialty insurance segment net premiums written in the three months ended March 31, 2006. The HBW program accounted for \$26.2 million, or 93.9%, of the technical risk property product line and 47.8% of the total specialty insurance segment net premiums written for the three months ended March 31, 2005. We are no longer writing business in our technical risk property line other than the programs that are part of that line. The policies in the HBW program are underwritten by a third-party agent which follows our underwriting guidelines. We believe that this agent is an established specialist in this technical field. Our HBW gross premiums written during the three months ended March 31, 2006 are summarized in the table below by specialty risk class.

	(\$ in million				
Casualty	\$	36.7			
Warranty*		4.7			
Property		2.3			
Total	\$	43.7			

^{*}Warranty is written as reinsurance.

37

Table of Contents

Approximately 53.7% of our specialty insurance segment gross premiums written of \$84.3 million were generated through our program business, of which 51.8% was through our HBW program. The remaining 46.3% of our specialty insurance segment gross premiums written were generated through a number of brokers, none of which accounted for more than 10% of our total specialty insurance segment gross premiums written.

⁽²⁾The gross and net premiums written generated by our Lloyd's syndicate is included in the professional liability product line, and was \$17.9 million and \$13.6 million and \$16.3 million and \$12.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2006 and 2005.

⁽³⁾Specie and fine art is written by our Lloyd's Syndicate, resulting in total gross and net premiums written for our Lloyd's Syndicate of \$19.3 million and \$14.8 million and \$16.3 million and \$12.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2006 and 2005.

⁽⁴⁾Will no longer be seeking new business starting in the second quarter of 2006.

⁽⁵⁾No longer seeking new business since the first quarter of 2006.

Currently, we are writing only a limited number of new contracts in most of our traditional specialty insurance product lines, which have also been adversely affected by the A.M. Best downgrade. We are also currently seeing significant deterioration in our HBW program business and our business written at Lloyd's and we expect these trends to continue.

Premiums ceded were \$29.6 million during the three months ended March 31, 2006, an increase of \$1.0 million, or 3.7%, compared to \$28.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2005. The increase in premiums ceded reflects an increase in the retrocession of the casualty specialty risk class related to our HBW program compared to the three months ended March 31, 2005, and is attributable to a lesser extent to the development of the reinsurance program for our specialty insurance segment product lines, which was restructured during the year ended December 31, 2005.

Net premiums earned during the three months ended March 31, 2006 were \$58.0 million, an increase of \$20.2 million, or 53.3%, compared to \$37.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2005, representing amortization of premiums written and ceded during the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2005 and the three months ended March 31, 2006. The increase in our net premiums earned was largely due to historical growth in our insurance product lines including the contribution of \$16.5 million, or 28.4%, of our premiums earned, from of our Lloyd's syndicate, which commenced in December 2004, and was offset by the effect of the A.M. Best's ratings downgrade. Gross premiums written and ceded premiums are earned over the period of each insured risk. The terms of our insurance contracts range from between one and ten years with the majority of our contracts being for a one year period.

Other income. Other income was \$0.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2006 and related to income, including fees, recognized on non-traditional insurance contracts.

Net losses and loss expenses. Net losses and loss expenses were \$38.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2006, an increase of \$10.9 million compared to \$27.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2005. Net losses and loss expenses are a function of our net premiums earned and our expected ultimate losses and loss expenses for reported and unreported claims on contracts of insurance and reinsurance underwritten. The increase in net losses and loss expenses is primarily due to the increase in our net premiums earned. Included in net loss and loss expenses are \$4.9 million of losses recorded during the three months ended March 31, 2005 related to damages from a ruptured oil pipeline in California which was covered by an insurance contract issued by our environmental liability product line. Included in net loss and loss expenses during the three months ended March 31, 2006 is \$4.5 million of specific losses incurred during the three months ended March 31, 2006 related to a claim under our PWIB program from tornado losses occurring in March 2006.

Included in our expected ultimate losses during the three months ended March 31, 2006 is favorable development on the loss estimates on contracts of insurance insuring claims arising from Hurricanes Katrina, Rita and Wilma of \$0.1 million. Our estimate of our exposure to ultimate claim costs associated with these hurricanes is primarily based on currently available information, claims notifications received to date, industry loss estimates, output from industry models, a review of affected contracts and discussion with cedents and brokers. The actual amount of losses from the hurricanes may vary significantly from the estimate.

Our expected ultimate losses during the three months ended March 31, 2006 do not include any additional estimated gross and net loss estimates related to damage caused by an oil pipeline in California which ruptured during a mudslide in the first quarter of 2005, for which the damage is covered by an insurance contract issued by our environmental liability product line. There remains the possibility of further negative development on this loss in the future, particularly if the timing of the

38

Table of Contents

completion of the remediation plan for the spill is further delayed. In addition to the hurricanes, the tornado and the oil pipeline loss, as of March 31, 2006, we have received a limited amount of large reported losses. However, we participate in lines of business where claims may not be reported for some period of time after those claims are incurred.

Our specialty insurance segment net loss ratio was 66.7% for the three months ended March 31, 2006 a decrease of 6.9% compared to a net loss ratio of 73.6% for the three months ended March 31, 2005. The decrease in the specialty insurance segment net loss ratio is primarily due to the impact of the tornado losses during the three months ended March 31, 2006 having a lesser relative impact compared to the environmental loss as a percentage of the net earned premium during the three months ended March 31, 2005 and the result of restructuring our reinsurance of our insurance business during the second quarter of 2005. This decrease is offset by higher selected loss ratios for our HBW program, the professional insurance written in our Lloyd's syndicate and our environmental insurance in the three months ended March 31, 2006 as compared to loss ratios applicable to those lines in the three months ended March 31, 2005.

Acquisition expenses. Acquisition expenses were \$8.4 million for the three months ended March 31, 2006 an increase of \$1.7 million, or 25.4%, compared to \$6.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2005. The increase in acquisition expenses was due to the increase in the number of insurance contracts we entered into and the associated net premiums earned. These acquisition expenses primarily represented brokerage fees, commission fees and premium tax expenses and were net of ceding commissions earned on purchased reinsurance treaties.

Our acquisition expense ratio was 14.4% for the three months ended March 31, 2006, a decrease of 3.2% compared to 17.6% for the three months ended March 31, 2005. The reduction in our acquisition expense and our acquisition expense ratio in the specialty insurance segment is primarily due to three factors. First, we are paying less fronting costs because we are licensed in more states and no longer need to utilize fronting companies to the same extent in order to write our insurance business. Second, our ceding commission income that we are recovering on our specialty insurance segment's reinsurance treaties has increased as a result of the restructuring of those treaties during the second quarter of 2005. Third, we paid less commission in our HBW program during the three months ended March 31, 2006 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2005 as a result of the contracts containing sliding scale commission provisions that vary with changes in the selected loss ratio. Deferred acquisition costs include, as of March 31, 2006, \$17.7 million of acquisition expenses on written contracts of insurance that will be amortized in future periods as the premiums written to which they relate are earned.

General and administrative expenses. Direct and allocated indirect general and administrative expenses totaled \$20.4 million for the three months ended March 31, 2006 an increase of \$6.4 million, or 45.8%, compared to \$14.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2005. The increase in our general and administrative expense was due to severance costs and the additional number of employees hired throughout 2005, especially in Europe. The increase is also attributed to increases in auditing fees and fees associated with ongoing efforts relating to Sarbanes-Oxley Section 404 compliance allocated to our specialty insurance segment. Our general and administrative expense ratio decreased to 35.2% for the three months ended March 31, 2006, compared to 37.1% for the three months ended March 31, 2005 due to the impact of the increase in our specialty insurance segment's net premiums earned more than offsetting the impact of the increase in our general and administrative expenses.

39

Table of Contents

Specialty reinsurance

Three months ended		Three months ended		Classes
Mai	ren 31, 2006		•	Change
\$	30 526	· ·	•	\$ (58,881)
Ψ	*	Ψ	•	(21,259)
\$		\$		\$ (80,140)
	*			\$ (32,108)
Ψ	*	Ψ	•	84
				13,887
				8,237
				,
	(6,957)		(5,156)	(1,801)
\$	(5,882)	\$	5,819	\$ (11,701)
	73.2%		55.3%	(17.9)%
	25.9%		25.7%	(0.2)%
	32.3%		9.6%	(22.7)%
	131.4%		90.6%	(40.8)%
	Mar \$ \$ \$	ended March 31, 2006 \$ 30,526 (22,556) \$ 7,970 \$ 21,529 874 (15,761) (5,567) \$ (6,957) \$ (5,882) 73.2% 25.9% 32.3%	ended March 31, 2006 March 31, 2006 (\$ in the standard order of the standard order	ended March 31, 2006 March 31, 2006 (\$ in thousands) \$ 30,526 \$ 89,407 (22,556) (1,297) \$ 7,970 \$ 88,110 \$ 21,529 \$ 53,637 874 790 (15,761) (29,648) (5,567) (13,804) (6,957) \$ (5,156) \$ (5,882) \$ 5,819 73.2% 55.3% 25.9% 25.7%

Premiums. Gross and net premiums written were \$30.5 million and \$8.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2006 compared to \$89.4 million and \$88.1 million of gross and net premiums for the three months ended March 31, 2005. The decrease in our specialty reinsurance segment's net premiums written reflects the decrease in our property, casualty and marine, technical risk and aviation reinsurance business lines as a result of our decision to discontinue the writing of new and renewal business in our property reinsurance business line, the adverse effects of A.M. Best's ratings downgrade, the commutation of two treaties in our casualty reinsurance business line and the cancellation of marine, technical risk and aviation reinsurance contracts in March 2006 resulting in the return of gross premiums written of \$7.5 million following A.M. Best's ratings downgrade.

The table below shows gross and net premiums written by product line whether written on a traditional reinsurance, programs or structured basis:

		Three months ended March 31, 2006			Three months end March 31, 2003		
		(\$ in tho				ds)	
	Gross premiums		Net premiums		Gross premiums		Net
							written
		written	1	written		written	premium
Property	\$	19,957	\$	198	\$	44,439	\$ 44,439
Casualty		12,289		12,289		29,104	29,104
		(1,720)		(4,517)		15,864	14,567

Marine, technical risk and

aviation

Total \$ 30,526 \$ 7,970 \$ 89,407 \$ 88,110

Our casualty reinsurance gross premiums written during the three months ended March 31, 2006 are summarized in the table below by risk class.

Workers' compensation	60.3%
Commercial umbrella	20.5%
General liability	13.4%
Other	5.8%
Total	100.0%

40

Table of Contents

Our casualty reinsurance gross premiums written included in our other casualty category, were spread across 14 different risk classes, none of which accounted for more than 10% of our casualty reinsurance premiums written for the three months ended March 31, 2006.

Our marine, technical risk and aviation reinsurance gross premiums written, excluding the impact of \$7.5 million of returned gross premium written related to reinsurance contracts that were written during 2005 and cancelled in 2006, following the Company's downgrade by A.M. Best, during the three months ended March 31, 2006 were comprised of ocean marine risks only.

Approximately 50.5% and 39.1% of our specialty reinsurance segment gross premiums written of \$30.5 million were generated through Guy Carpenter & Company, Inc. and Benfield Group.

Ceded premiums were \$22.6 million during the three months ended March 31, 2006 compared to \$1.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2005. The increase of \$21.3 million in our ceded premiums written includes approximately \$19.8 million related to our property reinsurance line of business ceded to the third party reinsurer under the Property Transaction. The remainder is attributable to the purchase, during the three months ended March 31, 2006, of additional retrocession protection, including reinstatement premiums, for our specialty reinsurance marine, technical risk and aviation product line. We obtained the retrocession protection to help limit our net loss exposures to natural catastrophe events. These retrocession treaties provide us with protection on an excess of loss, quota share treaty and facultative basis for policies written in our reinsurance product lines of business. Ceded premiums are earned over the period of each insured risk.

Net premiums earned of \$21.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2006 have decreased by \$32.1 million compared to the three months ended March 31, 2005. The decrease reflects the impact of the decision to discontinue the writing of new and renewal business in our property reinsurance line of business, the commutation of two treaties in our casualty reinsurance line of business and the purchase of additional retrocessional protection and the impact of writing lower net premiums as a result of the A.M. Best ratings downgrade. Gross premiums written in our specialty reinsurance segment are being earned over the periods of reinsured or underlying insured risks which are typically one year.

Other income. Other income was \$0.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2006 compared to \$0.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2005, and related to income, including fees, recognized on non-traditional reinsurance contracts.

Net losses and loss expenses. Net losses and loss expenses were \$15.8 million for the three months ended 31, 2006 a decrease of \$13.9 million, or 46.8%, compared to \$29.6 million for the three months ended 31, 2005. The decrease in net losses and loss expenses incurred was due to our decision to discontinue the writing of new and renewal business in our property reinsurance line of business, the commutation of two treaties in our casualty reinsurance line of business, the decrease in the number of contracts we entered into as a result of the A.M. Best's ratings downgrade and the purchase of additional retrocessional protection. Net losses and loss expenses were a function of our net premiums earned and our expected ultimate losses and loss expenses for reported and unreported claims on contracts of reinsurance underwritten.

Included in our expected ultimate losses during the three months ended March 31, 2006 is adverse development on the loss estimates on contracts of reinsurance insuring claims arising from the 2005 hurricanes of \$0.3 million. Our estimate of our exposure to ultimate claim costs associated with these hurricanes is primarily based on currently available information, claims notifications received to date, industry loss estimates, output from industry models, a review of affected contracts and discussion with cedents and brokers. The actual amount of losses from the hurricanes may vary significantly from the estimate. Other than the hurricane losses, as of March 31, 2006, we have received a limited amount of large reported losses in our specialty reinsurance segment. However, we participate in lines of business where claims may not be reported for some period of time after those claims are incurred.

Our specialty reinsurance segment net loss ratio was 73.2% for the three months ended March 31, 2006 compared to 55.3% for the three months ended March 31, 2005. The increase in the

41

Table of Contents

specialty reinsurance segment net loss ratio is mainly due to the increase in our ceded earned premium, related to additional retrocessional protection purchased in our marine, technical risk and aviation product line compared to the three months ended March 31, 2005, which reduces our net earned premium. Substantially all of this ceded premium related to contracts of reinsurance purchased on an excess of loss basis, to provide us with protection in the event of severe or catastrophic events.

Acquisition expenses. Acquisition expenses were \$5.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2006 a decrease of \$8.2 million, or 59.7%, compared to \$13.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2005. The decrease in acquisition expenses was due to the decrease in the number of reinsurance contracts we entered into and the associated net premiums earned. These acquisition expenses primarily represented brokerage and ceding commissions.

Our acquisition expense ratio was 25.9% for the three months ended March 31, 2006, which is comparable to 25.7% for the three months ended March 31, 2005.

General and administrative expenses. Direct and allocated indirect general and administrative expenses totaled \$7.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2006 an increase of \$1.8 million, or 35.4% compared to \$5.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2005. The increase is primarily attributable to the allocation of employee related general and administrative expenses incurred by the Company. The increase is also due to increases in auditing fees

and fees associated with ongoing efforts relating to Sarbanes-Oxley Section 404 compliance allocated to our specialty reinsurance segment. Our general and administrative expense ratio was 32.3% for the three months ended March 31, 2006 compared to 9.6% for the three months ended March 31, 2005.

Technical services

	Three months ended March 31, 2006		Three months ended March 31, 2005		Change	
		(\$ in thousands)				
Technical services revenues	\$	8,145	\$	8,112	\$	33
Other income		120		10		110
Direct technical services costs		(5,000)		(4,861)		(139)
General and administrative expenses		(2,912)		(2,539)		(373)
Net technical services income	\$	353	\$	722	\$	(369)

Technical services revenues. Technical services revenues were \$8.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2006, compared to \$8.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2005.

Other income. Other income totaled \$0.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2006, an increase of \$0.1 million, compared to zero for the three months ended March 31, 2005. The increase was primarily generated from our liability assumption program in Buffalo, New York. This income primarily represents the amount of consideration received for the assumption of remediation liabilities in excess of the expected environmental remediation liability which is initially deferred in the consolidated balance sheet and subsequently recognized in earnings over the remediation period using the cost recovery or percentage of completion method.

Direct technical services costs. Direct technical services costs were \$5.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2006, an increase of \$0.1 million, compared to \$4.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2005. Direct technical services costs, as a percentage of revenue was 61.4% for the three months ended March 31, 2006 compared to 59.9% for the three months ended March 31, 2005, reflecting an increase in the usage of subcontractors for environmental projects in 2006 as compared to 2005.

General and administrative expenses. Direct and indirect allocated general and administrative expenses were \$2.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2006, an increase of \$0.4 million, or 14.7% compared to \$2.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2005. The increase is attributable to increased personnel costs and higher overhead allocation arising from the development of our infrastructure and Sarbanes-Oxley Section 404 compliance efforts.

42

Table of Contents

Financial Condition and Liquidity

Quanta Holdings is organized as a Bermuda holding company, and as such, has no direct operations of its own. Our assets consist of investments in our subsidiaries through which we conduct substantially all of our insurance, reinsurance and technical services operations. As of March 31, 2006, we had operations in the U.S., Bermuda, Ireland

and the U.K., including Syndicate 4000.

As a holding company, we will have continuing funding needs for general corporate expenses, the payment of principal and interest on current and future borrowings, dividends on our preferred shares, taxes, and the payment of other obligations. Funds to meet these obligations will come primarily from dividends, interest and other statutorily permissible payments from our operating subsidiaries. The ability of our operating subsidiaries to make payments to Quanta Holdings is limited by the applicable laws and regulations of the domiciles in which the subsidiaries operate. These laws and regulations subject our subsidiaries to significant restrictions and require, among other things, that some of our subsidiaries maintain minimum solvency requirements and limit the amount of dividends that these subsidiaries can pay to us. Rating agency considerations also limit our ability to transfer capital allocated among our insurance operating subsidiaries. Additionally, there are significant restrictions regarding our ability to remove the funds deposited to support our underwriting capacity of our Lloyd's syndicate. As a result, there are restrictions on our ability to transfer substantially all of the investment balances of our insurance subsidiaries to Quanta Holdings.

We are also subject to constraints under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda ("Companies Act") that affect our ability to pay dividends on our shares. We may not declare or pay a dividend or make a distribution if we have reasonable grounds for believing that we are, or will after the payment be, unable to pay our liabilities as they become due or if the realizable value of our assets will thereby be less than the aggregate of our liabilities and our issued share capital and share premium accounts. As a result of our losses, for Bermuda company law purposes, the realizable value of our assets may no longer exceed the aggregate of our liabilities and our issued share capital and share premium accounts. In order for Quanta Holdings to have the flexibility to pay dividends to shareholders, we have filed a definitive proxy statement including a proposal for approval by the holders of our common shares at the 2006 annual general meeting to reduce the share premium account by \$656.9 million and allocate that sum to our contributed surplus account.

We estimate that we currently have investments of approximately \$998.6 million, including cash and cash equivalent balances of approximately \$166.1 million. We estimate that our cash and cash equivalents and investment balances include approximately \$254.3 million that is pledged as collateral for letters of credit, approximately \$171.9 million held in trust funds for the benefit of ceding companies and to fund our obligations associated with the assumption of an environmental remediation liability, \$160.5 million that is held by Lloyd's to support our underwriting activities, \$51.0 million held in trust funds that are related to our deposit liabilities and \$29.6 million that is on deposit with, or has been pledged to, U.S. state insurance departments. After giving effect to these assets pledged or placed in trust, we estimate that we presently have net unrestricted investments of \$331.2 million, including net cash and cash equivalents of approximately \$77.9 million. Of the \$331.2 million, approximately \$311.7 million represents net unrestricted investments held by our operating subsidiaries which are subject to significant legal, regulatory and compliance requirements.

Substantially all of our capital has been distributed among our rated operating subsidiaries based on our assessment of the levels of capital that we believe are prudent to support our business, the applicable regulatory requirements, and the recommendations of the insurance regulatory authorities and rating agencies. We believe our operating subsidiaries have sufficient assets to pay their respective currently foreseen insurance liabilities as they become due.

Some of our insurance and many of our reinsurance contracts contain termination rights that are triggered by the A.M. Best rating downgrade. Some of these insurance and reinsurance contracts also require us to post additional security. Further, a downgrade in our rating below "B++" (very good) will trigger termination provisions or require the posting of additional security in certain of our other insurance and reinsurance contracts. As a result, we may be required to post additional security either through the issuance of letters of credit or the placement of securities in trust under the terms of

Table of Contents

those insurance or reinsurance contracts. In addition, many of our insurance contracts and certain of our reinsurance contracts provide for cancellation at the option of the policyholder regardless of our financial strength rating. Accordingly, we may also elect to post security under these other contracts in order to maintain that business.

We estimate that we currently have net cash and cash equivalent balances and other investments of approximately \$331.2 million that are available to post as security or place in trust. We currently believe that we have sufficient assets to pay our foreseen liabilities as they become due and meet our foreseen collateral requirements within our insurance subsidiaries. However, we cannot draw letters of credit or borrow under our credit agreement if we have incurred a material adverse effect or if a default exists under the agreement. A downgrade in our rating below "B++" (very good) will cause a default in our credit facility. The obligations under the credit facility are currently fully secured by investments and cash. If a default occurs under the credit agreement, our lenders may require us to cash collateralize a portion or all of the outstanding letters of credit issued under the facility, which may be accomplished through the substitution or liquidation of collateral. Among other things, the lenders would also have the right to cancel outstanding letters of credit issued under the facility and we would be limited in releasing collateral without the lenders' consent. If we fail to maintain or enter into adequate letter of credit facilities on a timely basis, we would be required to place securities in trust or similar arrangements, which would be more difficult and costly to establish and administer.

Financial condition

Our Board of Directors established our investment policies and created guidelines for hiring external investment managers. Management implements our investment strategy with the assistance of the external managers. Our investment guidelines specify minimum criteria on the overall credit quality, liquidity and risk-return characteristics of our investment portfolio and include limitations on the size of particular holdings, as well as restrictions on investments in different asset classes. The Board of Directors monitors our overall investment returns and reviews compliance with our investment guidelines.

Our investment strategy seeks to preserve principal and maintain liquidity while trying to maximize total return through a high quality, diversified portfolio. Investment decision making is guided mainly by the nature and timing of our expected liability payouts, management's forecast of our cash flows and the possibility that we will have unexpected cash demands, for example, to satisfy claims due to catastrophic losses. Our investment portfolio currently consists mainly of highly rated and liquid fixed income securities. However, to the extent our insurance liabilities are correlated with an asset class outside our minimum criteria, our investment guidelines will allow a deviation from those minimum criteria provided such deviations reduce overall risk.

We have determined that \$740.8 million of investment securities, with unrealized losses of approximately \$6.1 million were other-than-temporarily impaired as of March 31, 2006. The realization of these losses represents the maximum amount of potential losses in our investment securities if we were to sell all of these securities as of March 31, 2006 and are primarily attributable to changes in interest rates and not changes in credit quality. As a result of our decision, the affected investments were reduced to their estimated fair value, which becomes their new cost basis. The recognition of the losses has no effect on our shareholders' equity, the market value of our investments, our cash flows or our liquidity. The evaluation for other-than-temporary impairments requires the application of significant judgment, including our intent to hold the investment for a period of time sufficient to allow for possible recovery. We believe we have sufficient assets to pay our currently foreseen insurance liabilities as they become due, and we have no immediate intent to liquidate the investments securities affected by our decision. However, due to the general uncertainties surrounding our business resulting from A.M. Best's March 2006 downgrade of our financial strength ratings and our decision to explore strategic alternatives, we concluded that there are no absolute assurances that we

will have the ability to hold the affected investments for a sufficient period of time. It is possible that the impairment factors evaluated by management and fair values will change in subsequent periods, resulting in additional material impairment charges.

44

Table of Contents

Our investment guidelines require compliance with applicable local regulations and laws. Without Board approval, we will not purchase financial futures, forwards, options, swaps and other derivatives, except for instruments that are purchased as part of our business, for purposes of hedging capital market risks (including those within our structured products transactions), or as replication transactions, which are defined as a set of derivative, insurance and/or securities transactions that when combined produce the equivalent economic results of an investment meeting our investment guidelines. While we expect that the majority of our investment holdings will be denominated in U.S. dollars, we may make investments in other currency denominations depending upon the currencies in which loss reserves are maintained, or as may be required by regulation or law.

Our available-for-sale investments, excluding trading investments related to deposit liabilities, totaled \$785.2 million as of March 31, 2006 compared to \$699.1 million at December 31, 2005. The market value of our total investment portfolio was \$823.1 million, of which \$777.6 million related to available-for-sale fixed maturity investments, \$7.6 million related to available for sale short-term investments and \$37.9 million to trading investments related to deposit liabilities. The majority of our investment portfolio consists of fixed maturity investments which are managed by the following external investment advisors: Pacific Investment Management Company LLC, JP Morgan Investment Management Inc. and Deutsche Asset Management. Custodians of our externally managed investment portfolios are JP Morgan Chase Bank N.A., Citibank N.A. and Comerica Incorporated.

Our investment guidelines require that the average credit quality of the investment portfolio is typically Aa3/AA- and that no more than 5% of the investment portfolio's market value shall be invested in securities rated below Baa3/BBB-. As of March 31, 2006, all of the fixed maturity investments were investment grade, with a weighted average credit rating of "AA+" based on ratings assigned by S&P. Our cash and cash equivalents totaled \$204.9 million as of March 31, 2006 compared to \$260.9 million at December 31, 2005. The increase in our available-for-sale investments and cash and cash equivalents is primarily due to the collection of premiums receivable during the three months ended March 31, 2006, partially offset by claims notifications and associated loss payments we have made up to and including March 31, 2006.

Our insurance and reinsurance premiums receivable balances totaled \$147.0 million as of March 31, 2006 compared to \$146.8 million at December 31, 2005. The increase in premiums receivable reflects net premiums written across the specialty insurance segment during the three months ended March 31, 2006, offset by our decision to discontinue writing new and renewal business in our property reinsurance and technical risk property lines of business during the fourth quarter of 2005. Included in our premiums receivable are approximately \$96.5 million of written premium installments that are not yet currently due under the terms of the related insurance and reinsurance contracts. As of March 31, 2006, based on our review of the remaining balance of \$50.5 million, which represents premiums installments that are currently due, we believe there are no individually significant balances that are delinquent or uncollectible.

Our deferred acquisition costs and unearned premiums, net of deferred reinsurance premiums, totaled \$28.7 million and \$208.0 million, respectively, as of March 31, 2006 compared to \$33.1 million and \$224.5 million as of December 31, 2005. The decrease in our deferred acquisition costs and in unearned premiums, net of deferred reinsurance,

during the three months ended March 31, 2006 are due to lower premiums written, following the discontinuance of writing new and most renewal business in our property reinsurance and technical risk property insurance product lines and the impacts to our business arising from A.M. Best's ratings downgrade. These amounts represent premiums and acquisition expenses on written contracts of insurance and reinsurance that will be recognized in earnings in future periods. Substantially all of these amounts will be recognized over the next 12 months.

Our reserves for losses and loss adjustment expenses, net of reinsurance recoverable, totaled \$393.9 million as March 31, 2006 compared to \$343.6 million as of December 31, 2005. The increase in our net loss and loss expense reserves reflects our net losses and loss expenses incurred during the three months ended March 31, 2006, including the losses of \$4.5 million resulting from tornadoes that impacted our technical risk line of business. The increase was also driven by the number of insurance

45

Table of Contents

contracts we entered into and the associated net premiums earned, as well as greater reinsurance recoveries relative to our payment of losses during the period. Our estimate of our unpaid exposure to ultimate claim costs associated with these losses is based on currently available information, claim notifications received to date, industry loss estimates, output from industry models, a review of affected contracts and discussion with clients, cedants and brokers. The actual amount of future loss payments relating to these loss events may vary significantly from this estimate. The balance of reserves for losses and loss adjustment expenses as of March 31, 2006 includes our estimate of gross unpaid loss expenses totaling \$156.3 million relating to Hurricanes Katrina, Rita and Wilma and \$5.5 million relating to the environmental claim that we incurred during the year ended December 31, 2005. During the three months ended March 31, 2006 we have received a limited amount of other reported losses. However, we participate in lines of business where claims may not be reported for some period of time after those claims are incurred.

Our estimate of our reserves for losses and loss adjustment expenses as of March 31, 2006 of \$393.9 million is net of reinsurance recoverable of \$198.3 million. The increase in our reinsurance recoverable balance reflects our losses and loss expenses recoverable from reinsurers during the three months ended March 31, 2006. The balance as of March 31, 2006 also includes our estimate of unpaid loss expenses recoverable totaling \$80.1 million relating to Hurricanes Katrina, Rita and Wilma and \$2.9 million relating to the environmental claim that we incurred during the year ended December 31, 2005. Our estimate of our reinsurance recoverable balance associated with these losses is based on currently available information, claim notifications received to date, industry loss estimates, output from industry models, a detailed review of affected ceded reinsurance contracts and an assessment of the credit risk to which the Company is subject. The actual amount of future loss receipts relating to these loss events may vary significantly from this estimate. The average credit rating of the Company's reinsurers as of March 31, 2006 is "A" (excellent) by A.M. Best. As of March 31, 2006, the losses and loss adjustment expenses recoverable from reinsurers balance in the consolidated balance sheet included approximately 24% due from Everest Reinsurance Ltd., a reinsurer rated "A+" (superior) by A.M. Best, and approximately 15% due from various Lloyd's syndicates, which are rated "A" (excellent) by A.M. Best. No other reinsurers accounted for more than 10% of the losses and loss adjustment expense recoverable balance as of March 31, 2006. Less than 4.2% of the Company's loss and loss adjustment expenses recoverable from reinsurers are due from reinsurers that are rated below "A-" (excellent). As of March 31, 2006, of our gross reserves for losses and loss adjustment expenses of \$592.3 million, \$184.5 million related to case reserves for reported losses and loss expenses and \$407.8 million related to reserves for losses and loss expenses incurred but not reported. As of March 31, 2006, of our reserves for losses and loss adjustment expenses, net of reinsurance recoverable of \$393.9 million, \$101.4 million related to case reserves for reported losses and loss expenses and \$292.5 million related to reserves for losses and loss expenses incurred but not reported.

The following table lists our largest reinsurers measured by the amount of losses and loss adjustment expenses recoverable at March 31, 2006 and the reinsurers' financial strength rating from A.M. Best:

46

<u>Table of Contents</u>			
	Adjustm Rec	Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses Recoverable (\$ in millions)	
Reinsurer			
Everest Reinsurance Company	\$	48.2	A+
Lloyd's		30.9	A
Arch Reinsurance		19.3	A-
XL Capital Ltd.		11.3	A+
Allianz Marine & Aviation		10.7	A-
New Reinsurance Company		10.0	A+
Glacier Reinsurance AG		8.4	A-
The Toa Reinsurance Company, Ltd. (Tokyo)		8.1	A
Aspen Insurance		7.5	A
Transatlantic Reinsurance Company		7.2	A+
Odyssey America Reinsurance		7.1	A
Max Re		6.7	A-
Other Reinsurers Rated A- or Better		15.1	A-
All Other Reinsurers		7.8	Various
Total	\$	198.3	

Our shareholders' equity was \$367.1 million as of March 31, 2006 compared to \$384.2 million as of December 31, 2005, reflecting a decrease of \$17.1 million that was primarily the result of a net loss available to ordinary shareholders of \$17.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2006 and by a net change in unrealized losses on our investment portfolios of \$0.2 million, partially offset by a stock-compensation expense credited to additional paid-in capital of \$0.4 million. As of March 31, 2006, we have provided a 100% cumulative valuation allowance against our deferred tax assets in the amount of \$27.0 million. These deferred tax assets were generated primarily from net operating losses. As a start-up company with limited operating history, the realization of these deferred tax assets is neither assured nor accurately determinable.

The following table shows our capitalization as of March 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005 (in thousands):

	As o	of March 31, 2006	As of December 31, 2005		
Debt outstanding:					
Revolving credit facility (1)	\$	_	\$		
Junior subordinated debentures		61,857		61,857	
Redeemable preferred shares:					
Redeemable preferred shares (\$0.01 par value;		74,998		71,838	
25,000,000 shares authorized; 3,130,525 issued and					

outstanding at March 31, 2006 and 3,000,000 issued

and outstanding at December 31, 2005)

Shareholders' equity:

Common shares (\$0.01 par value; 200,000,000 common shares authorized; 69,946,861 issued and outstanding at

shares authorized, 09,940,001 issued and outstanding at				
March 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005)		699		699
Additional paid-in capital		581,929		
Accumulated deficit		(216,145)		(199,010)
Accumulated other comprehensive income		213		546
Total shareholders' equity	\$	367,065	\$	384,164
Total capitalization	\$	503,920	\$	517,859
Total debt to total capital ratio (2)		27%		26%

⁽¹⁾Consists of a \$250 million secured letter of credit and revolving credit facility dated July 11, 2005. Up to \$25.0 million may be borrowed under the facility on a revolving basis for general corporate purposes and working capital

Table of Contents

47

requirements. As of March 31, 2006, \$225.6 million of letters of credit were outstanding under this facility. No revolving credit borrowings or amounts drawn under the letters of credit were outstanding as of March 31, 2006.

- (2) The debt to total capital ratio is calculated as the sum of the revolving credit facility, junior subordinated debentures and redeemable preferred shares, or Total Debt, divided by the sum of Total Debt and Total Shareholders' Equity, or Total Capitalization.
- (3) This table does not give effect to warrants and options exercisable for 5,598,283 and 5,595,213 common shares at March 31, 2006 and 2005.

On January 11, 2006, Quanta Holdings, pursuant to an Underwriting Agreement dated December 14, 2005 with FBR and BB&T Capital Markets (the "Underwriters"), sold 130,525 10.25% Series A Preferred Shares following the exercise of the over-allotment option that was granted to them on December 14, 2005. The gross proceeds to the Company were \$3.3 million. The series A preferred shares are reflected as redeemable preferred shares on our balance sheet as of March 31, 2006.

Upon liquidation, dissolution or winding-up, the holders of our series A preferred shares will be entitled to receive from our assets legally available for distribution to shareholders a liquidation preference of \$25 per share, plus declared but unpaid dividends and additional amounts, if any, to the date fixed for distribution. Dividends on our series A preferred shares will be payable on a non-cumulative basis only when, as and if declared by our Board of Directors, quarterly in arrears on the fifteenth day of March, June, September and December of each year, commencing on March 15, 2006. Dividends declared on our series A preferred shares will be payable at a rate equal to 10.25% of the liquidation preference per annum (equivalent to \$2.5625 per share).

On and after December 15, 2010, we may redeem our series A preferred shares, in whole or in part, at any time, at the redemption price set forth in the Certificate of Designation relating to preferred shares, plus declared but unpaid dividends and additional amounts, if any, to the date of redemption. We may not redeem our series A preferred shares before December 15, 2010 except that we may redeem our series A preferred shares before that date pursuant to certain tax redemption provisions described in the Certificate of Designation. If we experience a change of control, we may be required to make offers to redeem our series A preferred shares at a price of \$25.25 per share, plus declared

but unpaid dividends and additional amounts, if any, to the date of redemption and on the terms described in the Certificate of Designation. Our series A preferred shares have no stated maturity and are not subject to any sinking fund and are not convertible into any of our other securities or property.

Liquidity

Operating Cashflow; Cash and Cash Equivalents

We generated net operating cash flow of approximately \$17.4 million during the three months ended March 31, 2006, primarily related to premiums and investment income received and offset by losses and loss expenses as well as general and administrative expenses paid. In addition, we also generated net proceeds from the issuance of our preferred shares of \$3.2 million. During the same period, we invested net cash of \$77.8 million in our investment assets. Our cash flows from operations for the three months ended March 31, 2006 provided us with sufficient liquidity to meet operating cash requirements during that period.

We estimate that we currently have investments of approximately \$998.6 million, including cash and cash equivalent balances of approximately \$166.1 million. We estimate that our cash and cash equivalents and investment balances include approximately \$254.3 million that is pledged as collateral for letters of credit, approximately \$171.9 million held in trust funds for the benefit of ceding companies and to fund our obligations associated with the assumption of an environmental remediation liability, \$160.5 million that is held by Lloyd's to support our underwriting activities, \$51.0 million held in trust funds that are related to our deposit liabilities and \$29.6 million that is on deposit with, or has been pledged to, U.S. state insurance departments. After giving effect to these assets pledged or placed in trust, we estimate that we presently have net unrestricted investments of \$331.2 million, including net cash and cash equivalents of approximately \$77.9 million. We believe our

48

Table of Contents

operating subsidiaries currently have sufficient assets to pay their respective foreseen liabilities as they become due. We also believe that subject to meeting significant legal, regulatory and compliance requirements, our operating subsidiaries can distribute sufficient funds to Quanta Holdings to enable Quanta Holdings to pay its currently foreseen liabilities as they become due.

Sources of cash

Our sources of cash consist primarily of existing cash and cash equivalents, premiums written, proceeds from sales and redemptions of investment assets, capital or debt issuances, investment income, reinsurance recoveries, and, to a lesser extent, our secured bank credit facility and collections of receivables for technical services rendered to third parties. As a result of our recent ratings downgrade by A.M. Best, the resulting loss of business and business opportunities, our decision to currently cease writing new business in many of our product lines and pending termination of our agreement with the program manager of the HBW program, cash flows associated with the receipt of premiums will decrease substantially in 2006.

On December 29, 2005, the underwriters exercised their over-allotment option to acquire an additional 130,525 series A preferred shares at the offering price of \$25.00 per share. This resulted in gross proceeds of \$3.3 million which were received and recorded on January 11, 2006. The proceeds are being used for general corporate purposes.

On July 11, 2005, Quanta Holdings and certain designated insurance subsidiaries entered into an amended and restated credit agreement, dated July 11, 2005, providing for a secured bank letter of credit facility and a revolving credit facility with a syndicate of lenders in the amount of \$250 million. Up to \$25 million may be borrowed under the facility on a revolving basis for general corporate purposes and working capital requirements. The facility is secured by specified investments of the borrowers. As of March 31, 2006, we have approximately \$225.6 million of secured letters of credit issued and outstanding under the facility. We have not made any borrowings under the revolving credit facility. The obligations under the credit facility are currently fully secured by investments and cash. The availability to a borrower is based on the amount of eligible investments pledged by that borrower. Regulatory restrictions will also limit the amount of investments that may be pledged by our U.S. insurance borrowers and, consequently, the amount available for letters of credit and borrowings under the facility to those borrowers. In addition, we cannot draw letters of credit or borrow under the credit agreement if we have incurred a material adverse effect or if a default exists under the agreement.

The credit agreement has certain financial covenants, including a leverage ratio (consolidated indebtedness to consolidated total capital) of not greater than 0.35 to 1, a minimum consolidated net worth of at least \$301 million which shall be increased immediately following the last day of each fiscal quarter by an amount equal to 50% of the net income of the Company and its subsidiaries and maintenance of the Company's insurance ratings. In addition, the credit agreement contains certain covenants restricting the activities of Quanta Holdings and its subsidiaries, such as the incurrence of additional indebtedness, liens and dividends and other payments to Quanta Holdings. A ratings downgrade below B++ would also create an event of default under the credit agreement. If a default occurs under the credit agreement, our lenders may require us to cash collateralize a portion or all of the outstanding letters of credit issued under the facility, which may be accomplished through the substitution or liquidation of collateral. Among other things, the lenders would also have the right to cancel outstanding letters of credit issued under the facility and we would be limited in releasing collateral without the lenders' consent. Quanta Holdings has unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed all of the obligations of its subsidiaries to the lenders. The facility terminates on July 11, 2008.

Uses of cash and liquidity

We estimate that we currently have investments of approximately \$998.6 million, including cash and cash equivalent balances of approximately \$166.1 million. We estimate that our cash and cash equivalents and investment balances include approximately \$254.3 million that is pledged as collateral

49

Table of Contents

for letters of credit, approximately \$171.9 million held in trust funds for the benefit of ceding companies and to fund our obligations associated with the assumption of an environmental remediation liability, \$160.5 million that is held by Lloyd's to support our underwriting activities, \$51.0 million held in trust funds that are related to our deposit liabilities and \$29.6 million that is on deposit with, or has been pledged to, U.S. state insurance departments. After giving effect to these assets pledged or placed in trust, we estimate that we presently have net investments of \$331.2 million, including net cash and cash equivalents of approximately \$77.9 million. Substantially all of our capital has been distributed among our rated operating subsidiaries based on our assessment of the levels of capital that we believe are prudent to support our business, the applicable regulatory requirements, and the recommendations of the insurance regulatory authorities and rating agencies.

Some of our insurance and many of our reinsurance contracts contain termination rights that are triggered by the A.M. Best rating downgrade. Some of these insurance and reinsurance contracts also require us to post additional security.

As a result, we may be required to post additional security either through the issuance of letters of credit or the placement of securities in trust under the terms of those insurance or reinsurance contracts. We may also elect to post security under other insurance contracts in order to maintain that business. We estimate that we currently have net cash and cash equivalent and investment balances of approximately \$331.2 million that are available to post as security or place in trust.

If A.M. Best downgrades our financial strength ratings below our current rating of "B++," we will be in default under our credit agreement. We cannot draw letters of credit or borrow under our existing credit agreement if we have incurred a material adverse effect or if a default exists under the agreement. If we fail to maintain or enter into adequate letter of credit facilities on a timely basis, we may be unable to provide necessary security to cedent companies under our existing retrocessional and reinsurance contracts that have the right to require the posting of additional security by reason of the downgrade of our A.M. Best rating. We cannot assure you that we will be able to increase the commitment under our existing bank credit facility or obtain additional credit facilities at terms acceptable to us. Our inability to maintain or enter into adequate credit facilities would have a material adverse effect on our results of operations. The obligations under the credit facility are currently fully secured. If a default occurs under the credit agreement, our lenders may require us to cash collateralize a portion or all of the outstanding letters of credit issued under the facility, which may be accomplished through the substitution or liquidation of collateral. Among other things, the lenders would also have the right to cancel outstanding letters of credit issued under the facility and we would be limited in releasing collateral without the lenders' consent. If we fail to maintain or enter into adequate letter of credit facilities on a timely basis, we would be required to place securities in trust or similar arrangements, which would be more difficult and costly to establish and administer.

In the near term, our other principal cash requirements are expected to be investments in operating subsidiaries, losses and loss adjustment expenses and other policy holder benefits, brokerage and commissions, expenses to develop and implement our business strategy, including potential severance payments, other operating expenses, premiums ceded, capital expenditures, the servicing of borrowing arrangements (including the Debentures), dividend payments on our series A preferred shares, and taxes. The potential for a large claim under one of our insurance or reinsurance contracts means that we may need to make substantial and unpredictable payments within relatively short periods of time. As a result of the recent downgrade of our financial strength ratings by A.M. Best, we are closely analyzing our business lines, positioning in the market and internal operations and identifying steps we should take to preserve shareholder value and improve our position, including the exploration of strategic alternatives. We may incur substantial costs, including severance payments, in connection with the implementation of any changes based on such analysis. These initiatives and their implementation also involve significant uncertainties and risks that may result in restructuring charges and unforeseen expenses and costs associated with exiting lines of business and complications or delays, including, among others things, the risk of failure. During the first quarter of 2006, we have incurred severance charges of \$5.2 million. Additionally, in order to retain the services of our chief financial officer, Jonathan J.R. Dodd, and a number of other key employees, we have entered into retention agreements with these employees that provide for specified severance payments in the event

50

Table of Contents

of termination without cause or following a change of control. In the event of payout to all employees covered by these retention agreements, our cash requirements would include a total payment of approximately \$9.9 million to all such employees.

We paid additional gross claims of \$18.3 million during the three months ended March 31, 2006 relating to the environmental claim and the hurricane events of 2005 and 2004. We expect that our cash requirements for the payment of these and other claims will be significant in future periods as we receive and settle claims, including those relating to these specific claims and in particular, claims related to the hurricanes that occurred in 2005.

Following our recent ratings downgrade by A.M. Best, Lloyd's has agreed with us that in order to benefit the continued underwriting of Syndicate 4000 in the Lloyd's of London market during the 2007 underwriting year, Syndicate 4000 would be better served by a diversification of its capital base with one or more third-party capital sources, if we would be able to secure such capital. In particular, we believe Syndicate 4000 may receive an increased submission flow if its capital base is diversified through one or more third-party capital sources. Capital for the 2007 underwriting year, including any capital from a third-party source, must be in place by November 30, 2006. If we obtain capital provided by any third-party source, we would either add it to our existing funds or we may be able to remove some of the funds we have deposited to support our underwriting capacity of our Lloyd's syndicate. However, we can make no assurances that we will be successful in obtaining any third-party source of capital to support our Lloyd's syndicate.

We incurred capital expenditures of \$0.1 million during the three months ended March 31, 2006. As we are currently closely analyzing our business lines and our position, and exploring strategic alternatives, we are unable at this time to quantify the amount of future capital expenditures we may incur.

In addition to these cash requirements, under the purchase agreement with ESC, we have paid, on April 12, 2006, ESC's former shareholders an earn-out payment of \$5.0 million. We may also have substantial liabilities to clients, third parties and government authorities for property damage, personal injuries, breach of contract or breach of warranty claims, fines and penalties and regulatory action that could adversely affect our business arising from the assessment, analysis and assumption of environmental liabilities, and the management, remediation, and engineering of environmental conditions constitute a significant portion of our technical services business. From time to time, we have offered a liability assumption program under which a special-purpose entity assumes specified liabilities associated with environmental conditions for which we provide technical services, which may be insured or guaranteed by us. These businesses involve significant risks, including the possibility that we may have substantial liabilities to clients, third parties and governmental authorities for property damage, personal injuries, breach of contract or breach of warranty claims, fines and penalties and regulatory action that could adversely affect our business.

While insurance regulation differs by location, each jurisdiction requires that minimum levels of capital be maintained in order to write new insurance business. Factors that affect capital requirements generally include premium volume, the extent and nature of loss and loss expense reserves, the type and form of insurance and reinsurance business underwritten and the availability of reinsurance protection from adequately rated retrocessionaires on terms that are acceptable to us. Additionally, we seek to capitalize our insurance operations in excess of the minimum regulatory requirements so that we may maintain our current financial ratings from A.M. Best. These regulatory and rating agency requirements restrict the amount of capital we are able to distribute to Quanta Holdings and other insurance subsidiaries. For further discussion, see "— Adequacy of Regulatory and Rating Capital." Substantially all of our capital has been distributed among our rated operating subsidiaries based on our assessment of the levels of capital that we believe are prudent to support our expected levels of business, the applicable regulatory requirements, and the recommendations of the insurance regulatory authorities and rating agencies.

We have determined that \$740.8 million of investment securities, with unrealized losses of approximately \$6.1 million were other-than-temporarily impaired as of March 31, 2006. The realization of these losses represents the maximum amount of potential losses in our investment securities if we

Table of Contents

were to sell all of these securities as of March 31, 2006 and are primarily attributable to changes in interest rates and not changes in credit quality. As a result of our decision, the affected investments were reduced to their estimated fair value, which becomes their new cost basis. The recognition of the losses has no affect on our shareholders' equity, the market value of our investments, our cash flows or our liquidity. The evaluation for other-than-temporary impairments requires the application of significant judgment, including our intent to hold the investment for a period of time sufficient to allow for possible recovery. We believe we have sufficient assets to pay our currently foreseen insurance liabilities as they become due, and we have no immediate intent to liquidate the investments securities affected by our decision. However, due to the general uncertainties surrounding our business resulting from A.M. Best's downgrade of our financial strength ratings and our decision to explore strategic alternatives, we concluded that there are no absolute assurances that we will have the ability to hold the affected investments for a sufficient period of time. It is possible that the investment securities' fair values could change in subsequent periods, resulting in additional material impairment charges.

While we have had sufficient liquidity to pay the losses we experienced in the past hurricane season, in the future, we may need to raise capital through debt or equity or other securities to further expand our business strategy or enter new lines of business. The amount and timing of any capital raise will depend on many factors, including our ability to write new business successfully and to establish premium rates and reserves at levels sufficient to cover losses. At this time, we are not able to quantify the amount of additional capital we may raise or will require in the future or predict the timing of any other future capital needs. Any future equity or debt financing, if available at all, may be on terms that are not favorable to us. If we raise capital through equity financings, your interest in our company will be diluted, and the securities we issue may have rights, preferences and privileges that are senior to those of the shares that are currently issued and outstanding. If we cannot maintain or obtain adequate capital to manage our business strategy, our business, results of operations and financial condition may be adversely affected.

Dividends and Redemptions

As a holding company, we depend on future dividends and other permitted payments from our subsidiaries to pay any dividends to our common and preferred shareholders. Our subsidiaries' ability to pay dividends, as well as our ability to pay dividends, is subject to regulatory, contractual, rating agency and other constraints. Furthermore, the terms of our letter of credit and revolving credit facility prohibit us from repurchasing shares and paying dividends on our common shares without the consent of our lenders. We have obtained a consent under our current letter of credit and revolving credit facility for the payment of dividends on our series A preferred shares. However, the facility prohibits us from paying dividends on our series A preferred shares so long as there is a default under that agreement. Future credit agreements or other agreements relating to our indebtedness may also contain provisions prohibiting or limiting the payment of dividends on our shares under certain circumstances. If we experience a change of control, we may be required to make offers to redeem our series A preferred shares at a price of \$25.25 per share, plus declared but unpaid dividends and additional amounts, if any, to the date of redemption and on the terms described in the Certificate of Designation. Our series A preferred shares have no stated maturity and are not subject to any sinking fund and are not convertible into any of our other securities or property.

We are also subject to Bermuda regulatory constraints that affect our ability to pay dividends on our shares, redeem our series A preferred shares and make other payments. Under the Companies Act, even though we are solvent and able to pay our liabilities as they become due, we may not declare or pay a dividend or make a distribution if we have reasonable grounds for believing that we are, or will after the payment be, unable to pay our liabilities as they become due or if the realizable value of our assets will thereby be less than the aggregate of our liabilities and our issued share capital and share premium accounts. Under the Companies Act, when a company issues shares, the aggregate paid in

par value of the issued shares comprises the company's share capital account. When shares are issued at a "premium", that is, where the actual sum paid for a share exceeds the par value of the share, the amount paid in excess of the par value must be allocated to and maintained in a capital

52

Table of Contents

account called the "share premium account." As of March 31, 2006, Quanta Holdings has approximately \$656.9 million in its share premium account. Quanta Holdings has a high share premium account due to the significant difference between the \$0.01 par value of our common shares and series A preferred shares and the amounts paid for those shares in recent and historical offerings of the Company. The Companies Act requires shareholder approval prior to any reduction of our share capital or share premium accounts. Bermuda law also provides that we maintain a contributed surplus account, to which we must allocate, among other things, shareholder capital which is unrelated to any share subscription.

We believe that we currently have sufficient assets to pay our foreseen liabilities as they become due. As a result of our losses, for Bermuda company law purposes, the realizable value of our assets may no longer exceed the aggregate of our liabilities and our issued share capital and share premium accounts. If this deficiency exists, we would be prohibited by Bermuda company law from paying dividends or making distributions to our shareholders, including our holders of series A preferred shares. In order for Quanta Holdings to have the flexibility to pay dividends to shareholders, we have filed a definitive proxy statement including a proposal to our common shareholders for the approval of a reduction of \$656.9 million from the share premium account and reallocation of that sum to our contributed surplus account. If our common shareholders do not approve any such proposal, we may be restricted by Bermuda company law from declaring or paying dividends to our holders of series A preferred shares and other shareholders. We cannot make any assurances that we will have the ability to declare and pay dividends under Bermuda law to our shareholders in the future. In addition, even if our shareholders approve this proposal and we are permitted by law to declare and pay dividends, we cannot assure you that future losses or other events could not impair our ability to pay dividends to our shareholders.

While our financial advisors are helping us to evaluate the use of potential excess capital to return value to our shareholders, in addition to the restrictions described above relating to our operating subsidiaries, we may be limited in the amount of any dividends that could be paid on, or the amount of any redemption of, our shares. Under Bermuda law, we may not declare or pay a dividend or redeem our shares (including our series A preferred shares) at any time if we have reasonable grounds for believing that we are, or after the payment or redemption would be, unable to pay our liabilities as they become due. We also may not declare or pay a dividend or redeem our shares (including our series A preferred shares) except out of the capital paid up thereon, out of our issued share capital and share premium accounts or, in the case of a redemption, out of the proceeds of a new issue of shares made for the purpose of the redemption. Our secured letter of credit and revolving credit facility also contain provisions prohibiting the payment of dividends on common shares or redemption of our shares, as well as the payment of dividends on our series A preferred shares if a default exists under the facility.

For additional discussion concerning risks relating to our dividend policy and our holding company structure and its effect on our ability to receive and pay dividends, see "Financial Condition and Liquidity" above. See also note 1 to our December 31, 2005 consolidated financial statements included in our Form 10-K.

Commitments

We have contractual obligations relating to our reserves for losses and loss expenses and commitments under the trust preferred securities, preferred shares and non-cancelable operating leases for property and office equipment described above under "Liquidity" as of March 31, 2006 as follows:

53

Table of Contents

Payments due by period (\$ in thousands) Less than 3-5 More than 5 Contractual obligations (\$000's) Total 1 year 1-3 years years years Reserve for losses and loss expenses \$ 592,252 \$ 282,097 \$ 144,384 83,812 \$ 81,959 Interest on long-term debt obligations(1) 153,005 5,088 10,175 10,175 127,567 Long-term debt obligations 61,857 61,857 Operating lease obligations 41,119 5,471 8,062 6,443 21,143 Dividends on preferred shares 37,769 8,022 16,044 13,703 Total \$ 886,002 \$ 300,678 \$ 178,665 \$ 114,133 \$ 292,526

Our reserve for losses and loss expenses consists of case reserves and IBNR. In assessing the adequacy of these reserves, it must be noted that the actual costs of settling claims is uncertain as it depends upon future events. Many of these events will be out of our control and could potentially affect the ultimate liability and timing of any potential payment. There is necessarily a range of possible outcomes and the eventual outcome will certainly differ from the projections currently made. This uncertainty is heightened by the short time in which we have operated, thereby providing limited company-specific claims loss emergence patterns. Consequently, we must use industry benchmarks, on a line by line basis, in deriving IBNR which, despite management's and our independent actuary's care in selecting them, will differ from actual experience.

Similarly, we have limited loss payout pattern information specific to our experience, therefore we have used industry data, on a line by line basis, to estimate our expected payments. Consequently, despite management's care in selecting them, the actual payment of our reserve for losses and loss expenses will differ from estimated payouts.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Other than our trust preferred securities offerings through the Quanta Capital Statutory Trust I and Quanta Capital Statutory Trust II (together "Quanta Trust I and II"), as of March 31, 2006, we have not entered into any off-balance sheet arrangements with special purpose entities or variable interest entities. We did not consolidate Quanta Trust I

⁽¹⁾ The interest on the long-term debt obligation is based on a spread above LIBOR. We have reflected the interest due based upon the current interest rate at March 31, 2006 on the facility.

⁽²⁾Dividends on our 10.25% series A preferred shares is based on a dividend of \$2.5625 per share. We have not estimated dividends payable on our series A preferred shares as they are perpetual and have no fixed mandatory redemption date unless a change of control occurs or we are able to redeem the preferred shares. We do not have the right to redeem our series A preferred shares until on or after December 15, 2010. Assuming 3,130,525 shares of our series A preferred shares are outstanding during any applicable period, we would be required to pay dividends, on an annual basis, of an aggregate of approximately \$8.0 million.

and II, the issuer of the trust preferred securities and a variable interest entity, since we are not the primary beneficiary of Quanta Trust I or II. As of March 31, 2006, we have recorded the \$61.9 million of Debentures, which were issued to Quanta Trust I and II, on our consolidated balance sheet. The net proceeds of \$58.4 million from the sale of the Debentures to Quanta Trust I and II were used for working capital purposes and our business. Distributions will be payable at a variable per annum rate of interest, reset quarterly, equal to LIBOR plus 385 basis points by the Company to Quanta Trust I and equal to LIBOR plus 350 basis points by the Company to Quanta Trust II as described above under "Commitments." The Debentures are redeemable at the Company's option at par beginning March 15, 2010.

Adequacy of Regulatory and Rating Capital

While insurance regulation differs by location, each jurisdiction requires that minimum levels of capital be maintained in order to write new insurance business. Factors that affect capital requirements generally include premium volume, the extent and nature of loss and loss expense reserves, the type and form of insurance and reinsurance business underwritten and the availability of reinsurance protection from adequately rated retrocessionaires on terms that are acceptable to us.

In all of the jurisdictions in which we operate insurers and reinsurers are required to maintain certain minimum levels of capital and risk-based capital, the calculation of which includes numerous

54

Table of Contents

factors as specified by the respective insurance regulatory authorities and the related insurance regulations. We capitalize our insurance operations in excess of the minimum regulatory requirements in order to enable us to write more business and to be more selective in the business we underwrite. Accordingly, allocation of capital sufficient to achieve business objectives is a critical aspect of any insurance organization, particularly an insurance operation with a limited operating history such as ours.

On March 2, 2006, A.M. Best announced that it had downgraded the financial strength rating assigned to Quanta Bermuda and its subsidiaries and Quanta Europe, to "B++" (very good), under review with negative implications. The A.M. Best "A" (excellent) rated Lloyd's market, including our Lloyd's syndicate, was not subject to the rating downgrade. On March 2, 2006, A.M. Best announced that it had downgraded the financial strength rating assigned to Quanta Bermuda and its subsidiaries and Quanta Europe, to "B++" (very good), and placed those companies under review with negative implications. The recent downgrade of our financial ratings has had a significant adverse effect on our ability to conduct our business in our current product lines and on our ability to execute our business strategy. For further discussion of these recent developments, see "Overview. A.M. Best Rating Actions, Strategic Alternatives and Evaluation" above. A.M. Best may further downgrade our ratings. There is no assurance as to what rating actions A.M. Best may take now or in the future or whether A.M. Best will further downgrade our rating or will remove any qualification of our rating.

Substantially all of our capital has been distributed among our rated operating subsidiaries based on our assessment of the levels of capital that we believe are prudent to support our expected levels of business, the applicable regulatory requirements, and the recommendations of the insurance regulatory authorities and rating agencies.

Posting of Security by Our Operating Subsidiaries

Our Bermuda, United Kingdom, and Irish operating subsidiaries are not licensed, accredited or otherwise approved as reinsurers anywhere in the United States. Many U.S. jurisdictions do not permit insurance companies to take credit on their U.S. statutory financial statements for reinsurance to cover unpaid liabilities, such as loss and loss adjustment expense and unearned premium reserves, obtained from unlicensed or non-admitted insurers without appropriate security acceptable to U.S. insurance commissioners. Typically, this type of security will take the form of a letter of credit issued by an acceptable bank, the establishment of a trust, funds withheld or a combination of these elements.

As described under "Liquidity" above we entered into a secured bank credit facility with a syndicate of lenders that allows us to provide to our insured clients up to \$250 million in letters of credit as security under the terms of insurance and reinsurance contracts. The availability to a borrower is based on the amount of eligible investments pledged by that borrower and no material adverse change provisions. Regulatory restrictions will also limit the amount of investments that may be pledged by our U.S. insurance borrowers and, consequently, the amount available for letters of credit and borrowings under the facility to those borrowers. We currently have approximately \$215.5 million of secured letters of credit issued and outstanding under the facility.

As of March 31, 2006, we have approximately \$258.2 million that is pledged as collateral for letters of credit, approximately \$175.0 million held in trust funds for the benefit of ceding companies and to fund our obligations associated with the assumption of an environmental remediation liability, \$154.9 million that is held by Lloyd's to support our underwriting activities, \$51.2 million held in trust funds that are related to our deposit liabilities and \$29.7 million that is on deposit with, or has been pledged to, U.S. state insurance departments.

Some of our insurance and many of our reinsurance contracts contain termination rights that are triggered by the A.M. Best rating downgrade. Some of these insurance and reinsurance contracts also require us to post additional security. As a result, we may be required to post additional security either through the issuance of letters of credit or the placement of securities in trust under the terms of those insurance or reinsurance contracts. We may also elect to post security under other insurance contracts in order to maintain that business. We currently have net cash and cash equivalent balances of approximately \$77.9 million that are available to post as security or place in trust.

55

Table of Contents

We cannot draw letters of credit or borrow under our existing credit agreement if we have incurred a material adverse effect or if a default exists under the agreement. If we fail to maintain or enter into adequate letter of credit facilities on a timely basis, we may be unable to provide necessary security to cedent companies under our existing retrocessional and reinsurance contracts that have the right to require the posting of additional security by reason of the downgrade of our A.M. Best rating. We cannot assure you that we will be able to increase the commitment under our existing bank credit facility or obtain additional credit facilities at terms acceptable to us. Our inability to maintain or enter into adequate credit facilities would have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.

Ratings

Ratings by independent agencies are an important factor in establishing the competitive position of insurance and reinsurance companies and are important to our ability to market and sell our products. Rating organizations continually review the financial positions of insurers. S&P maintains a letter scale rating system ranging from "AAA" (Extremely Strong) to "R" (under regulatory supervision). A.M. Best maintains a letter scale rating system ranging from "A++" (Superior) to "F" (in liquidation). The objective of S&P and A.M. Best's ratings systems is to provide an opinion of an insurer's or reinsurer's financial strength and ability to meet ongoing obligations to its policyholders. These ratings

reflect our ability to pay policyholder claims and are not applicable to our securities, nor are they a recommendation to buy, sell or hold our shares. These ratings are subject to periodic review by, and may be revised or revoked at the sole discretion of, S&P and A.M. Best.

On March 2, 2006, A.M. Best announced that it had downgraded the financial strength rating assigned to Quanta Bermuda and its subsidiaries and Quanta Europe, to "B++" (very good), and placed those companies under review with negative implications. The recent downgrade of our financial ratings has had a significant adverse effect on our ability to conduct our business in our current product lines and on our ability to execute our business strategy. For further discussion of these recent developments, see "Overview. A.M. Best Rating Actions, Strategic Alternatives and Evaluation" above. A.M. Best may further downgrade our ratings. There is no assurance as to what rating actions A.M. Best may take now or in the future or whether A.M. Best will further downgrade our rating or will remove any qualification of our rating. A "B++" (very good) rating is the fifth highest of fifteen rating levels and indicates A.M. Best's opinion of our financial strength and ability to meet ongoing obligations to our future policyholders. We have not been rated by any rating agency other than A.M. Best.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our management makes certain judgments, estimates and assumptions in the application of accounting policies used to determine inherently subjective amounts reported in our condensed consolidated financial statements. If management uses different assumptions and estimates than it currently does, it could produce materially different estimates of the reported amounts. For a detailed discussion of our critical accounting policies, judgments, estimates and assumptions management uses please refer to the Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005 as filed with the SEC on March 31, 2006. There have been no significant changes in the application of our critical accounting policies and estimates subsequent to December 31, 2005.

Accounting for stock-based compensation

The Company has a long-term stock-based employee incentive plan (the "Incentive Plan"), which is described more fully in Note 8. Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company accounted for the Incentive Plan under the recognition and measurement provisions of APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees ("APB 25") and related Interpretations, as permitted by FASB Statement No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation ("SFAS 123"). No stock-based employee compensation cost was recognized in the Statement of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2005 or 2004, as all options granted under the Incentive Plan had an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant. Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the

56

Table of Contents

fair value recognition provisions of FASB Statement No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment ("SFAS 123(R)"), using the modified-prospective-transition method. Under that transition method, compensation cost recognized in the first quarter of 2006 includes: (a) compensation cost for all share-based payments granted prior to, but not yet vested as of January 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the original provisions of SFAS 123, and (b) compensation cost for all share-based payments granted subsequent to January 1, 2006, based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 123(R). Results for prior periods have not been restated.

As a result of adopting SFAS 123(R) on January 1, 2006, the Company's loss before income taxes and net loss for the three months ended March 31, 2006, are \$0.4 million greater than if it had continued to account for share-based compensation under APB 25. Basic and diluted earnings per share for the period ended March 31, 2006 would have been \$(0.24), which is the same result as if the Company had not adopted SFAS 123(R).

As of March 31, 2006, there was \$2.7 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non vested share-based compensation arrangements related to stock options and performance share units granted under the Incentive Plan. This cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.06 years.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk can be described as the risk of change in fair value of a financial instrument due to changes in interest rates, creditworthiness, foreign exchange rates or other factors. We are exposed to potential loss from these factors. Our most significant financial instruments are our investment assets which consist primarily of fixed maturity securities and cash equivalents that are denominated in both U.S. and foreign currencies. External investment professionals manage our investment portfolios in accordance with our investment guidelines. Our investment guidelines also permit our investment managers to use derivative instruments in very limited circumstances. We will seek to mitigate market risks by a number of actions, as described below.

Derivative Valuation Risk

Our derivative policy permits the use of derivatives to manage our portfolio's duration, yield curve, currency exposure, credit exposure, exposure to volatility and to take advantage of inefficiencies in derivatives markets. We may also enter into derivative transactions (1) to hedge capital market risks that may be present in our contracts of insurance or reinsurance and (2) as replication transactions which we define as a set of derivative, insurance and/or securities transactions that, when combined, produce the equivalent economic result of an investment security or insurance or reinsurance contract that meets our investment or underwriting guidelines.

We utilize derivative instruments only when we believe the terms and structure of the contracts are thoroughly understood and its total return profile and risk characteristics can be fully analyzed. Also, any single derivative or group of derivatives in the aggregate cannot create risk characteristics that are inconsistent with our overall risk profile and investment portfolio guidelines.

Foreign Currency Risk and Functional Currency

Our reporting currency is the U.S. dollar. Although we have not experienced any significant net exposures to foreign currency risk, we expect that in the future our exposure to market risk for changes in foreign exchange rates will be concentrated in our investment assets, investments in foreign subsidiaries, premiums receivable and insurance reserves arising from known or probable losses that are denominated in foreign currencies. We generally manage our foreign currency risk by maintaining assets denominated in the same currency as our insurance liabilities resulting in a natural hedge or by entering into foreign currency forward derivative contracts in an effort to hedge against movements in the value of foreign currencies against the U.S. dollar. These contracts are not designated as specific hedges for financial reporting purposes and therefore realized and unrealized gains and losses on these

57

Table of Contents

contracts are recorded in income in the period in which they occur. These contracts generally have maturities of three months or less. A foreign currency forward contract results in an obligation to purchase or sell a specified currency at a future date and price specified at the time of the contract. Foreign currency forward contracts will not eliminate fluctuations in the value of our assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies but rather allow us to establish a rate of exchange for a future point in time. We have not and do not expect to enter into such contracts with respect to a material amount of our assets or liabilities.

Our non-U.S. subsidiaries maintain both assets and liabilities in their functional currencies, principally Euro and sterling. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are exposed to changes in currency exchange rates. Exchange rate fluctuations in Euro and sterling functional currencies against our U.S. dollar reporting currency are reported as a separate component of other comprehensive (loss) income in shareholders' equity. Foreign exchange risk associated with non-US dollar functional currencies of our foreign subsidiaries is reviewed as part of our risk management process and we employ foreign currency risk management strategies, as described above, to manage our exposure. Exchange rate fluctuations against non-U.S. dollar functional currencies may materially impact our consolidated statement of operations and financial position.

Our investment guidelines limit the amount of our investment portfolio that may be denominated in foreign currencies to 20% (as measured by market value). Furthermore, our guidelines limit the amount of foreign currency denominated investments that can be held without a corresponding hedge against the foreign currency exposure to 5% (as measured by market value). As of March 31, 2006, our investment portfolio included \$0.9 million of our total net invested assets, of securities that were denominated in foreign currencies and were purchased by our investment managers for the purpose of improving overall portfolio yield. These securities were rated AAA and were substantially hedged into U.S. dollars according to our investment guidelines by entering into foreign currency forward contracts. At March 31, 2006, the net fair market value of foreign currency forward contracts relating to foreign currency denominated investments was negligible.

Interest Rate Risk

Our exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates is concentrated in our investment portfolio. Our investment portfolio primarily consists of fixed income securities. Accordingly, our primary market risk exposure is to changes in interest rates. Fluctuations in interest rates have a direct impact on the market valuation of fixed income securities. As interest rates rise, the market value of our fixed-income portfolio falls, and the converse is also true.

Our strategy for managing interest rate risk includes maintaining a high quality investment portfolio that is actively managed by our managers in accordance with our investment guidelines in order to balance our exposure to interest rates with the requirement to tailor the duration, yield, currency and liquidity characteristics to the anticipated cash outflow characteristics of claim reserve liabilities. As of March 31, 2006, assuming parallel shifts in interest rates, the impact of an immediate 100 basis point increase in market interest rates on our net invested assets, including cash and cash equivalents, under management by third-party investment managers of approximately \$885.5 million would have been an estimated decrease in market value of approximately \$26.4 million, or 2.9%, and the impact on our net invested assets, including cash and cash equivalents, under management by third-party investment managers of an immediate 100 basis point decrease in market interest rates would have been an estimated increase in market value of approximately \$23.4 million, or 2.6%.

As of March 31, 2006, our investment portfolio included AAA rated mortgage-backed securities with a market value of \$234.5 million, or 28.4%, excluding trading investments related to deposit liabilities. As with other fixed income investments, the fair market value of these securities fluctuates depending on market and other general economic conditions and the interest rate environment. Changes in interest rates can also expose us to prepayment and extension risks on these investments. In periods of declining interest rates, the frequency of mortgage prepayments generally increase as mortgagees seek to refinance at a lower interest rate cost. Mortgage prepayments result in the early repayment of the underlying principal of mortgage-backed securities requiring us to reinvest the

Table of Contents

proceeds at the then current market rates. When interest rates increase, these assets are exposed to extension risk, which occurs when holders of underlying mortgages reduce the frequency on which they prepay the outstanding principal before the maturity date and delay any refinancing of the outstanding principal.

Credit Risk

We have exposure to credit risk primarily as a holder of fixed income securities. This risk is defined as the default or the potential loss in market value resulting from adverse changes in the borrower's ability to repay the debt. Our risk management strategy and investment policy is to invest in debt instruments of high credit quality issuers and to limit the amount of credit exposure with respect to particular ratings categories and to any one issuer. We attempt to limit our overall credit exposure by purchasing fixed income securities that are generally rated investment grade by Moody's Investors Service, Inc. and/or S&P. Our investment guidelines require that the average credit quality of our portfolio will be Aa3/AA— and that no more than 5% of our investment portfolio's market value shall be invested in securities rated below BBB—/Baa3. We also limit our exposure to any single issuer to 5% or less of our portfolio's market value at the time of purchase, with the exception of U.S. government and agency securities. As of March 31, 2006, the average credit quality of our investment portfolio was AA+, and all fixed income securities held were investment grade.

We are also exposed to the credit risk of our insurance and reinsurance brokers to whom we make claims payments for insureds and our reinsureds, as well as to the credit risk of our reinsurers and retrocessionaires who assume business from us. As of March 31, 2006, our loss and loss adjustment expenses recoverable from reinsurers balance was \$198.3 million. To mitigate the risk of nonpayment of amounts due under these arrangements, we have established business and financial standards for reinsurer and broker approval, incorporating ratings by major rating agencies and considering the financial condition of the counterparty and the current market information. In addition, we monitor concentrations of credit risk arising from our reinsurers, regularly review our reinsurers' financial strength ratings and obtain letters of credit to collateralize balances due.

We are also exposed to credit risk relating to our premiums receivable balance. As of March 31, 2006, our premiums receivable balance was \$147.0 million. We believe that credit risk exposure related to these balances is mitigated by several factors, including but not limited to credit monitoring controls performed as part of the underwriting process and monitoring of aged receivable balances. In addition, as the majority of our insurance and reinsurance contracts provide the right to offset the premiums receivable against losses payable, we believe that the credit risk in this area is substantially reduced.

Effects of Inflation

We do not believe that inflation has had a material effect on our consolidated results of operations. The effects of inflation could cause the severity of claim costs to increase in the future. Our estimates for losses and loss expenses include assumptions, including those relating to inflation, about future payments for settlement of claims and claims handling expenses. To the extent inflation causes these costs to increase above our estimated reserves that are established for these claims, we will be required to increase reserves for losses and loss expenses with a corresponding reduction in our earnings in the period in which the deficiency is identified. The actual effects of inflation on our results cannot be accurately determined until claims are ultimately settled.

Table of Contents

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

In connection with the preparation of this quarterly report, we have carried out an evaluation under the supervision of, and with the participation of, our management, including our Interim Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Exchange Act) as of March 31, 2006.

Limitations on the Effectiveness of Controls

There are inherent limitations to the effectiveness of any system of disclosure controls and procedures, including the possibility of human error and the circumvention or overriding of the controls and procedures. Accordingly, even effective disclosure controls and procedures can only provide reasonable assurance of achieving their control objectives. Our evaluation identified material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting as discussed in "Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting" contained in our Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005, all of which remain unremediated at the end of the period covered by this report. These deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting may also constitute deficiencies in our disclosure controls and procedures.

Because of the material weaknesses discussed in our Form 10-K, our Interim Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as of March 31, 2006, to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the applicable rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Interim Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Notwithstanding these material weaknesses discussed in our Form 10-K, management believes the financial statements contained in this quarterly report are fairly presented in all material respects, in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In connection with the evaluation described above, we identified no change in our internal control over financial reporting (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act), that occurred during the three months ended March 31, 2006, that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

60

Table of Contents

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

We are not a party to any pending or threatened material litigation and are not currently aware of any pending or threatened material litigation other than routine legal proceedings that we believe are, in the aggregate, not material to our financial condition and results of operations. In the normal course of business we may become involved in various claims and legal proceedings.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Information regarding risk factors appears in "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Safe Harbor Disclosure," in Part I — Item 2 of this Form 10-Q and in Part I — Item 1A, "Risk Factors," of our Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005. The information presented below updates, and should be read in conjunction with, the risk factors and information disclosed in our Form10-K and should also be read in conjunction with the information disclosed elsewhere in this report on Form 10-Q.

The downgrade of our ratings by A.M. Best permits clients to terminate their contracts with us. Many other clients may terminate their contracts with us regardless of our financial strength rating, including the program managers under our programs. Based on our discussions with the program manager of our residential builders' and contractors' program, or HBW program, we expect that the program manager will divert a substantial portion of its business to other carriers during 2006.

Certain of our insurance and many of our reinsurance contracts contain termination rights triggered by the A.M. Best rating downgrade. Furthermore, many of our other insurance contracts and certain of our reinsurance contracts provide for cancellation at the option of the policyholder regardless of our financial strength rating. A cancellation typically results in the termination of the policy and our ongoing obligations and the return of premiums to our client that frequently approximates our unearned premium reserve as of the date of the cancellation. Whether a client would exercise such rights would depend, among other things, on the reasons for the downgrade, the extent of the downgrade, the prevailing market conditions, whether we have posted security in respect of our obligations and the pricing and availability of replacement coverage. We cannot predict in advance how many of our clients will actually exercise such rights or the effect such cancellations will have on our financial condition or future prospects. However, depending on the number of contracts involved, such an effect could be materially adverse. As of April 30, 2006, we had received notice of cancellation on approximately 5.7% of our in-force policies, calculated using original contract gross premiums written related to those cancelled policies as a percentage of total gross premiums written during 2005. As a result, we estimate that the gross and net premiums written under the HBW program during 2006 will be less than 35% of the gross and net premiums written during 2005. Gross unearned premiums relating to these cancellations that we have returned or expect to return to our clients total approximately \$15.6 million. With respect to our HBW program, based on our discussions with the program manager, we understand that it will divert a substantial portion of the HBW program business to other carriers during 2006. Some carriers have commenced writing this business in certain states and are seeking approval in other states. We also understand that other carriers are in negotiations with the HBW program manager. We expect that we will receive additional cancellations.

As a result of the recent downgrade of our financial strength rating by A.M. Best, we are closely analyzing our business lines, positioning in the market and internal operations and identifying steps we should take to preserve shareholder value and improve our position, including the exploration of strategic alternatives. The implementation of any changes based on such analysis or of any strategic alternatives involves substantial uncertainties and risk, and our results of operations, business and financial strength rating may be materially and adversely impacted if we do not

succeed in implementing such initiatives.

61

Table of Contents

We are exploring strategic alternatives, including the potential sale of some or all of our business, the run off of certain product lines or the business or a combination of alternatives. In addition, as a result of the impact of the recent rating action by A.M. Best, we have implemented key steps designed to preserve shareholder value. We are analyzing our business lines, their positioning and internal operations. In connection with this analysis, we have identified those business lines to continue and those business lines we intend to no longer seek new business pending a final determination of the strategic alternatives by the Board of Directors. In this regard, we currently plan to retain our programs, professional liability and fidelity businesses in the United States, our Lloyd's syndicate in Europe and our environmental consulting services through ESC in the United States. We have determined to no longer seek new business in our marine and aviation and casualty reinsurance and our environmental, surety and trade credit insurance lines. These initiatives and their implementation involve significant uncertainties and risks that may result in restructuring charges and unforeseen expenses and costs associated with exiting lines of business and complications or delays. If we do not succeed in implementing the above initiatives on a timely basis, our results of operations, business and financial strength rating may be materially and adversely impacted. Even if we successfully implement any of these measures, there can be no assurance that any of these measures alone may improve our results of operations, preserve shareholder value or maintain or improve our financial strength rating.

Without the approval by our common shareholders of a proposal to reduce our share premium account and reallocate certain capital to our contributed surplus account, we may be restricted by law from declaring or paying dividends to our shareholders, including the holders of our series A preferred shares.

As a result of our losses, for Bermuda company law purposes, the realizable value of our assets may no longer exceed the aggregate of our liabilities and our issued share capital and share premium accounts. If this deficiency exists, we would be prohibited by Bermuda company law from paying dividends or making distributions to our shareholders, including the holders of our series A preferred shares. For further discussion of our share capital and share premium accounts, see "Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Financial Condition and Liquidity — Liquidity — Dividends and Redemptions."

In order for Quanta Holdings to have the flexibility to pay dividends to shareholders, we have included in our definitive proxy statement, a proposal to our shareholders to reduce the share premium account by \$656.9 million and reallocate that sum to our contributed surplus account, which we intend to submit for approval at the 2006 annual general meeting. This reduction of our share premium account and reallocation to the contributed surplus account requires the approval of our common shareholders to be effective. If our common shareholders do not approve any such proposal, we may be restricted by Bermuda company law from declaring or paying dividends to the holders of our series A preferred shares and other shareholders. We cannot make any assurances that we will have the ability to declare and pay dividends under Bermuda law to our shareholders in the future. In addition, even if our common shareholders approve this proposal and we are permitted by law to declare and pay dividends, we cannot assure you that future losses or other events could not impair our ability to pay dividends to our shareholders.

Item 6. Exhibits

10.1	Separation Agreement and General Release, effective January 3, 2006, by and
	between Quanta Capital Holdings Ltd. and Tobey J. Russ (incorporated by
	reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated
	January 9, 2006).
10.2	Retention Agreement by and between Quanta Capital Holdings Ltd. and Jonathan J.R. Dodd, dated March 30, 2006 (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.35
	to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005 filed on March 31, 2006).

62

Table of Contents	
10.3	Form of Restricted Share Agreement (incorporated by reference from Exhibit
	10.1 to the Company's Amendment No. 1 on Form 10-K/A to its Annual Report
	for the year ended December 31, 2005 filed on April 28, 2006).
31.1*	Certification of the Principal Executive Officer required by Rule 13a-14(a) or
	Rule 15d-14(a) pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
31.2*	Certification of the Principal Financial Officer required by Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule
	15d-14(a) pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.1*	Certification of the Principal Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section
	1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.2*	Certification of the Principal Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section
	1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

^{*} Filed herewith.

63

Table of Contents

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Quanta Capital
Holdings Ltd.

Date: May 9, 2006
/s/ Robert
Lippincott III
Robert
Lippincott III
(On behalf of the registrant

and as
Principal
Executive
Officer)
/s/ Jonathan
J.R. Dodd
Jonathan J.R.
Dodd
(Principal
Financial

Officer)

64

Table of Contents

Date: May 9, 2006

Index to Exhibits

10.1	Separation Agreement and General Release, effective January 3, 2006, by and between Quanta Capital Holdings Ltd. and Tobey J. Russ (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 9, 2006).
10.2	Retention Agreement by and between Quanta Capital Holdings Ltd. and Jonathan J.R. Dodd, dated March 30, 2006 (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.35 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005 filed on March 31, 2006).
10.3	Form of Restricted Share Agreement (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Amendment No. 1 on Form 10-K/A to its Annual Report for the year ended December 31, 2005 filed on April 28, 2006).
31.1*	Certification of the Principal Executive Officer required by Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a) pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
31.2*	Certification of the Principal Financial Officer required by Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a) pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.1*	Certification of the Principal Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.2*	Certification of the Principal Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

^{*} Filed herewith.

65